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AvestaPolarit's mission is to make the world stainless.

Stainless steel is the fastest growing metal - a durable and

virtually maintenance-free material with low life cycle

costs. It is hygienic, lightweight and ductile, and it has

green credentials as a fully recyclable product. 

STAINLESSwww.avestapolarit.com
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Statutory actual figures 

Pro forma figures 

AvestaPolarit in brief

All figures, both pro forma and statutory actual figures, have been presented in tables throug-

hout the Annual Report using the following colour code: 

AvestaPolarit is a dedicated stainless steel producer that was formed
in January 2001 by the merger of Avesta Sheffield and Outokumpu
Steel. The Group's vision is clear: to become 'Best in stainless'. 

AvestaPolarit is one of the world's largest producers of stainless
steel and its product range is one of the most diversified on the
market. The Group has production facilities in Finland, Sweden, the
UK and the USA. These operations are supported by a world-wide
network of sales companies and agents, as well as by service centres
in all key markets. 

The Group, which reported net sales of approximately EUR 3 billion
in 2001, employs around 9 000 people. 

AvestaPolarit Oyj Abp's shares are listed on the stock exchanges in
Stockholm and Helsinki. The main shareholders are Outokumpu Oyj
(55%) and Corus UK Ltd (23%). AvestaPolarit has a total of over 
18 000 shareholders. 
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2 A WORD FROM THE CEO

e have now completed AvestaPolarit's

first year of operations. I am pleased

to report that our greatest challenge

– completing the merger and inte-

grating our businesses – has progressed according to

plan. We have continued the march towards our main

goal – to become 'Best in stainless'. Customers have

welcomed AvestaPolarit and our status in financial

markets has been strengthened. Our aim is to remain

the preferred choice of our customers and to meet the

most demanding of expectations.

The organisation has advanced relentlessly to

achieve its strategic goals. The estimated synergy

benefits of EUR 100 million identified following the

merger are well within our reach, and estimated

synergies of EUR 18 million have already been achieved.

The combination of improved production models

and more efficient logistics, coupled with the benefits

of product swaps and a greater degree of specialisa-

tion at our production plants, is expected to generate

greater merger savings than originally anticipated.

The Group's main investment project in Tornio is

proceeding according to plan. When the expansion of

the site is completed in 2002, the Tornio mill will be

the world's largest integrated production facility for

stainless steel. The investment programme will also

make it possible to restructure the entire Coil

Products business area, thus securing an improved

and more efficient set-up for the Group's production

and logistics. 

This restructuring process includes the rationalisa-

tion of AvestaPolarit's melting facilities announced in

the autumn. Following the expansion of the melting

shop in Tornio, the Group's melting capacity will

exceed our anticipated needs for the next few years.

This makes it necessary to rationalise the business

and improve overall efficiency. In accordance with

the plans announced, the Group will close its smallest

melting shop in Degerfors and transfer its production

volumes to the Sheffield melting shop, where a billet

caster is being installed. The decision represents a

problem for employees at the Degerfors works and

will have repercussions for the local community, but

the decision has been inevitable and necessary to pre-

serve and improve the company's competitiveness. 

Following completion of the project to expand

capacity in Tornio, reorganisation of melting facil-

ities and specialisation of production units,

AvestaPolarit's cost efficiency and competitiveness

will improve considerably. These measures will also

provide us with a strong platform for developing fur-

ther our production and downstream businesses.

The trading environment for stainless steel

during the past year has been difficult. World appar-

ent consumption of stainless steel fell by about 3%,

and price levels also dropped sharply compared to

those in 2000. The combination of low prices and

shrinking volumes caused the company's results to

weaken considerably compared with the previous

year's results. AvestaPolarit's pre-tax result was 

EUR 131 million, compared to a pro forma result of

EUR 460 million in 2000. In this unusually harsh tra-

ding climate, in which most stainless steel companies

have been reporting losses, we at AvestaPolarit can be

relatively pleased with the results achieved. The out-

look for the immediate future, however, continues to

be overshadowed by uncertainty in the global econo-

my, and 2002 is therefore likely to remain a difficult

year for the industry. There have nevertheless been

indications to suggest that a market recovery could

take place during the second half of 2002. The long-

The start of an exciting journey

W
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term prospects for the consumption of stainless steel

remain good, with annual growth foreseen to aver-

age 5-6%. 

AvestaPolarit has a strong position in the global

stainless steel market and the potential for future

development is promising. When the market recovers

and is back to normal, we will be well placed to pur-

sue growth plans and maintain good levels of prof-

itability. 

The merger process, which has involved starting

a new business and integrating its constituent parts,

has been both interesting and challenging. When we

launched the new company, Stuart I. Pettifor held a

key position as deputy CEO and president of the Coil

Products business area. His decision to leave the com-

pany in August meant that we lost a colleague whose

extensive experience of the industry and strong lead-

ership qualities will be missed, as they played such

an important role in the formation of AvestaPolarit. I

would like to take this opportunity to thank him and

wish him every success in his future career.

The integration process has demanded enormous

efforts from our employees. They have risen to the

task with exemplary loyalty. We have successfully

completed the beginning of our journey, and I would

like to offer my sincere thanks to all employees for

their contributions. Co-operation, openness to change

and support of common objectives will continue to be

necessary to ensure that AvestaPolarit's journey

remains a successful one. I am convinced that

employees will welcome this opportunity to take part

in the development process that will make

AvestaPolarit the industry leader.

Ossi Virolainen

President & CEO



4 MISSION, VISION AND STRATEGIES

AvestaPolarit's mission is to "Make the

world stainless" and its vision to beco-

me "Best in stainless". This vision

reflects the company's ambition and

determination to become its customers' preferred

choice of partner, recognised for its manufacturing

excellence, price competitiveness, high standards of

customer service, wide range of products and fast,

cost-efficient transactions. AvestaPolarit also aims to

become the preferred employer for current and

potential employees. Finally, by reporting a consistent-

ly strong financial performance, the company aims to

become the preferred investment among shareholders. 

AvestaPolarit - a strong combination 
When Avesta Sheffield and Outokumpu Steel

announced their merger plans on 28 September 2000,

the announcement was well received by the market.

The two companies were seen to match each other

perfectly, with Outokumpu Steel's cost-efficient and

integrated production providing an excellent comple-

ment to Avesta Sheffield's broad product range and

extensive distribution network. Synergy benefits

from the merger were estimated at EUR 100 million;

these were foreseen to be realised by the end of 2005,

with the majority already by 2003. 

Between September 2000 and January 2001, the

companies had to wait for the appropriate approvals

from the EU's competition authority and a listing

approval from the stock exchanges in Stockholm and

Helsinki. The deal was also dependent on share-

holders approving an exchange of shares in Avesta

Sheffield for AvestaPolarit shares. On 22 January, all

the basic requirements for a combination had been

met and on 30 January, AvestaPolarit was listed on

the stock exchanges in Stockholm and Helsinki. 

The new company was born and the integration

process could begin.

Clear objective and strategies
AvestaPolarit's overall objective is to secure a signifi-

cant and sustainable increase in shareholder value as

a world-class, independent, focused, profitable and

growth-oriented stainless steel company with the

potential and ambition to become the global leader in

the stainless steel industry. 

Clear strategies to achieve this goal and support

the integration process were laid out from the very

start. Focus is on developing Coil Products as the core

business, and initially on ensuring an effective

implementation of the major ongoing investment pro-

gramme that will provide a new platform for growth

and global expansion. Key drivers in creating value

are also a prompt and effective integration of the two

companies and their complementary strengths to

exploit economies of scale in production, sales and

distribution, research and development, purchasing

and administration. 

Sales and marketing was a key area for rapid inte-

gration. Work also promptly began to set up common

systems for finance, IT issues, logistics and purchas-

ing. Corporate offices for AvestaPolarit were establis-

hed in Stockholm as well as in Espoo, on the outskirts

of Helsinki. No external recruitment was required to

create an effective management team. 

A stainless mission and vision 

The logotype that was produced for AvestaPolarit symbolises
the uniting of two strong forces. The basic shape of the logotype
derives from the symbol for iron and also incorporates the
round shape of a coil. The logotype's circular movement rein-
forces the image of stainless steel as a recyclable material and
illustrates that AvestaPolarit is a company constantly moving
forward to meet its customers' needs and requirements.
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Major investment programme to fuel
growth
AvestaPolarit's strategy to seek continued growth

and expansion emanates from an extensive invest-

ment programme for the period 2000 to 2004, which

was a cornerstone in the joint business plan drawn up

for the merger. The majority of these investments are

being made to expand production at the Tornio

works in Finland, further strengthening the cost-

efficient production of this fully integrated facility

for the benefit of the entire Group. The programme

will increase the Group's annual production capacity

for steel slabs from 1.75 million tonnes to 2.75 million

tonnes. Coil rolling capacity is being enhanced from

1.2 million tonnes to around 1.9 million tonnes. 

Specialisation for greater efficiency and
added value
By integrating production systems at the Group's

main coil production facilities in Finland, Sweden

and the UK, AvestaPolarit can optimise its business

operations. Increasing specialisation at individual

production units reduces overlap in capacity and

improves overall efficiency. This also helps the

Group's facilities to schedule longer production runs

and take full advantage of existing capacity, whilst at

the same time reducing operational and logistics

costs.

AvestaPolarit has a broad range of special pro-

ducts in stainless steel, such as hot rolled plate, tubes

and fittings, long products and precision strip. These

products have a higher degree of added value, and in

many of these businesses AvestaPolarit is already the

global market leader. These business units are there-

fore being developed to focus on products which

offer good growth potential and higher margins.

A quality brand 
A new Group, focused on growth and determined to

become the preferred choice among customers,

demands a new strong brand which embraces the

Group's core values. Consistent promotion should

help associate the AvestaPolarit brand with high 

quality, service and cost efficiency. 

AvestaPolarit's major ongoing investment programme focuses on the production facilities in the Kemi-Tornio region in northern Finland,
which encompass a fully integrated production chain from chromium ore mining to stainless steel mills.



6 FINANCIAL SUMMARY

• Stainless steel markets weakened considerably in

2001. The trading environment was extremely diffi-

cult and average stainless steel transaction prices and

conversion margins were 20% below last year's

levels. Against this background, the financial result

for 2001 can be considered as satisfactory.

• Both net sales and operating profit for the financial

year were significantly down compared to 2000, as a

result of lower prices and reduced deliveries. 

Net sales for 2001 amounted to EUR 2 977 million

(EUR 3 592 million), operating profit to EUR 141 mil-

lion (EUR 479 million) and profit before extraordina-

ry items to EUR 131 million (EUR 460 million).

• The integration process following the combination

of Avesta Sheffield and Outokumpu Steel has procee-

ded well.

• The Board of Directors recommends to the Annual

General Meeting that a dividend of EUR 0.08 per

share be paid out for 2001.

First financial year for the combined
new Group

EUR million

EUR million

EUR million

Pro forma

Key figures

EUR million 2001 2000

Net sales 2 977 3 592

Operating profit 141 479

Profit before extraordinary items 131 460

Profit for the financial period 112 342

Return on capital employed, % 7.0 25.7

Net interest-bearing debt at year end 482 269

Debt-to-equity ratio (gearing), % 39.7 22.8

Operating profit - pro forma

Net sales - pro forma

Capital expenditure - pro forma
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Key share-related data 

EUR 2001 2000

Earnings per share

- excluding negative goodwill1) 0.19 0.98

- including negative goodwill 0.32 0.98

Cash flow per share 0.61 1.04

Shareholders' equity per share 3.46 3.36

Dividend per share 0.08 0.15

Dividend/earnings ratio, % 0.25 0.15

Dividend yield, % 0.02 -

Price/earnings ratio 21.3 -

Market capitalisation 

at end of period3), EUR million 1 483 -

1) Amortisation of negative goodwill deducted from profit.
2) The Board of Directors' proposal to the Annual General Meeting.
3) On the Helsinki Stock Exchange.

Institutional
and private 
shareholders 21.5%

Corus UK Ltd 
23.2%

Outokumpu Oyj 
55.3%

Share price and trading volume

Helsinki

Stockholm

Ownership

• The first day of trade with the share on the stock 

exchanges both in Stockholm (XSSE) and 

Helsinki (HEX) was 30 January 2001.

• During the first twelve months of trading, the share

price rose at HEX by 43.2% and at XSSE by 53%.

• Continuous significant increase during the year

was recorded in  both trading volume and number of

shareholders in Finland.

2)

2)

2)



8 MARKET REVIEW



MARKET REVIEW 9

The trading environment in 2001 was diffi-

cult, characterised by economic uncertain-

ty in general and a recession in the USA in

particular. The events of 11 September and

their consequences have exacerbated the situation

further. Latest estimates indicate that the global eco-

nomy grew by just over 1% in 2001, whilst the

European economy grew by about 1.6%, despite a

slowdown towards the end of the year, particularly in

Germany. 

The economic slowdown has also been noticed in

other markets. After a slight recovery, the Japanese

economy stagnated and GDP in 2001 fell marginally.

However, economic developments in Asia were sup-

ported by strong growth in China, where GDP in-

creased by more than 7%.  

World apparent consumption of stainless steel in

2001 fell by about 3% to an estimated 19.2 million ton-

nes. Apparent consumption of cold rolled material

fell by 2% to 9.9 million tonnes. This reduction occur-

red principally in Europe and the USA; in contrast

consumption in China and Japan increased by 13%

and 8% respectively. World demand for hot rolled

stainless steel remained unchanged in 2001 at 2.5 mil-

lion tonnes, with consumption of both continuously

produced plate and quarto plate little changed from

2000. Strong growth in demand for hot rolled materi-

al in China and Japan offset reductions in Europe and

the USA.

Europe
For the European market, 2001 got off to a promising

start and demand for cold rolled stainless steel rose

by 4.5% during the first quarter compared to the final

quarter of 2000. This increase reflected the end of the

de-stocking phase which began during the summer

of 2000 and helped raise base cold rolled prices from

EUR 1 150/tonne in March to EUR 1 350/tonne by

June. Nickel prices also rose and total cold rolled sell-

ing prices, including alloy surcharges, peaked at

almost EUR 1 800/tonne in August. However, during

the summer months, as the economic outlook started

to look less favourable, demand started to decline. As

pessimism was at its greatest in the consumer sector,

demand for consumer products was hardest hit.

Demand remained subdued in the final quarter of the

Global market decline for stainless steel

Catering and
household 25%

Transport 16%

Welded
tubes 15%

Construction 10%

Other 5%

Process
industries 29%

Stainless steel consumption 2001

Source: CRU International

Stainless steel facade at the European Court of Human Rights in
Strasbourg.
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year due to continued de-stocking and lower econo-

mic activity. Nevertheless, whilst total cold rolled pri-

ces declined in line with the fall in nickel prices, base

prices remained stable, as producers reduced produc-

tion in line with demand. Overall, demand in 2001

fell by almost 5% compared to 2000.  

European hot rolled demand fell by 6% in 2001,

but base prices remained steady. Demand also fell for

long products and tubes, but not to the same extent as

for cold rolled coil. This is because demand for these

products is more closely related to industrial produc-

tion and new investments in industry than to consu-

mer behaviour. 

USA
Stainless steel demand in the USA, which was alrea-

dy poor at the beginning of 2001, weakened further

during the summer months and cold rolled demand

for the year fell by approximately 15% compared to

2000. Stainless steel production has averaged around

155 000 tonnes a month, the lowest level since 1994. 

The poor economic background in the USA and

the difficult situation facing the steel industry will

continue to encourage protectionist policies.

However, in October, the International Chamber of

Commerce ruled that all stainless steel semi-finished

products would be exempted from further investiga-

tions within the framework of the Section 201 review

concerning the impact of steel imports on local pro-

ducers. This means that imports of slabs and billets

are not affected. The same ruling declared that long

products, fittings and flanges would be the subject of

further investigations. AvestaPolarit takes a positive

view of this decision, as coil imports are not affected

and the Group's deliveries of semi-finished products

to its business area in North America can continue. 

Average cold rolled total selling prices were some

20% above European prices in 2001. Demand was

depressed through 2001 for both bar and plate, with

selling prices below 2000 levels.

Asia
In Japan, domestic demand was very weak during

2001 and Japanese stainless steel producers cut pro-

duction. The situation facing Japanese mills was exa-

cerbated by imports from South Korea, which rose by

almost 50% during the first five months of 2001.

Demand in Taiwan and Korea was also low, promp-

ting a sharp cutback in output by domestic produ-

cers. Despite some weakness in China due to a slow-

EUR/tonne

Quarto Plate Cold Rolled CPP

USD/lb

1

2
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5
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Stainless steel prices*

Nickel price

Ferrochrome price

* European stainless steel transaction prices
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down affecting the re-export of processed products to

the USA in particular, demand for cold rolled materi-

al grew by 13% in 2001, to 1.5 million tonnes, and

demand for hot rolled products also rose strongly by

about 20%. The country's demand for stainless steel is

expected to grow at a rate of 8-10% over the next 5

years. Accession by China to the World Trade

Organisation means that import duties on cold rolled

material will be substantially reduced and this

should help underpin future growth in demand. 

Raw materials
In the 2001 financial year, expenditure on the raw

materials nickel, chromium and molybdenum, inclu-

ding the secondary alloying elements in stainless

steel scrap, represented approximately 50% of the

Group's costs. Raw material expenditure in the year

amounted to EUR 1.4 billion, including EUR 1.0 billi-

on for nickel. 

The extended de-stocking cycle and reduction in

real demand suffered by the stainless steel industry

in 2001 had a major influence on the prices of key raw

materials, which showed considerable weakness

throughout the year. Although speculative activity

continued to produce some volatility in nickel pri-

cing, excess supply in the market resulted in a very

sharp fall in prices over the year. The average LME

nickel cash price for 2001 of USD 2.70/lb compares

with the 2000 average of USD 3.92/lb. Recovery in

nickel consumption is not expected before mid-2002.

The charge chrome market was also extremely

weak and the annual average price fell to USD 0.32/lb

Cr, an all-time low in real terms.

AvestaPolarit's status in the market
The merger between Avesta Sheffield and Outo-

kumpu Steel was finalised at the end of January 2001.

One of the overall targets set by the merger was to

integrate the two companies' sales channels to con-

vey a single image to the market, with minimum dis-

turbance to existing customer relations. Since the

merger, the company has consolidated its position in

Europe and has either defended or grown its market

share in its product sectors. 

Market prospects for stainless steel
Historically, stainless steel consumption has been

very strong, growing in the western world at an

annual rate of around 5.5% since 1980. The growth

trend for cold rolled was even higher during the

1990s at 7.5%. Therefore falling market demand for

stainless steel is unusual considering the strong

underlying growth in terms of actual requirements.

In fact consumption has only fallen on two separate

occasions during the past 25 years: during the oil cri-

sis of 1979-81 and the 1990 recession. 

Even taking a cautious view today as far as the

economic recovery is concerned, it is likely that

inventory levels during 2002 will once again rise,

though consumption is expected to improve by at

least 3-5%. Future growth in stainless steel consump-

tion is expected to follow historical trends. 

A material for the future
There are several reasons for the high rate of growth

enjoyed by stainless steel. The first is its low life cycle

cost. Whilst stainless steel may initially be more

expensive in installations, the material requires very

little maintenance during its service life, which tends

to be much longer than for competing materials.

Another reason is the growth and expansion of larger

groups of affluent consumers, which has in turn cre-

ated a greater need for construction, consumer goods,

transportation, energy, chemicals and water. All of

Change % 

Average annual metal market prices 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 2001/2000

Stainless steel

- transaction price EUR/kg 1.65 2.07 1.30 1.41 1.64 -20.3

- base price EUR/kg 1.28 1.52 1.18 1.28 1.40 -15.8

- conversion margin EUR/kg 0.86 1.08 0.74 0.83 0.93 -20.4

Ferrochrome (Cr-content) USD/lb 0.32 0.41 0.36 0.45 0.46 -22.0

EUR/kg 0.79 0.98 0.75 0.89 0.88 -19.4

Nickel USD/lb 2.70 3.92 2.73 2.09 3.14 -31.1

EUR/kg 6.64 9.35 5.65 4.15 6.04 -29.0

Sources:
Stainless steel: CRU - Germany transaction price, base price and conversion margin (2mm cold rolled 304 sheet). CRU estimate prices for
deliveries made in Germany during the period.
Ferrochrome: CRU - high carbon ferrochrome, 50-55% Cr. Nickel: London Metal Exchange (LME) cash quotations. 
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these sectors are significant users of stainless steel.

The increasing efficiency of industrial processes has

led to greater demands being placed on the materials

used in such applications, and stainless steel is capa-

ble of meeting these demanding requirements. 

The decline in stainless steel prices has also con-

tributed to the material's strong volume growth. This

fall in prices can be shown by using the transaction

price in Germany for 2mm 304 material as a compari-

son to illustrate trends throughout Europe. Using this

method, prices have fallen by 30% during the period

1980-2000 based on ”money of the day” prices, while

at the same time real prices (inflation adjusted) have

more than halved. Also the price of stainless steel has

fallen significantly relative to that of competing mate-

rials.

Many of the developments noted for stainless

steel to date have focused on the material's excellent

corrosion resistance, which will ensure that the mate-

rial continues to play an important role for industries

such as pulp and paper, oil and chemicals. More

recently, attention has been focused on other impor-

tant properties of stainless steel such as its mechani-

cal properties and the possibility to take advantage of

its surface finish in both aesthetic and functional

contexts.

There is little doubt that the properties which

have contributed to growing demand for stainless

steel will continue to be an important consideration

in the future. It is also likely that the downward price

trend will continue in the next few years, both in real

terms and in comparison to competing materials.

Technical developments will continue and enable

higher quality stainless steel to be produced at lower

cost. Efforts to integrate production further will also

continue. These will primarily focus on developing

casting processes for thin slab and thin strip to opti-

mise production at the hot rolling stage. As regards

cold rolling, the trend is moving towards more inte-

grated production units where several production

processes can be handled on a single production line.

Stainless steel is also likely to benefit from the

declining cost of the key alloying elements, nickel

and chrome. In the early 1990s the expected long-

term average price for nickel was expected to be

around USD 4/lb but widespread cost cutting and

the introduction of new refining technology has

brought this down to around USD 3/lb. Similarly for

ferrochrome, a few years ago the expectation was that

long-term prices would average around USD 0.50/lb

whereas today the figure is perceived to be in the

range USD 0.35-0.40/lb.

Consolidation and competition
Large-scale economies are another driver for lower

production costs. In 1976 there were 20 manufactu-

rers of stainless steel in Western Europe, which had

an average production capacity of 70 000 tonnes a

year. In 2001, only four remain, each with an average

melting capacity of about 2 million tonnes. 

The most recent merger has included the stainless

steel units of Usinor (Ugine in Europe, J&L in USA,

Acesita in Brazil, and Thainox in Thailand) and

Arbed (ALZ). This has resulted in the formation of

Arcelor, which has become the world's second largest

group active in the stainless steel market, with an

annual slab melting capacity of 2.5 million tonnes.

CRU estimates that the Arcelor group has a market

share of 25% in Europe, compared to 33% for Krupp

Thyssen Nirosta, 28% for AvestaPolarit and 14% for

Acerinox.

In 2001, Acerinox acquired a 64% stake in the

South African producer Columbus Stainless.

Columbus operates melting facilities and hot and

cold rolling mills. Acerinox also owns North

American Stainless, which operates hot and cold rol-

ling facilities and is currently commissioning a new

melting shop. This group has an overall melting

capacity of about 2.5 million tonnes. 

Index 100 (1980)

Stainless steel

est.

Copper

OECD industrial production

Aluminum

Source: CRU 

Carbon steel

CAGR +5.5%

Stainless steel the fastest growing metal

Source:CRU
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In Japan, Kawasaki and NKK have announced

merger plans and a series of less formal production

agreements, under which certain production units

will focus on certain products.

Global production to increase in the long term
Although production capacity for crude stainless

steel increased only 6% between 1998 and 2001, new

investments will add capacity of approximately four

million tonnes by 2004, corresponding to a growth

rate of 6-8% per year. The production capacity of cold

rolled stainless steel is expected to rise by approxi-

mately 2 million tonnes during the same period.

Europe will account for more than half of the growth

anticipated for crude stainless steel capacity and

around 30% of the growth for cold rolled steel capa-

city. During this period, several major developments

will take place in China but China is nevertheless

expected to remain a net importer for the foreseeable

future. 

Stainless steel has brilliant prospects

Stainless steel is used in a wide variety of applications. In addition to its popularity in everyday applications such as sink units, razor-
blades and cutlery, it is often the preferred material for demanding industrial applications in harsh environments, e.g. offshore installa-
tions, where reliability and safety are paramount. And as stainless steel requires virtually no maintenance, it can offer important environ-
mental and cost benefits. 

In addition to its excellent corrosion resistance, stainless steel is light, strong and aesthetically pleasing, and these properties have
contributed to its increasing popularity in, among others, architectural and structural applications (cladding for walls and facades, rein-
forcement bar, etc) and the automotive segment (exhaust systems).

Further, stainless steel is an excellent choice for applications in the food and beverage sector, the pharmaceuticals industry and in
health care, where hygiene requirements are often critical. 

As price differentials with competing materials continue to shrink, the position of stainless steel can be expected to be further
enhanced. And as new, hitherto unexplored, markets and segments appear on the horizon, the growth potential for stainless steel is
stronger than ever. The message is clear: stainless steel has brilliant prospects.
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The Coil Products business area is

AvestaPolarit's core business and consists

of the steel melting and coil processing sys-

tems in Tornio in Finland, at Avesta, Nyby

and Kloster in Sweden and in Sheffield in the UK.

These facilities are being integrated and developed to

create a world-leading production system distinguis-

hed by high quality and cost efficiency. When the cur-

rent Tornio capital expenditure programme is com-

pleted in December 2002, annual stainless steel slab

melting capacity for the Coil Products business area

will increase from 1.75 million tonnes to

2.75 million tonnes.

Strategies
The Coil Products business area is developing the

Tornio steel mill to create the world's most cost-effici-

ent production facility for stainless steel. An invest-

ment in new integrated rolling, annealing and pick-

ling technology will further improve AvestaPolarit's

competitiveness in the stainless steel market. The

capacity of the existing hot rolling mills in Avesta and

Tornio will be gradually enhanced to match the incre-

asing melting capacity and the coil processing faciliti-

es in Avesta will be developed to create a large-scale,

cost-efficient processing line for both cold rolled and

CPP (Continuously Produced Plate) material. Coil

Products Sheffield will concentrate on refined, surfa-

ce-treated products whilst the mills at Nyby and

Kloster will focus on the growing market for thinner

cold rolled products. In key markets, the sales com-

panies have processing facilities to improve the range

of service to customers.

Capacity enhancement for core 
Coil Products businesses

Pro forma

Net sales by business unit, EUR million 2001 2000

Tornio Integrated Mill 910 1 143

Primary Products 1 124 1 131

Avesta KBR 298 372

Coil Products Sheffield 465 531

Nyby/Kloster Cold Rolled 319 406

Sales within the business area -889 -897

Total 2 227 2 686

Pro forma

Key figures, EUR million 2001 2000

Net sales 2 227 2 686

Operating profit 77 341

Capital employed at year end 1 370 NA

Return on capital employed, % 6 NA

Number of employees 4 009 3 859

Pro forma

Production, 1000 tonnes 2001 2000

Steel slabs 1 456 1 536

Cold rolling mill production

- cold rolled 766 828

- white hot strip 337 363

65%

Share of Group
net

sales

Primary Products 16%

Avesta KBR 7%

Coil
Products
Sheffield 16%

Nyby/Kloster
Cold Rolled 14%

Tornio
Integrated
Mill 47%

Employees by business unit 2001

Financial performance 2001:

Net sales in 2001 were down 17% and operating profit down 77% for the Coil Products business area, compared to 2000 levels. The

decline was primarily attributable to a fall in both selling prices and delivery volumes. Coil Products maintained its market share through-

out 2001.
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Scrap is the main raw material used in the pro-
duction of stainless steel.

The scrap is melted and alloying elements, such
as nickel, molybdenum and chromium, are added.

The cast steel slab is rolled to a length of up to
one kilometre and down to thicknesses of 2-12
millimetres on the hot rolling mill.

Coil Products business units
Tornio Integrated Mill

The Tornio Integrated Mill focuses on standard auste-

nitic grade stainless steel strip and sheet. Upon com-

pletion of the current expansion, Tornio will be the

world's largest integrated facility for stainless steel

production. A special feature in Tornio is the oppor-

tunity for synergies provided by the ferrochrome pro-

duction at the same site. Liquid ferrochrome can be

supplied for the steel melting, and carbon monoxide

gases from the ferrochrome process can replace part

of the liquid petrol gas as fuel in the entire steel pro-

duction chain. The principal strategy of the unit is to

achieve profitable growth through expansionary

investments and by continuously improving the entire

operation.

A major proportion of AvestaPolarit's future capa-

city enhancement will take place at Tornio and is sup-

ported by a capital expenditure programme totalling

EUR 790 million according to the latest estimate.

These investments will be completed during 2002

and the new capacity will start gradually to come on

stream during the second half of 2002.

The capacity of the steel melting shop will increase

from today's 650 000 tonnes per year to 1.65 million

tonnes per year.

Capacity of the hot rolling mill will by 2004 be

increased gradually to one million tonnes per year, at

the same time as the capacity for the production of

cold rolled material will be increased by about 

450 000 tonnes to one million tonnes per year. Growth

in strip products will occur primarily through the

installation of a new integrated production line that

includes cold rolling, annealing, pickling and skin-

pass rolling. This ”RAP-line” will produce finished

products as well as hot band for further processing at

AvestaPolarit's other cold rolling mills. A slitting line

is also being installed at the Terneuzen processing

facility in the Netherlands to improve customer ser-

vice.

Other capital expenditure programmes comple-

ted during 2001 include the start-up of a coil brushing

line and a neutralisation facility, as well as a moder-

nisation of the number two Sendzimir mill at the cold

rolling plant.

Primary goals for continuous improvements are

to shorten lead times, improve delivery reliability,

reduce costs and to maintain high product quality. A

new IT module for production planning was imple-

mented during the summer. This will provide better
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control of the order and supply chain. Delivery relia-

bility was affected during the third quarter due to

start-up and production problems, but these were

solved during the fourth quarter.

Primary Products

The Primary Products business unit includes the mel-

ting shop in Avesta, the SMACC melting shop in

Sheffield and the Steckel rolling mill in Avesta. The

unit supplies stainless steel slabs and hot rolled mate-

rial for further processing at the Group's various rol-

ling mill units.

The goal for the next few years is to develop capa-

city at the melting shop in Avesta to achieve a stable

production rate of 580 000 tonnes per year. A capital

expenditure programme to support this objective was

completed in 2001, when the melting shop also

improved its cost structure and increased production

volumes.

At the SMACC melting shop in Sheffield, an

investment of EUR 22 million in a continuous casting

line for billets and blooms is under way to produce

steel for long products, thereby complementing the

plant's existing slab production. The production

volumes from the melting shop in Degerfors will pro-

gressively be moved to the SMACC facility during

2002-2003 and the melting shop in Degerfors will be

closed. The SMACC melting shop in Sheffield contin-

ued to achieve high and even production levels

during the year.

The Steckel rolling mill in Avesta performed

extremely well during the first half of the year, but

experienced disruptions to production in the second

half caused by start-up problems related to invest-

ments made during the summer shutdown period.

These problems have since been resolved and the

goal of the facility is to increase capacity to one million

tonnes per year.

Avesta KBR

Avesta KBR produces and sells stainless steel pro-

ducts up to two metres in width and in thicknesses

up to 13 millimetres. The business unit is part of the

integrated facility in Avesta. KBR has a unique pro-

duct mix, with both hot rolled and cold rolled pro-

ducts as well as high-alloy, speciality steel grades.

During 2001 KBR initiated a project to enhance its

production capacity from 200 000 tonnes to 330 000

tonnes per year, and this capacity will be reached

towards the end of 2002.

The strip is then coiled before being transferred
to the cold rolling mill.

After an initial annealing process, the hot rolled
coil undergoes cold rolling and final annealing.
During this stage of production, the steel can be
rolled to very thin gauges. 

Stainless steel coil products are cut and slit to a
variety of dimensions, depending on the inten-
ded area of application. 



High strength material, such as duplex grades, are an

important part of the programme to offer cost-bene-

fits to customers. New developments are made in co-

operation with customers and supported by Group

R&D. The driving force behind this development is a

desire to optimise the strength/weight relationship

of stainless steel. 

Coil Products Sheffield

This business unit comprises two manufacturing

sites. The main site is located in Sheffield, and this is

complemented by a smaller site located in Panteg,

South Wales.

The unit in Sheffield manufactures austenitic

stainless steel in the form of cold rolled sheet and

strip. During the year, the unit started work to change

focus from bulk products to niche products that gene-

rate higher returns, and to products for end users.

The aim is to offer a high service level to demanding

customer segments and this would also complement

the bulk production from Tornio.

A plan to improve profitability and lower costs

was formulated during the first half of the year. The

main focus is to improve the business's position in the

market as well as to achieve significant cost savings.

A recent marketing innovation has been the develop-

ment of the SuperBrush™ product, which has grown

quickly and found many applications in white goods,

architectural applications and wine tanks. To better

meet future challenges, the organisation has been

changed and streamlined. One aspect of this has been

that the Billing business unit in the UK, selling

seconds from the business, has been integrated into

Coil Products Sheffield to achieve not only synergies

and greater efficiency, but also a reduction in the out-

put of non-prime material. 

The Panteg unit in Wales concentrates its efforts

on ferritic products, and all austenitic production will

be phased out at this site during 2002. An announce-

ment was made in January 2002 of restructuring at

the Panteg unit to develop a more cost-effective ferri-

tic process.

Nyby/Kloster Cold Rolled

The cold rolling mills Nyby in Torshälla and Kloster

in Långshyttan constitute the Nyby/Kloster Cold

Rolled business unit and manufacture cold rolled

stainless steel strip and sheet.

The Nyby facility specialises in delivering to mar-

kets where thin-gauge, wide strip is used, and in spe-

cial-grade material and downstream products. It also

supplies the Kloster plant and the Group's Swedish

tube production businesses with material. The

Kloster plant specialises in thinner gauge material

than Nyby. Both facilities are highly specialised to

meet customer-specific requirements.

Nyby has completed a capital expenditure pro-

gramme that will increase the facility's capacity for

the production of thinner gauge material and special

grade products. The programme will enable the

weight of cold rolled coil to be increased and the

maximum width of strip to be increased from 1 350

millimetres to 1 500 millimetres.

A robot-controlled cutting system has been intro-

duced at the Kloster plant and a new standard for

tolerances and slitting burr has been established. 

Investments and integration progressing to plan
Production swaps have already taken place between

the various cold rolling mills to optimise the produc-

tion of coil products. Completion of the Tornio capi-

tal expenditure programme will enable more product

swaps to take place. This will contribute to reducing

the cost base for Coil Products as a whole. 

A decision was made in February 2002 to revise

the organisational structure of AvestaPolarit, in order

to better align it to the strategic business develop-

ment framework. All the operating units in Avesta

(melting shop, hot rolling mill and KBR) will be

combined to form a new business unit: the Avesta

Integrated Mill. The SMACC melting shop in

Sheffield will be combined with the Long Products

unit, to which there is a natural link as one of

SMACC's main tasks will be to supply billets for the

production of long products. This revised business

structure will be effective from 1 April 2002, and will

mean discontinuing the current Primary Products

business unit.

18 COIL PRODUCTS
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The Special Products business area consists

of business units with operations that

cover AvestaPolarit's entire production

chain. These businesses are: Ferrochrome,

Hot Rolled Plate, Long Products, Tubes, Fittings, and

Precision Strip. 

The units in Special Products represent businesses

with a higher degree of added value, and in many of

these businesses AvestaPolarit is already

the global market leader.  These units are

being developed to focus on products

with good further growth potential and 

higher margins. Value enhancement and improve-

ments in efficiency are also achieved by their links to

the Coil Products businesses. The units can create and

maintain integrated flows of material and processes,

common process technology and joint distribution

channels, as well as integrated marketing initiatives

to target shared customer groups. 

Special Products business units
Ferrochrome

Operations in the Ferrochrome business unit consist

of the chromium mine and concentrator in Kemi and

a ferrochrome plant in Tornio in Finland. The main

product is charge grade ferrochrome, which is  used

as a raw material in the production of stainless steel

at the nearby integrated melting shop in Tornio and

at AvestaPolarit's other melting shops in Avesta and

Sheffield. Any remaining ferrochrome is sold in the
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Special Products focus on creating
added value 

26%

Pro forma

Net sales by business unit, EUR million 2001 2000

Ferrochrome 96 109

Hot Rolled Plate 195 206

Long Products 248 299

Tubular Products 297 356

Precision Strip 99 96

Sales within the business area -32 -36

Total 903 1 030

Pro forma

Production, 1000 tonnes 2001 2000

Ferrochrome 236 261

Quarto plate 65 74

Long products 209 209

Tubes and tube fittings 60 75

Precision strip 25 27

Share of Group
net

sales

Long
Products 16%

Tubular 
Products 46%

Precision Strip 12% Ferrochrome 9%

Hot Rolled 
Plate 17%

Employees by business unit 2001

Financial performance 2001:

Net sales for the Special Products business area fell by 12% compared with the previous year, as most business units reported lower deli-

very volumes and selling prices. Operating profit was down 75% compared to 2000 levels. As a result of the difficult trading environ-

ment in 2001, profitability for most business units fell, compared with the levels reported in 2000.

Hot Rolled Plate maintained profitability, despite the low level of investment activity in the market. Precision Strip also maintained a

satisfactory level of profitability, as deliveries and selling prices for these products held up well. Volumes for Long Products were similar

to those levels reported for the previous year, but lower selling prices contributed to a decline in profitability. The Tubes and Fittings

businesses were also affected by the low level of investment activity in the market, coupled with pressure on selling prices. Profitability

of the Ferrochrome business unit was adversely affected by the low selling prices for ferrochrome.

Pro forma

Key figures, EUR million 2001 2000

Net sales 903 1 030

Operating profit 26 104

Capital employed at year end 267 NA

Return on capital employed, % 10 NA

Number of employees 3 231 3 248
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open market, primarily to other European stainless

steel producers. The Kemi mine produces approxi-

mately one million tonnes of chromite ore per year

from an open pit mine. The chromite ore is then used

to produce about 260 000 tonnes of ferrochrome

annually.

The strategy for the Ferrochrome business unit is

to maximise the shared value with Coil Products by

providing high-quality ferrochrome at competitive

prices. The key goals are to increase cost efficiency in

order to increase profitability and to further improve

safety and environmental standards in mining and

metallurgical production.

Ferrochrome's capital spending during 2001 was

focused mainly on development of the mining opera-

tions, and this capital expenditure programme,

amounting to approximately EUR 70 million, is pro-

gressing according to plan. The changeover to less

expensive underground mining is expected to occur

in stages after 2003.

AvestaPolarit is the largest producer of ferrochro-

me in Europe.  Its raw material base is secured from

the company's own Kemi chromium mine, where the

ore reserves are abundant and have been estimated to

suffice for well over 50 years at current ferrochrome

production levels.  

Hot Rolled Plate

The Hot Rolled Plate business unit, which is a world

leader in quarto plate, includes the Hot Rolled Plate

production facility in Degerfors and the niche manu-

facturing units AvestaPolarit Press Plate and

AvestaPolarit Prefab in Avesta in Sweden. These are

complemented by six plate service centres based at

strategic locations in Europe. All facilities are closely

linked through joint production offerings of indivi-

dually rolled heavy stainless steel plate, often known

as quarto plate. The total manufacturing capacity for

quarto plate is about 100 000 tonnes per year.

Hot Rolled Plate produces plates in gauges rang-

ing from 5-100 millimetres, in widths of up to 3.2

metres and lengths of up to 14.0 metres. The plates

are used primarily for highly demanding applica-

tions within segments such as offshore, pulp and

paper, chemical tankers, and plants for processing

chemicals, urea and desalination.

AvestaPolarit Press Plate produces press plates,

transport plates and wear plates that are used in the

manufacture of plastic laminates, hard board, ply-

wood and veneer. AvestaPolarit Prefab manufactures

prefabricated products such as suction roll shells,

material sets for pressure vessels and thick-walled

welded pipes. 

Kemi mine production 2001 2000

Ore excavated, million tonnes 1.2 1.3

Chromite concentrates, tonnes 575 100 628 400

Million tonnes Grade

Ore reserves

Proved 54 25% Cr203
Probable 3.3 26% Cr203

Mineral resources

Measured 13 22% Cr203
Indicated 20 28% Cr203
Inferred 72 29% Cr203

The information has been prepared in accordance with the
"Australasian Code for Reporting of Mineral Resources and Ore
Reserves, September 1999". A mineral resource is a deposit, the
extent and grades of which have been assessed by geological
methods. Ore reserves are the economically exploitable part of
the mineral resources defined on the basis of feasibility studies.

The table presents the total tonnes of the deposit. Ore
reserves are not included in mineral resources. The extent of
ore reserves and mineral resources is presented in millions of
tonnes (Mt) and the grades as percentages (%) of Cr203 = chro-
mium oxide.

Ore reserves and mineral resources, 31 December 2001

The pulp and paper industry is a major user of stainless steel.
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The plate service centres offer a wide range of down-

stream processing services to meet the special needs

of customers.

Since the volume of quarto plate is relatively

small but specialised, it is likely that the trend will be

towards a smaller number of producers striving for

cost efficiency and a higher degree of specialisation.

The goal of Hot Rolled Plate is to be at the leading

edge of these expected structural developments.

Focus will therefore be on development of further

specialised steel grades and improved cost efficiency.

The recent investment in a modern roller hearth fur-

nace will play an important part in achieving this

goal. The concentration of plate service centres in

Finland and a reorganisation of several other facilities

have resulted in a strengthened organisation.

Long Products

Long Products' manufacturing units include

Degerfors Stainless, Alloy Steel Rods (ASR) and

AvestaPolarit Welding, and two joint ventures,

Fagersta Stainless and Avesta Valbruna.

Degerfors Stainless is currently responsible for

the production and sales of semi-finished, continu-

ously cast billets and blooms. However, in order to

improve the Group's melting shop structure and

reduce costs it was decided to close the melting shop

in Degerfors, which is the smallest of the four melting

facilities. According to the plan, Degerfors Stainless

will be closed in 2003 and its production volumes will

be transferred to the melting shop in Sheffield. A key

goal during the coming year is to continue providing

customers with excellent quality and service from

Degerfors Stainless until the production of long pro-

ducts has been established at Sheffield. The new cont-

inuous casting facility for billets and blooms at

Sheffield will constitute a basis for further growth

and business development.

ASR is a rod-rolling business, which, in addition

to rounds, supplies special niche products and a

broad range of flat bar in coil, as well as squares, hex-

agon and rebar. ASR was able to improve its compe-

titive edge during the period due to lower feedstock

costs made possible by direct casting billets in

Degerfors. ASR also continued its work to remove

production bottlenecks by investing in descaling.

AvestaPolarit Welding manufactures stainless

steel welding consumables, such as welding electro-

des, flux-cored wire, MIG and TIG wire, welding

strip and chemical products for pickling stainless

steel. AvestaPolarit Welding will develop further the

potential for its latest investment in flux-cored wire

production. At the same time, leading logistics sys-

tems and route-to-market systems will be utilised to

achieve a better service level for its growing customer

base. A subsidiary in Indonesia successfully started

production of covered electrodes during the year.

Fagersta Stainless is a Swedish wire rod producer

and Avesta Valbruna sells stainless steel bars in the

Nordic market. AvestaPolarit holds a 50% stake in

each of these joint ventures. Sandvik Invest AB owns

the remaining 50% of Fagersta Stainless and

Acciaierie Valbruna srl the remaining 50% of Avesta

Valbruna. Both have shown a positive development

during the year. Their feedstock comes partly from

companies in the Group.

Tubular Products

The Tubular Products business unit was reorganised

into two separate business units in November 2001,

Tubes and Fittings, reflecting the two main product

categories. This has provided a clearer structure for

efficient management of each respective product sec-

tor and for further development of the businesses.

This reorganisation will be accompanied by a

legal restructuring, in which Oy JA-RO Ab will be

transferred to become a subsidiary of Avesta Sandvik

Tube (AST) through a sale of shares. AST is currently

owned 75% by AvestaPolarit and 25% by Sandvik

Invest AB. AST will finance the purchase by a share
The food and beverage industry appreciates the hygienic pro-
perties of stainless steel.
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issue, in which Sandvik Invest has declared that it

will not subscribe for new shares. The transfer is

scheduled to take place during the first quarter of

2002, and as a result of the transaction AvestaPolarit's

ownership of AST will increase to about 83%.

Tubes

The Tubes business unit includes the facilities of  the

Avesta Sandvik Tube Group, JARO Tubes and Stelco

Hardy. These businesses produce stainless steel wel-

ded tubes in a variety of dimensions used in a num-

ber of different applications in segments such as the

pulp and paper industry, the chemical and petroche-

mical industries, the dairy and food and beverage

sectors, the automotive industry and in pipelines for

potable water. A majority of the products are made of

austenitic stainless steel using modern and efficient

welding methods, such as MIG, TIG, plasma, high

frequency and laser welding in the production pro-

cesses.

Avesta Sandvik Tube has production facilities in

Sweden, Finland and the Netherlands. Its Helmond

plant in the Netherlands was completely destroyed

by fire in January 2002 (further information on page

45). JARO Tubes has its production in Jakobstad,

Finland. Stelco Hardy is a small tube producer loca-

ted in South Wales in the UK, which focuses on sup-

plying ferritic grade material to key customers.

The Tubes business unit aims to strengthen its

position as one of the leading producers of welded

stainless steel tubes in Europe. This will be achieved

by maintaining a comprehensive product range,

motivated employees, efficient utilisation of available

production technology and effective distribution,

through both AvestaPolarit's own sales companies

and independent distributors.

Fittings

The Fittings business unit comprises the

AvestaPolarit ABE Group and JARO Fittings. The

unit produces stainless steel butt weld fittings, flanges,

threaded fittings and pressure vessels. In the global

fittings industry, AvestaPolarit is the largest producer

in the world of thin walled fittings. 

The AvestaPolarit ABE Group has its head office

in Örnsköldsvik, Sweden, but also has operations in

Finland, Canada, Mexico, Belgium, Estonia and

France. JARO Fittings is located in Jakobstad and

Vetil, Finland. 

The Fittings unit is currently undergoing a

restructuring process aimed at improving efficiency

and strengthening the business unit by identifying

ways of making more efficient  use of existing pro-

duction plants.

Precision Strip

Precision Strip produces thin, narrow, cold rolled

stainless steel and carbon steel strip at its two facilities

in Stocksbridge and Meadowhall in the UK. Precision

strip material is used in a broad range of applications,

such as heat exchangers, surgical instruments, razor

blades and stainless steel foil. Precision Strip is the

market leader in its target market segments.

The growth strategy for Precision Strip is to target

those specific market segments which offer the grea-

test earnings potential for the future. Through invest-

ment in both equipment and personnel, Precision

Strip will achieve improved product quality and ser-

vice, continue to lower operating costs and find

growth in the relatively fast-growing precision strip

segment.

An important element for implementation of this

strategy is a capital expenditure programme which

includes an investment in a cold rolling mill. A

recently completed project to transform the business

process will increase efficiency considerably, lower

costs and improve customer service. An IT develop-

ment programme in support of altered methods of

working and integration of the production facilities

in Stocksbridge and Meadowhall is being introduced.

Investments are also being made in training and

development to support new ways of doing business

Stainless steel hose clamp.
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The North America business area consists of

three production facilities for quarto plate,

bar, and pipe and pipe fittings. The busi-

ness area is also responsible for the marke-

ting, sales and distribution of AvestaPolarit's

European produced steel products in the North

American free-trade market (NAFTA).

The most important goal of the business area is to

build strong partnerships with customers by being

sensitive to customer needs and by being easy to do

business with. In order to achieve this goal, efforts

have been made to improve customer service and

achieve more flexible product flows and reduced cost

levels, while maintaining a structure that brings the

customer closer to the operations.

Operations are organised in a business unit struc-

ture, where each unit is responsible for the entire

business process, from the procurement of semi-finished

products to sales and delivery. At the business area's

headquarters in Schaumburg, Illinois, a small staff

handles functions such as administration, finance/

treasury management and information technology.

Other functions based in Schaumburg

include coil and welding sales and ser-

vice. The business area also has business

units located in New Castle, Indiana, where

quarto plate is produced, in Wildwood, Florida,

where tubular products are made, and in Richburg,

South Carolina, where long products are manufactured.

During 2001, the North America business area

continued to develop and strengthen its efforts to

provide customers with high value and quality ser-

vice. After the formation of AvestaPolarit, a combined

group was created to manage coil products business

in the region, organised as two-person teams with

focus on marketing and customers. This was done to

ensure the shortest possible contact routes between

customers in North America and the Group's

European steel mills. The business unit for hot rolled

plate continued its work to ensure timely shipments

with good results. The business unit for the produc-

tion of bar installed new equipment for finishing and

surface treatment during the fourth quarter, which

added new capacity, cut lead times and improved

delivery reliability. The business unit for pipes and

fittings started a campaign for increasing value for

customers.

Continuing technical improvements will allow

the North America business area to maintain its com-

petitiveness. Both the public web site and the extra-

net for customers were upgraded during 2001. A

recent added application allows for automatic messa-

ges to be sent to customers via e-mail as soon as a

shipment has been made.

AvestaPolarit's face in the 
North American market

9%

Pro forma

Key figures, EUR million 2001 2000

Net sales 285 324

Operating profit -6 11

Capital employed at year end 3 NA

Return on capital employed,% neg. NA

Number of employees 360 363

Production, 1000 tonnes

Quarto plate, bar and tubes 75 74

Financial performance 2001:

The trading environment in the USA remained difficult throughout the year and deteriorated further after the events of 11 September 2001.

Although production within the North America business area ran smoothly, selling prices were down compared to the previous year.

Net sales for the business area declined by 12% compared to 2000 figures and the business area reported an operating loss, with its pipe

business particularly affected by reduced conversion margins.

Comments on the Section 201 steel import proceedings are given in the Directors’ report, page 44.

Share of Group
net

sales
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AvestaPolarit is enhancing its long products capabilities in North America.
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Astrong presence in local markets is an

important part of AvestaPolarit's formu-

la for success. By being close to its mar-

kets, the Group can offer customers

unparalleled service for all types of products through

a local or regional presence. AvestaPolarit currently

has sales and distribution channels in 52 countries,

either in the form of its own sales offices or through

representatives. The Group has its own sales offices

for coil and special products in 32 countries, where

over 900 people are employed. The steel mills also

have sales personnel who co-operate closely with

sales company staff and customers. 

The Coil Products business area accounts for

about two-thirds of AvestaPolarit's total net sales. A

steering group co-ordinates the sales of coil products

and continuously monitors the development of mar-

kets and prices. This group consists of managers who

have been assigned responsibility for markets in four

regions: the British Isles, Europe, Scandinavia and the

rest of the world. The managers are responsible for

co-ordinating all coil sales in their respective markets,

regardless of where the material for the order was

produced, and also handle the contacts with the sales

offices and sales representatives in those markets.

Warehousing and processing facilities in key mar-

kets guarantee short lead times to local customers

and enable the Group to deliver customised products

to order. In addition to adding value, processing ser-

vices such as slitting or cutting-to-length mean that

customers need not invest in cutting equipment of

their own.

The Special Products business units utilise the

AvestaPolarit network of sales companies as well as

independent agents for the distribution and sale of

their products. The sales of semi-finished products by

the Long Products business unit are mainly directed

to processors or end-users. The Hot Rolled Plate busi-

ness unit operates six plate service centres. These faci-

lities, which are located in Sweden, the UK, Italy,

Finland, Germany and the Netherlands, offer cust-

omised downstream processing and sales of hot rol-

led plate products close to the customer.

The North America business area has a separate

sales organisation for its own production of plate,

pipe and bar, which also handles the sale of coil pro-

ducts and welding consumables imported from the

Group's European mills.

Major integration effort
The sales and marketing organisations of Avesta

Sheffield and Outokumpu Steel were integrated at an

early stage in order to maximise the efficiency of the

new company. This integration effort was to be com-

pleted before the end of June 2001, which was an

ambitious schedule. The natural step was to separate

Outokumpu Steel's sales organisation from the

Outokumpu Group and merge it into Avesta

Sheffield's existing organisation. Outokumpu Steel

had a smaller sales organisation and greater concen-

tration on direct sales, since the bulk of its production

originated from a single location: the integrated mill

in Tornio. Avesta Sheffield's organisation was more

diversified, with greater reliance on local sales offices,

a broader range of products and more steel mills. The

geographical move was made easier by the fact that

the sales organisations of both companies were repre-

sented largely in the same areas. Common IT systems

were promptly installed to facilitate the integration.

A common reporting system for sales was also deve-

loped and is now in the process of being installed.

The ambitious goal was achieved with the inte-

Proximity to the market gives 
competitive advantage

Other countries 2%
Asia 10%

North
America 11%

Nordic
countries 19 %

Other
European
countries 58%

Sales by market area 2001
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gration being completed to plan. AvestaPolarit has

retained or increased its market shares and retained

its customer base in the most important market areas.

Strategies for growth
The large capacity increase that will result from

the present capital expenditure programme places

great demands on the sales organisation. The overri-

ding goal is to grow faster than the market as a

whole. In order to create an optimum chain from pro-

duction to customer, detailed business plans will be

drawn up for all key markets. These plans will be

based on production capacity as well as local market

conditions.

The existing organisation is considered to be ade-

quate to handle the increased volumes. 

In the fast growing Asian market, sales will grow

by establishing partnerships with, among others, dis-

tributors. In recognition of the importance of this

market to the Group, action was taken in 2001 to reor-

ganise and strengthen the Group's sales companies in

Hong Kong, Singapore and Japan. This market will

play a large role as an outlet for the increased pro-

duction. Europe is still regarded as the Group's main

market.

Efficient logistics
Optimising logistics is a major challenge but also a

good opportunity for AvestaPolarit to improve both

its customer service and profitability. The Group's

production facilities are in some cases located far

from their main markets and the challenge is there-

fore to identify and offer rapid and flexible logistics

solutions that are also cost-efficient. The strategy is to

reduce transportation as much as possible, to transfer

as much transportation as possible from road to rail

and sea, and to co-ordinate transports to achieve lar-

ger volumes per shipment. The goal is to limit the use

of road transport for the final stage of delivery to the

customer's premises. As the Group is a large buyer of

transportation services, improvements in the cost-

efficiency of AvestaPolarit's logistics are anticipated.

Pro forma

Other operations - net sales by unit

EUR million 2001 2000

Sales and distribution 1 198 1 383

Billing Metal Trading 83 78

Corporate Management 36 6

Sales within other operations -45 -8

Total 1 272 1 459

Other operations - personnel by unit

Sales and distribution 918 902

Billing Metal Trading 15 41

Corporate Management 81 69

Corporate and site services 390 430

Total 1 404 1 442
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Hans Jacobsson, head of refining at the Avesta plant.
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To develop and retain a competent and

motivated staff is central to the success of

AvestaPolarit. Consequently the Group's

human resources (HR) management has a

key role to play at all levels of the organisation.

AvestaPolarit's employees come from varying lingu-

istic and cultural backgrounds, and provide the

Group with essential knowledge and expertise in a

wide range of disciplines. An important challenge for

AvestaPolarit's HR management is to meet the edu-

cation and training needs of each of these professio-

nal categories, to ensure that AvestaPolarit can main-

tain its leading position in the stainless steel industry.

Clear business-related strategies and goals
The overall strategy for AvestaPolarit's HR manage-

ment is to support the business strategies by creating

a culture where skilled employees may thrive and

prosper. The current five-year plan for HR manage-

ment activities has targeted five key areas:

- to implement a common HR policy, 

- to control personnel costs, 

- to recruit and retain key individuals, 

- to adopt a reward system that supports the business 

strategies,

- to ensure that health and safety aspects remain in focus.

Encouraging active participation
AvestaPolarit's vision to be "Best in stainless" presu-

mes that all employees can embrace an ethical code of

conduct that reinforces AvestaPolarit's reputation as a

reliable, trustworthy company that is committed to

honest and prudent business principles. This also

implies a strong commitment to basic rights such as

safety in the workplace and to principles of fairness

and equality for all employees.

AvestaPolarit seeks to create a culture of constant

improvement, which emphasises continuous compe-

tence development.

Establishing a positive work atmosphere, in

which individuals are encouraged to take an active

part in the business, is seen as a pre-requisite for com-

mitment and motivation. By basing annual perfor-

mance reviews on a personal dialogue, managers and

supervisors are able to encourage open communica-

tion with their staff and identify optimum areas of

development for the individuals and the Group.

Emphasis is also put on effective and open communi-

cation throughout the Group, and AvestaPolarit pro-

motes the use of modern information technology to

effectively share information and knowledge.

Focus on competence management in 
a multicultural business

Special
Products 36%

Other 16%

North America 4%

Coil
Products 44%

Employees by business area 2001

31 December 2001 Sweden Finland UK USA Other Total

Total number of employees 3 286 2 635 1 697 361 1 025 9 004

Average age, years 44.0 41.4 41.0 43.7 40.0 42.0

Average period of employment, years 19.0 14.5 18.0 11.9 8.0 14.3

University degree, % 7.7 5.7 13.0 16.0 15.0 11.5

Men/women, % 86/14 83/17 91/9 85/15 67/33 82/18
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A year of basic integration activities 
Integrating AvestaPolarit's multicultural organisa-

tion, which includes employees of many different

nationalities from a variety of backgrounds, has been

a key challenge. During the year, the HR staff has

been actively involved in this integration process,

and has focused on establishing new patterns of co-

operation and common goals, as well as on drafting a

new Group-wide HR policy, which would effectively

integrate the principles formerly applied by Avesta

Sheffield and Outokumpu Steel.

One measure of the extent to which the merger

has impacted the work climate is personnel turnover.

Whilst mergers often give rise to a higher turnover

rate, it is nevertheless important for the new compa-

ny to retain its key personnel during the crucial peri-

od of post-merger reorganisation and restructuring.

During the year, only 12% of AvestaPolarit's mana-

gers left the Group. The number is even lower among

other categories of personnel.

AvestaPolarit has good relations with the trade

union organisations in all those countries where the

Group has operations. Discussions held with the

union organisations during the year have led to an

agreement regarding the formation of an employee

forum in accordance with EU directives.

AvestaPolarit has no personnel representatives on

its Board of Directors, but an Employee Committee

comprising nine employee representatives from

Sweden, Finland  and the UK has been set up to pro-

mote a constructive dialogue between employee

representatives and corporate management. 

Competence development projects
Several competence development projects were star-

ted during the year. These included leadership trai-

ning programmes and e-learning modules.

An international induction programme for gradu-

ates was started to help AvestaPolarit develop and

retain key competence. Nurturing talent and allo-

wing it to grow by giving employees an opportunity

to take up positions in other areas of the organisation,

occasionally by crossing national borders, is regarded

as one of the HR function's key goals. Increasing

mobility of labour is also a target, offering an excel-

lent way of maximising the degree of internal recruit-

ment for filling vacancies throughout the Group.

An e-learning pilot project was launched as a part

of the competence development effort. E-learning is

primarily intended to refresh knowledge and to com-

plement traditional training. By using e-learning

tools, the time spent on training can be more effici-

ently utilised and costs can be reduced.

Special HR project for Degerfors
The plan announced in August to close Degerfors

Stainless by mid-2003 will lead to the loss of about

330 jobs at AvestaPolarit in Degerfors, Sweden. Since

two units - Degerfors Stainless and Hot Rolled Plate -

share the same site and are parts of the same company,

all employees at Degerfors were initially given notice

according to local labour regulations. Local negotia-

tions according to the Swedish Act on Co-determina-

tion at Work were promptly initiated in order to redu-

ce the lingering uncertainty about the impact of the

closure and to be able to proceed swiftly with the

necessary planning for establishing the future organi-

sation for the Hot Rolled Plate business unit, which

will continue to operate at the site.

The closure of Degerfors Stainless will occur in

steps by mid-2003, in parallel with the transfer of bil-

let casting operations to the Group's melting shop in

Sheffield. The 1-2 year closure schedule is a major

challenge and entails a change process, for which a

special Degerfors HR project has been set up. The aim

of the project is to ensure that everything is handled

responsibly and in the best interests of all parties - the

employees concerned, the local community and the

AvestaPolarit Group as a whole. AvestaPolarit has

offered to assist with new jobs within the Group for

those affected by the closure and also to offer other

types of support, e.g. with retraining or early retire-

ment packages.

Highlighting health and safety 
AvestaPolarit is committed to continuous improve-

ment in the working environment, highlighting the

need for rigorous health and safety standards.

Everyone in the company is responsible for maintai-

ning health and safety by adhering to set rules and

regulations. Local managers are responsible for ensu-

ring that all due procedures are strictly followed and

also for promoting a positive health and safety cultu-

re within each organisation. Development efforts

focus on establishing safer ways of working, effective

training initiatives and more detailed monitoring

systems.
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AvestaPolarit's vision is to be the leading

supplier of stainless steel. The company

also wishes to be known and respected

for its contributions to environmental

protection. AvestaPolarit promotes sustainable deve-

lopment, which requires integration and balance

among three key elements: the environment, economy

and society. 

Environmental policy
During the year, AvestaPolarit has adopted an envi-

ronmental policy that will guide the Group in all

aspects of its operations.

AvestaPolarit will strive to reduce pollution by

being aware of the importance of environmental pro-

tection and the principles of sustainable develop-

ment. The Group will meet environmental legisla-

tion, as well as all other relevant requirements placed

upon it. The goal is to achieve continuous improve-

ments in performance and to reduce the environmen-

tal impact of the business.

AvestaPolarit will also contribute to the develop-

ment of innovative solutions to reduce the environ-

mental impact of its operations. Information about

the progress made in this area will be communicated

throughout the organisation to maximise the effect of

all new achievements.

AvestaPolarit believes in an open dialogue about

environmental issues concerning its operations and

products. The Group's stakeholders will receive all

appropriate information required to appreciate the

environmental impact of the business.

The policy places great emphasis on the need to

install and operate environmental management sys-

tems and significant reductions in waste, water usage

and packaging costs have already resulted from the

implementation of such systems.

Responsibility for implementing the environmen-

tal policy lies with AvestaPolarit's management. Each

and every business in the organisation must develop

a programme to meet the requirements of the policy.

This includes making all employees aware of and

training them in environmental issues. 

Environment-friendly steel
The intrinsic properties of stainless steel alone contri-

bute to sustainable development, since at least 95%

can be recycled and reprocessed with no loss of quality.

Stainless steel's natural resistance to corrosion also

makes it an environment-friendly choice. This contri-

butes to long life cycles for products made with stain-

less steel and eliminates the need for surface treat-

ment and protection such as painting, which can be

harmful to the environment.

Stainless steel has many properties which indi-

rectly help reduce the environmental impact of

industrial production. The excellent mechanical pro-

perties of stainless steel, which include higher

strength, mean that many products and components

can be made smaller and lighter with retained safety

margins. These qualities, and other properties unique

Committed to safeguarding the 
environment

Winter landscape in Tornio, Finland.
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to stainless steel (minimum maintenance require-

ments, corrosion resistance in a wide range of service

environments), enable reductions to be achieved in

the consumption of primary raw materials and ener-

gy and also offer certain cost benefits for customers.

Environmental improvements during 2001
AvestaPolarit's production methods are subject to

continual environmental audit. Parts of the Group's

business operations are already certified according to

generally accepted international standards for envi-

ronmental management. Others are in the process of

preparing for accreditation. All major units will have

completed this work by 2003.

The environmental work at Tornio has been closely

monitored during 2001. Metallic emissions to waste-

water remained far below permissible levels at the

facility. New emission levels to take into account the

capacity development were approved by the approp-

riate environmental authorities in October 2001 and

January 2002.  

The investment in the refurbishment of the anne-

aling and pickling line at KBR in Avesta will reduce

the levels of nitrogen oxides (NOx) emitted by the

fuel for the annealing furnace. This will result in

lower NOx emissions despite increased capacity.

Further, an improved system for handling acids will

lead to lower acid consumption. The new reheating

furnace will be equipped with oxy burners, which

will reduce oil consumption.

A new method of recycling pickling acid introdu-

ced at the Nyby plant has significantly reduced the

nitrogen content of the wastewater.

The installation of a selective catalytic reduction

system on the pickling lines at the Sheffield cold rol-

ling mill has reduced NOx emissions by 95%.

Modification of the slag process at the SMACC

melting shop in Sheffield has made it possible to use

20 000 tonnes of waste product for road-making

instead of sending it to landfill sites.

R&D is currently working on further developing

methods to minimise the environmental impact of

pickling processes at the various facilities. The goal is

to recover metal oxides and acids from the residual

product after the pickling bath through a neutralisa-

tion process, or directly from the bath. When it comes

to the latter alternative, the main challenge is to find

reliable methods of separating appropriate compo-

nents after the pickling bath in a manner which ena-

bles them to be reintroduced in solid form.

Nickel Chromium

FeCr plant Steel plant Production
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Average metal content of effluent from 
the Sheffield treatment plant

% of 1992 data

Dust emissions at Avesta melting shop

Total dust emissions at Tornio site

kg/tonnes of produced steel

Emissions t/a tonnes of produced steel
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Social Economic

Environmental

Improving
quality of
life through
the use of an
environmentally
friendly material.

A highly
recyclable

material with
low life cycle

costs.

A growth industry providing
income and jobs worldwide.

Stainless steel 
and sustainable

development
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In order to live up to the vision of being  "Best in

stainless", AvestaPolarit is constantly seeking to

improve production processes, optimise pro-

duct properties and create solutions for specific

applications. Advanced research and development

and efficient production technology are crucial for

reaching these goals.

The merger has enabled Avesta Sheffield's tradi-

tion of market and application-oriented product

development to be combined with Outokumpu

Steel's focus on process development and production

technology. The integration achieved during 2001 has

created a framework within which these complemen-

tary traditions can be used effectively to achieve the

new Group's goals. Guiding principles have been to

blend a centralised and a decentralised structure and

to appoint a network of experts to handle special pro-

jects, thus producing the best balance between long-

term and current development activities.

Investments in R&D in 2001 totalled about 

EUR 13 million, of which EUR 2 million related to ser-

vices purchased from the Corus Group and the

Outokumpu Group, and from research institutions

and universities. During the year, AvestaPolarit has

co-ordinated and participated in a number of projects

financed by the European Commission. At

AvestaPolarit, around 200 people work with R&D

issues.

Research centres in Avesta and Tornio
Most of the R&D personnel are employed at the

Group's two research centres in Avesta and Tornio.

The Avesta research centre focuses on product and

application development, whilst the research centre

in Tornio works primarily with process development

and quality improvement projects pertaining to the

production processes. A smaller group in Sheffield

concentrates on more sophisticated surface treatment

methods.

The Avesta centre has advanced equipment for

studying corrosion in different environments, inclu-

ding very high temperatures. A new forming labora-

tory, equipped with a computer-controlled laboratory

press, which has a capacity of 120 tonnes, is now

being used to serve both internal and external customers.

The Tornio centre is well suited for carrying out

the full range of process-analytical studies, and for

performing computer simulations of processes and

operations. The centre also has an advanced pilot

facility for simulating stainless steel production

processes.

Harmonisation of R&D and Group strategies
The R&D strategy is directly linked to the strategies

of the Group and the business units. Most projects are

defined by the business units and conducted together

with R&D, although some strategic, long-term R&D

projects are initiated and financed by the Group.

The primary role of R&D is to develop and maxi-

mise the existing technical knowledge and skills wit-

hin the Group. 

Researching and developing the steels
of the future
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Radio frequency interference 
shielding for electrical appliances.

In product development, the work to develop new

alloys continues, as do the initiatives regarding defi-

ning performance requirements for materials in con-

struction and design. Design aspects for stainless

steel are becoming increasingly important in the con-

struction and transportation segments. Some areas of

development, e.g. fuel cells, where the potential for

stainless steel is considerable, are being closely moni-

tored in joint projects with appropriate partners.

In process development, the focus is on efficient

production and measures to reduce the environmen-

tal impact of production and product quality. In order

to promote knowledge sharing in process develop-

ment research, seven expert groups have been for-

med to link the business units and R&D units and

exchange information on technological develop-

ments in their respective fields. By sharing knowled-

ge and experiences, these groups aim to raise compe-
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The new Tornio RAP 5 line

1 Entry

2 Tandem Mill 3 Annealing and pickling

4 Skin Pass Mill

5 Exit

tence and technological awareness within the Group

and define the focus of R&D within each specialised area.

It is vital that marketing and sales support staff have

a good applications knowledge and basic understan-

ding of how stainless steel reacts to different manu-

facturing processes. In addition to responsibility for

supplying technical data to support marketing and

sales efforts, R&D staff participate in internal and

external training seminars.

Projects
R&D projects cover a broad spectrum of areas, rang-

ing from quick trouble-shooting techniques to resear-

ching the effects of corrosion in new applications to

studying the emergence of new technologies and

their potential areas of use within the Group.

The research in and development of new alloys is

an important area, and here the focus has been on

developing competitive and improved properties in

stainless steel whilst reducing the alloy content. A

new type of duplex steel, known as Lean Duplex and

designed especially for rebar applications, is currently

undergoing tests for approval by the authorities.

New equipment for studying corrosion at high tem-

peratures is an excellent tool for developing new

alloys that can offer a cost-efficient alternative to

AvestaPolarit's established high-temperature micro-

alloy grades.

New hygienic surface qualities, such as HyClean,

have been developed for the food industry, whilst for

architectural applications, sophisticated polished and

brushed surface qualities have been developed.

In recent years, there has been a growing interest

in ultra-high strength steels, particularly from the

agricultural, construction and automotive sectors.

These steels are now marketed by the Group under

the HyTensTM trademark, with a focus on new appli-

cation areas. The tensile strength of modern ultra-

high strength stainless steels can be as high as 

2000 mm2. Materials with such a high tensile strength

do not normally respond well to forming, but, to

resolve this, a special method has now been develo-

ped specifically for forming such steels, BlancForm.

During the year, ultra-high strength stainless steels

have been used in numerous commercial applications.

Austenitic stainless steel grades retain their

strength at higher temperatures better than common

structural steel. To make carbon steel structures fire-

resistant, expensive coatings are required. Stainless

steel, however, can often be used without any coa-

ting. Major research efforts are under way to increase

awareness of this fact and to specify limits for the

steel grades that can be used in such applications.

This is a joint project with other European producers

of stainless steel and the leading European research

institutions in this field.

In process development, the focus has been on

developing new annealing and pickling lines in Nyby

and Avesta, and on detailed process design for the

unique, integrated rolling, annealing and pickling

line (RAP line) in Tornio. Other activities include a

project to design and develop a cost-efficient process

for ferritic steel grades. Environmental initiatives

have also been a priority area during the year.

The plan for the expansion of operations in Tornio

has been a challenge for R&D. New operating models

have been developed for continuous casting and hot

rolling, and for the new RAP line.
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The main goal of AvestaPolarit's activities in

the area of information systems and infor-

mation technology (IS/IT) is to enable and

support efficient and increasingly advan-

ced business processes, decrease transaction costs

and improve business integration. The prime objective

is to achieve seamless integration of internal systems

for effective and cost-efficient process steering and

knowledge management. Integration with external

partners is also beginning to play an increasingly cen-

tral role in the IT area. 

AvestaPolarit's IT systems handle everything

from production process monitoring to supply chain

management, order handling and office automation. 

The AvestaPolarit Group currently employs about

230 people working directly with IT issues. It is

important for the Group to retain the high level of

competence it has access to today so that the Group

can keep up with developments in IT and defend its

leading position in the future. The Group has a subsi-

diary company dedicated to IT, which provides IT

services for corporate functions and business units.

The company's managing director reports directly to

the Chief Information Officer.

Main projects in 2001 focused on new infra-
structure and sophisticated systems 
Following the merger, initial efforts to build up

AvestaPolarit's IT infrastructure focused on linking

existing systems and services. This involved not only

combining the networks of the two merged companies,

but also separating AvestaPolarit's network from that

of the Outokumpu Group, to which Outokumpu

Steel was formerly linked. 

The significant benefits of Internet technology,

enabling fast and effective communication, prompted

AvestaPolarit to develop a new Internet Web site and

Group-wide intranet. Both of these were ready in a

basic version in time for the launch of the new Group. 

Following completion of the basic network inte-

gration, priority was given to projects aimed at redu-

cing the number of systems, in order to simplify IT

management and reduce maintenance costs. One

example was the decision to install a common e-mail

system for the entire Group, to be implemented in

2002. Another priority area has been the improve-

ment of business processes, starting with analysis of

main work processes and the drafting of systems

requirements. This work has progressed well and has

been complemented by the introduction of improved

project management tools, which have been made

available to all employees throughout the Group.

Standardisation of the Group's IT infrastructure

and applications will be an ongoing process in order

to achieve faster and simpler development and a

more cost efficient support of existing systems and

equipment.

A new system for financial consolidation –

Hyperion – was introduced during the year, and the

ambitious timetable called for its implementation in

time for the Q3 interim report in 2001. The new sys-

tem offers excellent opportunities for further deve-

lopment and streamlining of the consolidation and

reporting process, and also for achieving further time

and cost savings.

During 2001, much time and effort was devoted

IT systems to support advanced business
processes
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to soft issues to promote co-operation after the mer-

ger. By recognising and respecting differences and by

sharing knowledge and experiences, IT integration

activities were able to proceed smoothly, and this

achievement now opens the way for further impro-

vements in efficiency.

High priority for security of information
Security of information is a high-priority issue for

AvestaPolarit. The Group operates numerous business-

critical systems, which demand an infrastructure that

can offer the highest level of security and reliability.

Systems integrity is also a prerequisite for successful

e-commerce. AvestaPolarit seeks to protect its net-

works from unauthorised access by investing in tools

that give control of the network traffic and allow

partners and internal users to engage in transactions

over a secure network. 

Clear and effective guidelines and instructions on

the protection of sensitive information as well as the

communications channels are an important element

of the Group's risk management programme. The

goal is to strike a balance between critical security

measures, that are necessary to safeguard the inter-

ests of the Group and its business partners, and over-

ly exaggerated security measures that could hamper

effective communication. To ensure the highest of

standards, the Group uses the ISO/IEC17799 stan-

dard as its basic platform for work related to security

of information.

AvestaPolarit´s Internet Web site is constantly being developed to provide better service to customers, investors and other important
stakeholders.
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Although a key element in the formation

of AvestaPolarit was the reduction of

business risk, the business and the

financial position of the Group may still

be directly or indirectly affected by a number of exter-

nal factors, some of which are beyond the control of

AvestaPolarit. In particular, the Group operates in

international markets and is subject to those external

influences, such as industry and market factors and

the risks of conducting business activities in foreign

markets, which are a feature of contemporary busi-

ness life. Risk in global terms is a large and complex

issue. Business transactions in the Group's home

markets are relatively straightforward, but transac-

ting business in another country involves a range of

factors such as cultural differences, legal barriers,

political barriers and different business traditions

and practices.

Corporate governance is also increasing in impor-

tance to the Group's international stakeholders as

they come to expect higher standards from businesses. 

Corporate governance
The Board of Directors is committed to promoting the

highest standards of corporate governance within the

company. A summary of the principles of corporate

governance adopted by the company is given on

pages 87 to 88 of this Annual Report.

Internal control
The Chief Executive Officer has overall responsibility

for the day-to-day management of the Group in

accordance with the guidelines provided by the

Board. To fulfil this responsibility there is a planning,

control and performance management framework

within which each of the Group's business units ope-

rates. Within this framework, the management of

each of the business units considers strategic, opera-

tional, commercial and financial issues, and the asso-

ciated risks. This framework includes:

• Business strategy reviews, for five years.

• Annual operating plans and quarterly rolling 

re-forecasts.

• Capital expenditure approval procedures.

• Monthly reporting to the Executive Committee and

to the Board.

• Financial strategy, including assessment of the 

financial risks related to foreign currency exposure,

debt maturity and liquidity.

Risk management
The risk factors deemed to have the greatest potenti-

al impact on the operations and financial results of

AvestaPolarit are described below, together with

indications of some of the risk management practices

followed by the Group:

• Industry and market factors 

• Globalisation and risks of conducting business 

activities in foreign markets 

• Competitors' own activities and deterioration of 

the Group's relative cost position

• Exposure to currency exchange rate fluctuations

• Exposure to environmental issues

• Exposure to raw material and energy price 

fluctuations

• Dependence on specific countries and suppliers for

raw material supplies

• Disruption to production of critical operations

• Availability of adequate financing for the Group

• Difficulties in attracting personnel with the desired

qualifications.

The stainless steel industry is characterised by signi-

ficant volatility in apparent demand and selling pri-

ces, related to cycles in the business and economic

environment. Part of this volatility relates to the effect

on nickel prices of speculative activity. The key to

countering adverse macro economic conditions is to

have a strong Group, with a low cost base and supe-

rior customer service. The current expansion of the

Tornio site into the world's lowest cost stainless steel

Risk management
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manufacturing facility will enhance the Group's abili-

ty to withstand cyclical downturns.

AvestaPolarit operates in a global market. The

Group is therefore exposed to the potential changes

in political, economic, or social conditions, particular-

ly in emerging markets. The Group's main market

Europe is not regarded as an area of risk. In North

America, the Group has its own manufacturing ope-

rations and sales network. The Group is represented

in its other main markets by wholly-owned sales

companies, ensuring that detailed information on

local market conditions in key countries is always

available. The Group is not dependent to any signifi-

cant degree on any one individual customer.

The Group operates a corporate treasury function

which manages, in a non-speculative manner, finan-

cial risks related to funding, interest rates and foreign

currency. The Group's foreign exchange policy with

regard to transaction exposure is to fully hedge recei-

vables, payables and other contractual commercial

items, combined with some hedging of forecast cash

flows.

Raw materials are the major cost item in stainless

steel production. The Group's raw material supplies

are secured through medium term contracts, ranging

generally from one to three years duration and esta-

blished, predominantly, with major, global, integra-

ted producers. Supply risk is managed by maintai-

ning, where possible, a global network of suppliers

and no excessive concentration in one particular geo-

graphical area. However, the nature of the raw mate-

rials used in the manufacture of stainless steel means

that the ability to spread sourcing is limited. The

Group has a clear policy not to speculate on raw

material prices. Price exposure - essentially on nickel

- on fixed price sales contracts is controlled by using

the forward pricing mechanisms offered by the

London Metal Exchange. Movements in prices are

naturally hedged through the operation of the Alloy

Adjustment Factor ('AAF'). The AAF is an additional

element in the total stainless steel selling price invoi-

ced to customers, and seeks to recover changes in

alloy costs in the Group's raw material purchases.

The Group reduces its primary alloy require-

ments and improves cost efficiency by recycling

around 850 000 tonnes of stainless steel scrap per

year. The Group aims to maximise the intake of

secondary raw materials but recognises the need to

strike a sensible balance between primary and secon-

dary raw material commitments.

The Group considers security of its operational

performance as a high priority and uses structured

and systematic risk management in this area. To

reduce its exposure to catastrophe losses, Avesta-

Polarit uses insurance, most of which is arranged

through a wholly-owned subsidiary which reinsures

catastrophe risks with the external insurance market.

Although the Group considers it has procedures

in place to monitor those risk factors which could sig-

nificantly affect its operations, it is not possible to

provide absolute assurance that protection is in place

against all possible risks which could affect the business.

The Finnish artist Eero Hiironen uses stainless steel as a material in his artwork.
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Sensitivity analysis
Selling prices and volumes

The earnings of AvestaPolarit are sensitive to changes

in selling prices and sales volumes. Demand and sup-

ply in the stainless steel industry are cyclical, leading

to imbalances in world supply and demand from

time to time. The following sensitivities illustrate

how Group profitability is affected by changes in

average conversion margins and deliveries (sensitivi-

ties relate to year 2001 profitability, with all other fac-

tors remaining constant):

Currency effects

AvestaPolarit has operations in several countries and

markets its products throughout the world. The pro-

fitability of the Group is therefore affected by move-

ments in exchange rates. The key exposures that

AvestaPolarit faces are that its sales are predominant-

ly denominated in EUR but it has SEK-denominated

operating costs in Sweden, GBP-denominated opera-

ting costs in the United Kingdom and USD-denomi-

nated operating costs in the USA. The large USD cash

flows in both raw material purchases and USD deno-

minated sales largely offset each other. The following

sensitivities illustrate the effect on Group profitabili-

ty of changes in the SEK, GBP and USD exchange

rates against the EUR (sensitivities relate to year 2001

profitability, with all other exchange rates being con-

stant against the EUR):

Raw material prices

The Group operates the AAF, which seeks to recover

changes in the prices of alloys through an alloy sur-

charge included in the total selling price of stainless

steel. However, speculative activity by stainless steel

customers can result in significant effects on demand

and stainless steel prices. This can also lead to hol-

ding gains or losses in alloys in stock. The effects of

these are difficult to predict.

Interest rate effects

Based on average Group net borrowings through

2001, the following sensitivity indicates the effect on

year 2001 Group profit before tax of a change in inter-

est rates:

Effect on pretax profit
EUR million

Reduction in average conversion margins of 5% -75

Reduction in deliveries of cold rolled coil of 5% -20

Effect on pretax profit
EUR million

SEK strengthens against EUR by 5% -25

GBP strengthens against EUR by 5% -10

USD strengthens against EUR by 5% +5

Effect on pretax profit
EUR million

Increase in interest rates of 1% per annum -4

Euro exchange rates

Closing rates Average rates

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 2001 2000

USD 0.881 0.931 1.005 1.167 1.097 0.896 0.924

GBP 0.609 0.624 0.622 0.705 0.661 0.622 0.610

SEK 9.301 8.831 8.563 9.487 8.664 9.255 8.445

The European Central Bank's euro exchange rates.

Fixed conversion rates to euro

ATS 13.7603 IEP 0.787564

BEF 40.3399 ITL 1936.27

DEM 1.95583 LUF 40.3399

ESP 166.386 NLG 2.20371

FIM 5.94573 PTE 200.482

FRF 6.55957
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Statutory actual figures 

Pro forma figures 

All figures, both pro forma and statutory actuals, have been presented in tables throughout the

Annual Report using the following colour code.

All figures given as ”0” are figures below EUR 0.5 million, whereas those marked ”-” are absolute zero.
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Directors’ report

Stainless steel markets weakened considerably in 2001.

The trading environment was extremely difficult and

average stainless steel transaction prices and conversion

margins were 20% below last year's levels. Against this

background, the financial result for 2001 can be considered

satisfactory.

Both net sales and operating profit for the financial

year were significantly down compared to 2000, as a

result of lower prices and reduced deliveries. Net sales

for 2001 amounted to EUR 2 977 million (EUR 3 592

million), operating profit to EUR 141 million (EUR 479

million) and profit before extraordinary items to

EUR 131 million (EUR 460 million).

The combination between Avesta Sheffield AB and

Outokumpu Steel Oyj was completed on 22 January

2001. On completion of the combination, Outokumpu

Steel Oyj was renamed AvestaPolarit Oyj Abp and the

share was listed on the Stockholm and Helsinki

Exchanges on 30 January 2001. The integration process

following the combination has proceeded well.

The Board of Directors recommends to the Annual

General meeting that a dividend of EUR 0.08 per share

be paid out for 2001.

All text comments on 2000 figures and 2001 full

year figures in this report relate to pro forma figures.

Difficult year in stainless steel market 
The world economy weakened considerably in 2001.

The global economy grew by just over 1% and during

the latter half of the year the three main economies –

USA, Europe and Japan - all contracted simultaneously.

In China, the economy continued to grow at a very

healthy rate of more than 7%. The impact of the global

downturn was felt particularly in the industrial sector.

Industrial growth slowed markedly, and in the second

half of the year world industrial output was well below

the previous year's level. In an attempt to reverse the

economic slowdown aggressive monetary and fiscal

measures were adopted, with US and European interest

rates being lowered several times during the year to sti-

mulate growth. By the end of the year, there were ten-

tative signs that business and consumer confidence

indices had bottomed out. In Japan, economic condi-

tions have remained difficult.

Stainless steel markets weakened significantly in

2001, with world apparent consumption of stainless

steel estimated to have fallen by about 3%. In both Asia

and the USA markets were heavily oversupplied. The

supply in European markets was more closely aligned

to demand, which nevertheless fell by almost 5% com-

pared to 2000. Demand fell in all regions except China

compared with the previous year, reflecting poor

underlying consumption exacerbated by de-stocking.

Producers responded to deteriorating market con-

ditions by cutting output. Global production of stainless

steel declined by some 3% in 2001. Despite widespread

de-stocking, stainless steel inventories are still relatively

high in the USA and Asia, though inventory levels in

Europe are regarded as normal. 

In the difficult trading environment, stainless steel

prices declined. According to CRU, the conversion

margin for cold rolled stainless steel in Europe averaged

EUR 0.86/kg in 2001, 20% below the average in 2000.

In October, the United States International Trade

Commission determined that all semi-finished stainless

steel products are to be excluded from the Section 201

steel import relief proceeding, on the ground that

imports of such products have not caused and do not

threaten serious injury to U.S. steel producers. The

Commission recommended that import restrictions be

imposed on certain stainless steel long products and

rendered a divided vote with respect to stainless tubular

flanges and fittings. As a consequence, imports of stain-

less slabs and billets will not be restricted in this 201

case. With respect to the above mentioned finished

stainless steel products, the U.S. President will decide

Other countries 2%
Asia 10%

North
America 11%

Nordic
countries 19 %

Other
European
countries 58%

Sales by market area 2001



by 6 March 2002 whether to impose import restrictions.

The decisions taken as a result of this Section 201 review

are not expected to have any significant impact on the

Group’s core operations or profitability.

The oversupply in the western world nickel market

was close to 30 000 tonnes in 2001. Demand from the

stainless steel sector declined during the year, but the

proportion of primary nickel used in stainless steel

production increased, due largely to tightening scrap

markets following the sharp drop in scrap availability

from Russia. Global consumption of nickel fell by some

2% in 2001, whereas production rose by about 4%.

Nickel prices averaged USD 2.70/lb during the year,

31% below the average in 2000.

Following a significant fall in the first half of the

year, ferrochrome prices stabilised during the second

half, although at a historically very low level. The

European closing spot price for 2001, USD 0.28/lb, was

30% below the year-end price in 2000. The average

price for 2001 as a whole was USD 0.32/lb, a decline of

22% compared to the previous year.

Sharp drop in net sales
Net sales for the financial year 2001 were down by 17%

compared to the previous year and amounted to

EUR 2 977 million. This decrease resulted from a decli-

ne in both sales prices and deliveries. Stainless steel

cold rolled market prices were on average down by

about 20%, due in part to a 30% drop in nickel prices.

The Group's stainless steel deliveries fell by 4% compa-

red to 2000. 

In relative terms, the biggest decline in net sales was

recorded by the Coil Products business area, which

reported a fall of 17%. With the exception of Long

Products, all Special Products business units reported

lower net sales for the year and, overall, the business

area recorded a fall of 12%. In North America, net sales

were down 12%. For a breakdown of net sales by geo-

graphical markets, see section 2 in Notes to the

Consolidated Financial Statements.

Production ran smoothly during most of the year,

with the exception of the summer period, when some

problems were experienced in Avesta, Sweden and in

Tornio, Finland. The production of stainless steel slab

decreased 5% compared to the previous year. Cold rolling

mill production was down 7%. Overall, production

volumes of Special Products fell, although for long pro-

ducts volumes were on a par with the previous year's

figures. North American production volumes were also

at 2000 levels. For more detailed production figures, see

pages 15, 20, 24 and 76.

A fire at the tube plant operated by AST in

Helmond in the Netherlands on 16 January 2002 com-

pletely destroyed the tube production facilities and

AvestaPolarit regional stocks stored at a warehouse on

the site. No people were injured by the fire. Action was

promptly taken to maintain supplies to customers. The

short-term financial consequences will be limited as the

incident was covered by insurance.

Profitability hit by low prices and decreased
deliveries
The operating profit for the 2001 financial year dropped

sharply compared to the previous year and amounted

to EUR 141 million (EUR 479 million). The fall in profi-

tability resulted from a decline in deliveries, shrinking

conversion margins and the effect of reductions in

nickel prices, which created a negative price change in

inventories of EUR 94 million. As a result of the upturn

in nickel prices from mid-October and a stock turnover

of some three months, most business units still reported

a negative price change in inventories in the fourth quar-

ter. The full year result was also affected by some pro-

duction difficulties during the third quarter. 

Operating profit - pro forma 

EUR million 2001 2000 Change %

Coil Products 77 341 -77
Special Products 26 104 -75
North America -6 11 -155
Other operations -4 50 -108
Amortisation of 
negative goodwill 45 -
Intra-group items 3 -27

Total for the Group 141 479 -71

Net sales - pro forma

EUR million 2001 2000 Change %

Coil Products 2 227 2 686 -17
Special Products 903 1 030 -12
North America 285 324 -12
Other operations 1 272 1 459 -13
Intra-group sales -1 710 -1 907

Total for the Group 2 977 3 592 -17
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The operating profit for 2001 includes an amortisation

of negative goodwill amounting to EUR 45 million (zero)

and the cumulative effect of changes in accounting prin-

ciples, corresponding to a loss of EUR 2 million (zero).

Unusual items include restructuring provisions total-

ling EUR 29 million and a corresponding additional

amortisation of negative goodwill. The net income

effect of these items is zero. These provisions include

the restructuring of melting activities in Degerfors,

Sweden (EUR 23 million), closure of a sales office in

Amsterdam in the Netherlands (EUR 4 million) and

restructuring of site administration in Sheffield, UK

(EUR 2 million). The operating profit margin for the

financial year was 4.7% (13.3%).

Operating profit for all business areas fell signifi-

cantly. Coil Products' operating profit was down 77%,

Special Products 75% and North America 155%. 

Equity earnings in associated companies totalled

EUR 0 million (EUR 2 million) and net financial expen-

ses amounted to EUR 10 million (EUR 21 million). The

decline in net financial expenses resulted mainly from

the fall in interest rates and an increase in dividends

received. Profit for the financial year totalled EUR 112

million (EUR 342 million). The return on capital

employed was 7.0% (25.7%) and earnings per share

EUR 0.32 (EUR 0.98).

Financial position strong
Despite a difficult trading environment and the ongoing

capital expenditure programme, the Group's financial

position has remained strong. The cash flow from ope-

rating activities in 2001 decreased compared to 2000

and amounted to EUR 214 million (EUR 362 million). 

As a result of major capital expenditure projects, net

interest-bearing debt increased during the year by

EUR 213 million to EUR 482 million. 

Key financial indicators - pro forma

EUR million 31 Dec 2001 31 Dec 2000

Net interest-bearing debt
Long-term debt 203 232
Current debt 391 165
Total interest-bearing debt 594 397
Cash and marketable securities 105 117
Interest-bearing receivables 7 11
Net interest-bearing debt 482 269

Net interest-bearing debt in 
relation to net sales, % 16.2 7.5
Shareholders' equity 1 206 1 173
Debt-to-equity ratio (gearing), % 39.7 22.8
Equity-to-assets ratio (solvency), % 41.6 41.3
Cash provided by operating activities 214 362
Net financial expenses 10 21
Net financial expenses in
relation to net sales, % 0.3 0.6



The debt-to-equity ratio increased compared to the

previous year due to an increase in net interest-bearing

debt.

Taking into account the extent of its capital expen-

diture programme, the Group maintained satisfactory

liquidity and gearing levels throughout the financial

year. Gross interest-bearing debt at the year-end totalled

EUR 594 million (EUR 397 million) and cash and

marketable securities totalled EUR 105 million

(EUR 117 million). The Group had unutilised committed

credit facilities of EUR 353 million.

Tornio expansion to be completed by the end
of 2002
The total capital expenditure for the financial year

amounted to EUR 408 million (EUR 159 million). The

major investment projects ongoing in 2001 were the

construction of the new melting shop and the develop-

ment of the hot and cold rolling mills in Tornio (the

latest estimate for the total project cost is EUR 790 mil-

lion), the move to underground mining at the Kemi

chromium mine (EUR 73 million) in Finland and an

increase of cold rolling capacity at Avesta KBR (EUR 35

million) and Nyby (EUR 17 million) in Sweden. The

project to install a new billet caster at the Sheffield melting

shop (EUR 22 million) started during the fourth quarter

of 2001. The expansion programme in Tornio is expected

to be completed on schedule by the end of 2002 and it

is expected that full production capability will be 

reached during 2004. 

Post-merger integration proceeded well
The integration process following the combination of

Avesta Sheffield AB and Outokumpu Steel Oyj on 22

January 2001 has proceeded well and the work of

numerous integration teams to exploit synergies from

the merger is progressing according to plan. The pro-

jected annual synergies are considered well within

reach and are expected to be realised in full by 2005,

with the greater part by the end of 2003. It is now antici-

Capital expenditure - pro forma

EUR million 2001 2000

Coil Products 357 123
Special Products 27 19
North America 3 3
Other operations 21 14

Total for the Group 408 159
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pated that synergies in excess of the originally announced

EUR 100 million will be reached. Around EUR 18 million

had been secured by the end of 2001.

As part of the integration process following the

combination, AvestaPolarit announced in August its

plans to restructure the Group's melting activities.

These plans will entail a phased closure of the melting

shop and billet rolling facilities in Degerfors, Sweden,

by mid-2003 and the transfer of production to the mel-

ting shop in Sheffield, UK, where continuous casting

facilities for blooms and billets are currently being

installed. The decision means that operations at

Degerfors Stainless will be discontinued. The Group's

Hot Rolled Plate business in Degerfors will continue to

operate from the site and focus on developing the business

further to maintain its position as the world's leading

producer of stainless steel quarto plate. 

The separation procedure, ensuring the ability of

AvestaPolarit to operate on a stand-alone basis, and to

ensure the arms-length nature of any and all relations

of entities between Outokumpu and AvestaPolarit, has

been completed, in compliance with contractual and

other obligations.

Changes in Group structure apart from the
combination
In January, the legal ownership of two German compa-

nies, Outokumpu Service Centre GmbH and

Outokumpu Holding GmbH & Co. Grundstucks KG,

was transferred from the Outokumpu Group to

AvestaPolarit as mentioned in the exchange offer. In

August, AvestaPolarit purchased the 50% share it did

not already own in AvestaPolarit Asia Pacific Ltd (BVI)

from Corus Asia Limited, whose ultimate parent com-

pany is Corus Group plc. For more detailed informa-

tion on these transactions and other changes in the

Group structure, see Note 23 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements.

Global sales and marketing network streamlined
The Group currently has sales and distribution channels

in 52 countries, including company-owned sales and

marketing units in 32 countries and a number of indepen-

dent sales and marketing outlets, all of which co-operate

closely with the sales personnel at AvestaPolarit's busi-

ness units. The sales and marketing organisations of

Avesta Sheffield and Outokumpu Steel were combined

by the end of June 2001, and since then, development

work has focused on streamlining the distribution net-

work and processes, improving logistics and systems,

and completing the final stages of the integration process. 

The Group has been able to defend or increase its

market shares and retain its customer base in its most

important market sectors during the post-merger and

integration processes. 

Focus on integration and multicultural 
competence development 
AvestaPolarit seeks to create a culture of constant

improvement, emphasising open communication and

continuous competence development and encouraging

all employees to take active part in the business.

Several competence development programmes

were launched during the year and an international

induction programme for graduates was started. The

restructuring of business operations in Degerfors, with

a 1-2 year closure schedule for the melting shop and bil-

let rolling mill, is a major challenge and entails a chan-

ge process, for which a special Degerfors HR project has

been set up. This includes establishing the new organi-

sation for the Degerfors Hot Rolled Plate unit, which

will continue to operate at the site. 

At the year-end, the Group employed 9 004 people in

35 countries. The increase of personnel in Coil Products

results from employees taken on in preparation for the

Tornio expansion. For a breakdown of personnel by

geographical areas, see section 2 in Notes to the

Consolidated Financial Statements.

Environmental issues highlighted
AvestaPolarit wishes to be known and respected for its

contribution to environmental protection and sustainable

development. The intrinsic properties of stainless steel

alone contribute to sustainable development, e.g. through

Personnel Actual Pro forma
31 Dec 2001 31 Dec 2000

Coil Products 4 009 3 859
Special Products 3 231 3 248
North America 360 363
Other operations 1 404 1 442

Total for the Group 9 004 8 912
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durability, which leads to low life-cycle costs and through

the fact that 95% or more of stainless steel can be recycled

and reprocessed without loss of quality. The Group's

operations are also subject to continual environmental

audits. In addition, all major units aim for certification

according to generally accepted international standards

for environmental management by 2003. Parts of the

operations have already received such certification.

During the year, the Group adopted an environ-

mental policy with a goal to achieve continuous perfor-

mance improvement and to reduce the environmental

impact of its operations. AvestaPolarit operates at all its

sites in accordance with the local rules and emission

limits approved by authorities. New emission levels,

which take into account the increasing production

capacities at the Tornio works, have been approved by

the authorities in October 2001 for wastewater emis-

sions and in January 2002 for all other emissions. 

R&D engaged in both process and product
development
The Group's R&D function consists of some 200 people

working in research centres in Avesta, Tornio and

Sheffield and at different business units. In addition,

R&D services are bought from research institutions,

universities and the two main shareholders,

Outokumpu and the Corus Group. Expenditure on

research and development during 2001 amounted to

EUR 13 million, 0.4% of net sales (EUR 18 million,

0.5%). The fall in R&D expenditure can be considered

as a temporary one and it results from the reorganisation

of R&D activities and timing of R&D initiatives.

The most important process-related R&D projects

during 2001 included the detailed process design for

the unique, integrated rolling-annealing-pickling line

(RAP line) to be installed in the new cold rolling mill at

Tornio, and new and improved methods to reduce the

environmental impact of stainless steel pickling processes. 

In product development, the focus has been on

developing new, cost-effective steel grades for con-

struction applications and on the utilisation of stainless

steel's excellent forming and work hardening properties

in lightweight applications for the automotive and

transportation industries. The R&D function's partici-

pation in a European research project has increased

appreciation of the fire-resistant properties of stainless

steel and has specified limits for steel grades that can be

used in high temperature applications. During the year,

the Group also participated in a number of projects

financed by the European Commission.

Initiatives taken to enhance internal efficiency 
To underpin its integration targets in the current difficult

and uncertain market climate, the Group has launched

a project focusing on cost and capital expenditure control

and revenue generation. The first effects of immediate

measures began to materialise at the end of the year

and the benefits are expected to increase during the

coming months. These measures include a review of

current and proposed capital expenditure projects, a

reduction or postponement of spending in some of the

projects and other initiatives aimed at cutting costs and

reducing inventory levels.

The Tubular Products businesses have been reorga-

nised according to their current main products into two

business units: one will focus on tubes and the other on

fittings.

In addition, a project was launched in January 2002

to further develop the Group's business organisation

and approach to corporate governance and thereby

enhance internal efficiency and effectiveness and im-

prove the Group's management and leadership processes.

Restructuring of Coil Products' Panteg works in

UK was announced in the end of January 2002 and

includes investment in batch annealing at Sheffield and

consolidation of warehousing onto the Sheffield site. As

a result of the reorganisation, manning levels in Panteg

will be reduced by 44 employees by the end of July

2002.

Short-term outlook still uncertain
The world economic development is still uncertain

although some positive indications have recently been

witnessed in the USA and Europe. The timing and

speed of the recovery is difficult to predict but the general

assumption is that it will start during the second half of

the year.

The stainless steel market is also affected by the

uncertainties of the economic outlook. European stock

levels are normal, which indicates that short-term

demand should reflect underlying consumption.

Apparent consumption is expected to improve in 2002.

Stainless steel prices remained stable during the fourth

quarter of 2001 and some price increases are expected
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during the first two quarters of 2002. Nickel prices

strengthened during the fourth quarter but its price

volatility continues, which increases the uncertainty as

regards the development of stainless steel prices.

Given the uncertainty surrounding the recovery of

the world economy and consequently the stainless steel

market, it is quite difficult to provide a reliable forecast,

even for short-term financial performance. However,

assuming selling prices remain roughly at year-end

levels and synergy benefits continue to be realised as

planned, AvestaPolarit expects to see an improvement

in its profitability for the first quarter of 2002 compared

to the last quarter of 2001. 

To achieve its full earnings potential in 2002, the key

success factors for the Group, apart from improved

market conditions, will be continuation of the integration

process to realise all available synergy benefits, to build on

the initiatives already taken to enhance internal efficiency,

and to complete the investment project in Tornio to plan.

Board of Directors’ proposal for profit 
distribution
The objective of the Board of Directors is to maintain a

dividend pay-out ratio of at least 30% of post-tax ear-

nings over the business cycle calculated before the

amortisation of negative goodwill. In accordance with

this policy, the Board of Directors considers the financial

performance together with the Group's investment and

development needs in its annual proposal for profit

distribution to owners.

Based on the financial statements as at 31 December

2001, the Group's distributable funds are EUR 196 million

and those of the Parent Company EUR 102 million.

The Board of Directors proposes to the Annual

General Meeting that a dividend of EUR 0.08 per share

be distributed and the remaining distributable funds be

allocated to retained earnings. The proposed dividend

corresponds to 42% of net profit of EUR 67 million cal-

culated before the amortisation of negative goodwill of

EUR 45 million.

Stockholm, 13 February 2002

Jyrki Juusela
Chairman

Tony P. Pedder David M. Lloyd
Deputy Chairman

Bernt Magnusson Jacob Palmstierna

Timo Peltola Stuart I. Pettifor

Juha Rantanen Risto Virrankoski

Ossi Virolainen
President and CEO
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Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of AvestaPolarit Oyj Abp

We have audited the accounting, the financial statements and the corporate

governance of AvestaPolarit Oyj Abp for the period 1.1. - 31.12.2001. The finan-

cial statements, which include the report of the Board of Directors, consolida-

ted and parent company income statements, balance sheets and notes to the

financial statements, have been prepared by the Board of Directors and the

CEO. Based on our audit we express an opinion on these financial statements

and on corporate governance.

We have conducted the audit in accordance with Finnish Standards on

Auditing. Those standards require that we perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstate-

ment. An audit includes examining on a test basis evidence supporting the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting

principles used and significant estimates made by the management as well as

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The purpose of our

audit of corporate governance is to examine that the members of the Board of

Directors and the CEO have legally complied with the rules of the Companies'

Act.

In our opinion the financial statements have been prepared in accordance

with the Accounting Act and other rules and regulations governing the

preparation of financial statements. The financial statements give a true and

fair view, as defined in the Accounting Act, of both the consolidated and

parent company's result of operations as well as of the financial position. The

financial statements with the consolidated financial statements can be adopted

and the members of the Board of Directors and the CEO of the parent company

can be discharged from liability for the period audited by us. The proposal by

the Board of Directors regarding the distributable assets is in compliance with

the Companies' Act.

Espoo, 26 February 2002

SVH Pricewaterhouse Coopers Oy

Authorised Public Accountants

Markku Marjomaa

Authorised Public Accountant
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Consolidated income statement

Actual Pro forma
EUR million 2001 2000 2001 2000

Net sales [2] 2 851 1 177 2 977 3 592

Cost of sales [3] -2 539 -877 -2 660 -2 906

Gross margin 312 300 317 686

Selling and marketing expenses -121 -20 -123 134
Administrative expenses -91 -26 -92 -101
Research and development expenses -13 -7 -13 -18
Unusual items [5] - - - 42
Other operating income and expenses [6] 7 -1 7 4
Amortisation of negative goodwill 45 - 45 -

Operating profit [2-7, 11] 139 246 141 479

Equity earnings in associated companies [12] -0 - -0 2

Financial income and expenses [8] -10 -5 -10 -21

Profit before extraordinary items 129 241 131 460

Extraordinary items [9] - -102 - -

Profit before taxes 129 139 131 460

Income taxes [10] -16 -38 -18 -116

Minority interests in earnings -1 - -1 -2

Profit for the financial year 112 101 112 342

Earnings per share
(excluding extraordinary items) EUR 0.33 0.88 0.32 0.98
Earnings per share EUR 0.33 0.52 0.32 0.98

Average number of shares 338 312 000 193 111 110 348 942 000 348 942 000

In all pro forma figures, Avesta Sheffield has been consolidated into AvestaPolarit for the whole period. In pro forma figures for 2000, the 
group contributions granted and received by Outokumpu Steel in 2000 have been eliminated from the consolidated income statement
and the respective tax effect (29%) added to current taxes and the negative goodwill reported as the final amount at combination
without amortisation. Pro forma figures have been reported for the Directors' report, consolidated income statement, balance sheet and
cash flow statement, key figures, financial development by quarter, business area reviews (pages 15-27) and financial summary and have 
been marked "Pro forma". All other figures reported include Avesta Sheffield as of 23 January 2001.

Figures in square brackets refer to the Notes to the consolidated financial statements on pages 58-76.
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Consolidated balance sheet

Actual Pro forma
EUR million 2001 2000 2000

ASSETS

Fixed assets and other
long-term investments [11, 12]

Intangible assets 18 4 7

Property, plant and equipment 1 505 590 1 268

Long-term financial assets [14] 58 15 62

Total fixed assets and other
long-term investments 1 581 609 1 337

Current assets

Inventories [13] 664 239 771

Receivables [10, 12, 14] 572 166 637

Marketable securities 49 - 6

Cash and bank 56 76 111

Total current assets 1 341 481 1 525

TOTAL ASSETS 2 922 1 090 2 862

Actual Pro forma
EUR million 2001 2000 2000

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITES

Shareholders' equity [15]
Share capital 188 104 188
Premium fund 602 212 602
Retained earnings 304 259 41
Profit for the financial year 112 101 342

Total shareholders' equity 1 206 676 1 173

Minority interests 8 10 9

Negative goodwill [16] 401 - 479

Liabilities
Long-term [10,17]

Interest-bearing 203 65 232
Non interest-bearing 285 99 297

Current [10,17]
Interest-bearing 391 64 165
Non interest-bearing 428 176 507

Total liabilities 1 307 404 1 201

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2 922 1 090 2 862
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Actual Pro forma
EUR million 2001 2000 2001 2000

Operating activities
Profit for the financial year 112 101 112 342
Depreciation and amortisation of negative goodwill 45 61 45 122
Equity earnings in associated companies 0 - 0 -2
Deferred taxes -31 -6 -31 36
Other adjustments 1) 0 102 -3 23
Income financing 126 258 123 521
Change in working capital

Decrease (increase) in current non interest-bearing receivables 86 -24 72 -41
Decrease (increase) in inventories 91 -69 105 -106
(Decrease) increase in current non interest-bearing liabilities -80 53 -86 -10

97 -40 91 -157
Other adjustments - - - -2

Cash provided by operating activities 223 218 214 362

Investing activities
Capital expenditure for purchase of fixed assets -405 -80 -408 -159
Investment in subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 2) 41 - 10 -12
Proceeds from sales of business operations
and fixed assets 3) 18 0 19 10
Increase in other long-term financial assets -4 - -4 -22
Decrease in working capital related to fixed assets 15 4 15 7

Cash used in investing activities -335 -76 -368 -176

Cash flow before financing activities -112 142 -154 186

Financing activities
Borrowings of long-term debt 125 0 125 10
Repayments of long-term debt -151 -6 -154 -6
Increase (decrease) in current debt 221 -21 226 -29
Dividends paid -52 0 -52 -37
Other financial items 4) 0 -115 0 -115

Cash provided by financing activities 143 -142 145 -177

Increase (decrease) in cash and
marketable securities 31 0 -9 9

Adjustments 5) -2 0 -3 4

Increase (decrease) in cash and marketable
securities in the consolidated balance sheet 29 0 -12 13

1) Includes gains and losses on sales of business operations and fixed assets, dividends from associated companies, 
group contributions, provisions, exchange gains and losses and minority interests in earnings.

2) Includes cash and marketable securities of acquired subsidiaries.
3) Proceeds from sales of business operations are reported net of cash and marketable securities in the balance sheets

of subsidiaries sold.
4) Includes group contributions paid and issue of shares. 
5) Includes the effect of exchange rates on cash and marketable securities in the consolidated balance sheet.

Consolidated statement of cash flows
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Key financial indicators

Key financial indicators of the Group1)

Actual Pro forma
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 2001 2000

Scope of activity
Net sales EUR million 2 851 1 177 778 795 832 2 977 3 592
- change in net sales % 142.2 51.3 -2.1 -4.4 10.2 -17.1 NA
- exports from and sales outside 
Finland, of total net sales % 95.1 90.2 91.4 89.4 87.3 95.2 94.6

Capital employed 
at 31 December EUR million 2 097 739 681 663 690 2 097 1 930

Capital expenditure EUR million 405 84 36 51 138 408 159
- in relation to net sales % 14.2 7.1 4.6 6.4 16.6 13.7 4.4

Depreciation and 
amortisation2) EUR million 120 61 59 55 46 123 122

Research and 
development costs EUR million 13 7 8 8 9 13 18
- in relation to net sales % 0.5 0.6 1.0 1.0 1.1 0.4 0.5

Personnel 31 December 9 004 2 438 2 397 2 391 2 391 9 004 8 912
- average for the year 8 855 2 500 2 509 2 519 2 479 9 003 8 907

Profitability
Operating profit EUR million 139 246 52 50 92 141 479

Operating profit margin
- excluding negative goodwill3) % 3.3 20.9 6.7 6.3 11.1 3.2 13.3
- including negative goodwill % 4.9 20.9 6.7 6.3 11.1 4.7 13.3

Equity earnings in associated
companies EUR million -0 - - - - -0 2

Profit before extraordinary 
items EUR million 129 241 47 42 94 131 460
- in relation to net sales % 4.5 20.5 6.0 5.3 11.3 4.4 12.8

Profit before taxes EUR million 129 139 -30 5 79 131 460
- in relation to net sales % 4.5 11.8 -3.9 0.6 9.5 4.4 12.8

Profit for the financial year EUR million 112 101 -25 4 55 112 342
- in relation to net sales % 3.9 8.6 -3.2 0.5 6.6 3.8 9.5

Return on shareholders' equity % 11.9 33.0 8.0 8.0 15.0 9.5 31.2

Return on capital employed
- excluding negative goodwill3) % 6.6 34.6 7.7 7.4 14.0 4.8 25.7
- including negative goodwill % 9.8 34.6 7.7 7.4 14.0 7.0 25.7

Financing and financial position
Liabilities EUR million 1 307 404 397 330 415 1 307 1 201
Net interest-bearing debt EUR million 482 53 129 116 143 482 269
- in relation to net sales % 16.9 4.5 16.6 14.6 17.2 16.2 7.5

Net financial expenses EUR million 10 5 5 8 1 10 21
- in relation to net sales % 0.4 0.4 0.6 1.0 0.1 0.3 0.6
Net interest expenses EUR million 14 5 1 8 5 14 23
- in relation to net sales % 0.5 0.4 0.1 0.9 0.6 0.5 0.6
Interest cover 10.2 49.2 48.0 6.3 19.8 10.4 21.0

Share capital EUR million 188 104 103 103 98 188 188
Other shareholders' equity and
minority interests EUR million 1 026 582 447 552 549 1 026 994

Equity-to-assets ratio % 41.6 62.0 57.9 62.0 57.0 41.6 41.3
Debt-to-equity ratio % 39.7 7.8 23.8 21.0 26.0 39.7 22.8

Cash provided by operating 
activities EUR million 223 218 73 123 125 214 362

Dividends EUR million 284) 52 - - - 284) 52

1) The figures for 1997-98 are converted to euros by using the fixed 
conversion rate, EUR 1 = FIM 5.94573. The figures for 1998-99 
have been restated to reflect the change in the inventory valuation
principle. For more specific information see note 1 Principles applied
in the financial statements.

2) Amortisation of negative goodwill not included.
3) Amortisation of negative goodwill deducted from profit.
4) The Board of Directors' proposal to the Annual General Meeting.
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Key financial indicators by business area 

Pro forma
2001 2000

Coil Products
Net sales EUR million 2 227 2 686
Share of the Group's net sales % 48 49
Operating profit1) EUR million 77 341
Operating profit margin % 3 13
Return on capital employed % 6 NA2)

Capital employed 31 December EUR million 1 370 NA2)

Capital expenditure EUR million 357 123
Depreciation3) EUR million 84 83
Personnel 31 December 4 009 3 859

Special Products
Net sales EUR million 903 1 030
Share of the Group's net sales % 19 19
Operating profit1) EUR million 26 104
Operating profit margin % 3 10
Return on capital employed % 10 NA2)

Capital employed 31 December EUR million 267 NA2)

Capital expenditure EUR million 27 19
Depreciation3) EUR million 25 24
Personnel 31 December 3 231 3 248

North America
Net sales EUR million 285 324
Share of the Group's net sales % 6 6
Operating profit EUR million -6 11
Operating profit margin % neg. 3
Return on capital employed % neg. NA2)

Capital employed 31 December EUR million 3 NA2)

Capital expenditure EUR million 3 3
Depreciation3) EUR million 4 4
Personnel 31 December 360 363

Other operations
Net sales EUR million 1 272 1 459
Share of the Group's net sales % 27 27
Operating profit EUR million -4 50
Operating profit margin % neg. 3
Capital expenditure EUR million 21 14
Depreciation3) EUR million 10 11
Personnel 31 December 1 404 1 442

1) Restructuring provisions made during the fourth quarter of 2001 have been netted with the 
corresponding additional amortisation of negative goodwill. Accordingly, the operating profit
for each business area is presented with a net income effect of zero for these two items.

2) Business area balance sheets for 2000 not available.
3) Amortisation of negative goodwill not included.
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Financial development by quarter
Actual Pro forma

EUR million IV/01 III/01 II/01 I/01 IV/00 III/00 II/00 I/00

Net sales
Coil Products 525 453 629 620 654 608 732 692
Special Products 223 186 247 247 250 230 284 266
North America 63 70 74 78 79 79 83 83
Other operations 288 292 349 343 356 328 398 377
Intra-group sales -420 -370 -462 -458 -464 -436 -515 -492
Total for the Group 679 631 837 830 875 809 982 926

Operating profit
Coil Products 21 -2 42 16 68 67 108 98
Special Products -9 9 15 11 21 20 33 30
North America -3 -1 0 -2 2 2 3 4
Other operations -6 -2 -2 6 -55 10 16 79
Amortisation of negative goodwill 12 12 12 9 - - - -
Intra-group items 8 -12 13 -6 18 -5 -8 -32
Total for the Group 23 4 80 34 54 94 152 179

Equity earnings in associated companies -0 -0 - - 2 -1 2 -1
Financial income and expenses -2 -2 -4 -2 -4 -7 -6 -4
Profit before extraordinary items 21 2 76 32 52 86 148 174

Earnings per share
(excl. extraordinary items), EUR 0.08 0.02 0.15 0.07 0.09 0.09 0.37 0.43
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Net sales – pro forma* Operating profit –
pro  forma*

Profit before extraordinary
items – pro forma*

*Quarters II-IV, 2001, are actuals.



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. Principles applied in the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of AvestaPolarit

Oyj Abp are prepared in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles in Finland ("Finnish

GAAP"). The reconciliation of the profit for the financi-

al period, and the equity, to International Accounting

Standards ("IAS") does not show any material differences,

as demonstrated below for the 2001 financial year. 

Consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements include the

Parent Company AvestaPolarit Oyj Abp and its subsi-

diaries, i.e. companies in which AvestaPolarit Oyj directly

or indirectly holds more than 50% of the voting rights. 

Real estate companies and condominiums, which

Group employees use for accommodation or recrea-

tion, are not consolidated. Their impact on the Group's

earnings and shareholders' equity is insignificant.

The financial results of subsidiaries acquired or

divested during the year are included in the consolidated

statements from their acquisition up to their divestment

date. The figures for companies in which controlling

interest is relinquished through stock sales or other

transfers during the accounting period are included in

the consolidated statements until the date they lose

subsidiary status.

The consolidated financial statements are a compi-

lation of the Parent Company's and subsidiaries' income

statements, balance sheets and notes to the financial

statements. To facilitate inclusion in the consolidated

accounts, the statutory accounts of individual Group

company records have, where necessary, been restated

to comply with AvestaPolarit's uniform accounting

standards.

Inter-company transactions and balances, inter-

company profits and dividends have been eliminated

in consolidation.

In applying the purchase method in accounting for

acquisitions, the cost of acquiring shares in subsidia-

ries is allocated to the fair values of the underlying

assets and liabilities, and the remaining difference is

carried as goodwill on consolidation and amortised

over its useful life, not exceeding 10 years. Allocations

to fixed assets are amortised according to the deprecia-

tion plan of the underlying asset. The negative good-

will arising from the acquisition of Avesta Sheffield is

amortised over 10 years.

Foreign exchange translation differences arising

from the elimination of foreign shareholdings have

been credited or charged to equity.

Minority interests  in earnings and shareholders' equ-

ity are reported separately in the income statement and

balance sheet.

Earnings in associated companies, in which

AvestaPolarit holds 20-50% of shares and voting rights,

are included in the consolidated accounts on the equity

method. The Group's share in earnings in such com-

panies, less amortisation of the goodwill recorded on

acquisition, is presented in the consolidated income

statement, and dividends received from associated

companies are eliminated. In the consolidated balance

sheet, the investment in associated companies and the

Group's equity have been adjusted with the Group's

share in associated companies' increased net worth

after their acquisition, less accumulated amortisation of

goodwill. Where significant differences exist, the results

and shareholders' equities of associated companies are

restated to comply with AvestaPolarit's uniform

accounting standards.

Foreign currency items and derivative financial

instruments

Foreign currency transactions during the year are

recorded in the accounts at the exchange rate effective

at the time of transaction. Receivables and liabilities in

currencies other than the euro are translated into the

euro at the closing rate on the balance sheet date 

quoted by the European Central Bank. Advances paid

and received appear in the balance sheet at the

exchange rate effective on the day of payment.

All exchange gains and losses attributable to

transaction risk (currency receivables, loans and other

EUR million Actual Pro forma 

Profit for the financial period, 
Jan-Dec 2001
Profit for the financial period as reported 112 112
Unrealised gains on hedges 0 -3

Profit for the financial period based on IAS 112 109

Shareholders' equity, 31 December 2001
Equity as reported 1 206 1 206
Unrealised gains on hedges 2 2

Equity based on IAS 1 208 1 208

58 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2001



ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2001 59

contractual commercial items) as well as hedging the

transaction risk, and exchange gains and losses arising

from hedging the economic exposure (anticipated

currency cash flows), are recorded as adjustments to

net sales, costs and expenses. Only exchange gains and

losses relating to financing are recorded under financial

income and expenses. Prior to 1999 all exchange gains

and losses were recorded under financial income and

expenses. Prior years' financial statements have not

been restated to conform to the new presentation principle

for the income statement.

Derivative financial instruments used as hedges

against exchange or interest rate risks are valued at the

exchange rate or market rate on the balance sheet date

and the unrealised losses are recognised in the income

statement and balance sheet. Due to the restrictions of

Finnish GAAP, unrealised profits have been charged to

the income statement only to the extent of respective

unrealised losses per currency. The interest component

inherent is accrued as interest income or expenses, and

exchange gains and losses are recorded under net sales,

costs, expenses, financial income and expenses. 

Fixed assets and other long-term investments 

The balance sheet values of fixed assets are based on

historical cost. Interest is capitalised on major invest-

ment projects.

Depreciation and amortisation are based on historical

cost and the estimated useful life of investments.

Depreciation and amortisation are calculated on a

straight-line or declining-balance basis over the varying

useful lives of assets depending on the nature of the

operations. Estimated useful lives for various fixed

asset classes are:

- intangible assets 5-10 years

- goodwill and goodwill on consolidation 5-10 years

- other long-term expenses 5-10 years

- buildings and structures 25-40 years

- machinery and equipment 5-20 years

- other tangible assets 4-40 years

Mine properties are amortised using the units-of-pro-

duction method based on the depletion of ore reserves.

Long-term financial assets include financial invest-

ments and receivables intended to be held for over one

year. Marketable securities are stated at the lower of

cost or market.

Inventories

The purchased metals and metal raw material are valued

according to the FIFO (first in-first out) principle at the

lower of cost or market.

Cash and marketable securities

Cash and cash equivalents include cash, funds held on

call accounts and on deposit up to three months, as well

as other funds equivalent to cash.

Acquisition analysis and negative goodwill

The acquisition value of Avesta Sheffield (EUR 486 million)

was EUR 479 million less than the corresponding capital

and reserves at the date of acquisition (EUR 965 million).

The management has performed an impairment test

and based on this test, no part of the consolidation

difference can be attributable to identifiable assets or

liabilities. Therefore, the consolidation difference is

considered as negative goodwill. 

Negative goodwill represents the excess of the

fair value of the net assets acquired over the cost of

acquisition. The remaining weighted average useful

life of the non-monetary assets acquired was estimated

to be 10 years. Amortisation of negative goodwill has

been accounted for since completion of the combina-

tion. Some of the key financial figures have been reported

by both including the effects of negative goodwill and

excluding them.

To the extent that negative goodwill relates to

expectations of future losses and expenses that are

identified in the combination plan and can be measured

reliably, but which do not represent identifiable liabili-

ties at the date of acquisition, that portion of negative

goodwill is recognised as income when the future losses

and expenses are recognised.

Net sales

Net sales include revenue from goods sold less dis-

counts and sales-related indirect taxes. Revenue on

goods sold is recognised at the time of delivery.

Commodity hedging

Derivative financial instruments used as hedges

against metal and electricity price risks are valued at

the market rate on the balance sheet date and the un-

realised losses are recognised in the income statement

and balance sheet. Due to the restrictions of Finnish



GAAP, unrealised profits have been charged to the

income statement only to the extent of respective un-

realised losses per commodity. 

Research and development 

Research and development costs are expensed as

incurred.

Unusual items

Non-recurring unusual items include material and

exceptional transactions not relating to normal business

activities, such as non-recurring income, or expenses

and provisions for the sale, restructuring or dis-

continuation of business operations.

Other operating income and expenses

Other operating income and expenses include income

and expenses generated in other than normal business

activities, such as capital gains and losses on fixed

assets, scrapping and rental income.

Extraordinary income and expenses

Extraordinary items include highly exceptional and

significant transactions outside the Group's core business

activities.

Extraordinary items also include material cumulative

effects on income arising from changes in accounting

principles.

The extraordinary items of Parent Company financial

statements also include Group contributions granted or

received.

Contingent losses 

Provision is made for contingent losses which are

almost certain to materialise in the future and the

amount of which can be reasonably estimated.

Depending on their nature, provisions are presented

under long-term or short-term liabilities in the balance

sheet.

Pension plans

The Group companies have various pension schemes in

accordance with the local conditions and practices in

the countries where they operate. The schemes are

generally funded through payments to insurance com-

panies or to trustee-administered funds as determined

by periodic actuarial calculations. 

Costs for pension and post-retirement benefits

regarding defined benefit plans are recorded in the

income statement, based on actuarial calculations as at

31 December 2001. Payments to the defined contribu-

tion plans and to multi-employer and insured plans are

recorded as an expense under the period to which the

contributions relate.

Untaxed reserves

The tax legislation of Finland and some other countries

allows companies to transfer, as a premature expense, a

part of pre-tax income into untaxed reserves in the

balance sheet.

All allocations to untaxed reserves, including accu-

mulated depreciation difference, are reversed on consoli-

dation and recorded under the equity after deferred tax

provision. In the income statement, changes occurring

in untaxed reserves during the fiscal year have corres-

pondingly been divided into the accounting period

result and deferred tax.

The Finnish Companies Act prescribes that untaxed

reserves included under consolidated equity cannot be

distributed as dividends to shareholders.

Income taxes

Income taxes presented in the income statement consist

of current and deferred taxes.

A deferred tax liability or asset has been determined

for all temporary timing differences between taxation

and the financial statements, using the tax rates effective

for future periods. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised

in the balance sheet in full, and deferred tax assets at

their estimated realisable amounts.

Changes in accounting principles

With effect from 1 January 2001, AvestaPolarit changed

its accounting principles regarding pensions and post-

retirement benefits as well as the treatment of metal,

currency and electricity hedges. The cumulative effect

of these changes amounted to EUR -2 million and this

loss has been booked to the income statement during

the first quarter of 2001. 

All changes to Avesta Sheffield's accounting princi-

ples were made prior to the combination and therefore

only affect Avesta Sheffield's equity at combination and

the respective calculation of negative goodwill.

Computer software with an economic lifetime of more
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than three years has been capitalised in the acquired

companies as of the date of the combination.

Pro forma combined figures

In the pro forma figures for 2001, Avesta Sheffield has

been consolidated into AvestaPolarit for the full period

stated.

The pro forma combined financial statements for

2000 were prepared by adjusting the financial informa-

tion of Avesta Sheffield and Outokumpu Steel to comply

with uniform accounting principles and classifications

based on Finnish GAAP as applied by AvestaPolarit

since the combination. These adjusted figures have

been combined using normal consolidation principles.

The pro forma combined balance sheet for 2000 was

prepared using the final amount of negative goodwill

and no amortisation of negative goodwill has been

accounted for. In the pro forma figures for 2000, the

group contributions granted and received by

AvestaPolarit Oyj Abp to and from Outokumpu have

been eliminated from the consolidated income state-

ment and the respective tax effect (29%) added to current

taxes.

In the annual report, pro forma figures have been

reported for the Directors' report, income statement,

balance sheet, cash flow statement, key figures, financial

development by quarter, business area reviews and

financial summary and have been marked "Pro forma".

All other figures reported in the annual accounts include

Avesta Sheffield as of 23 January 2001.



62 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2001

Definitions of key financial indicators

Capital employed = Total assets - non interest-bearing liabilities - interest-bearing assets

Research and development costs = Research and development expenses in the income statement
(including expenses covered by grants received)

Return on shareholders' equity = Profit before extraordinary items - taxes 
Shareholders' equity + minority interests (average for period)

Return on capital employed = Operating profit 
Capital employed (average for period)

Net interest-bearing debt = Total interest-bearing debt - interest-bearing assets

Interest-bearing assets = Cash and marketable securities + interest-bearing receivables

Interest cover = Profit before extraordinary items + net interest expenses
Net interest expenses

Equity-to-assets ratio = Shareholders' equity + minority interests 
Total assets - advances received

Debt-to-equity ratio = Net interest-bearing debt 
Shareholders' equity + minority interests

Profit before extraordinary items - taxes
Earnings per share (excluding = - minority interests in earnings
extraordinary items) Adjusted average number of shares during the period

Earnings per share = Profit for the financial year
Adjusted average number of shares during the period

Cash flow per share = Cash provided by operating activities
Adjusted average number of shares during the period

Shareholders' equity per share = Shareholders' equity
Adjusted number of shares at end of period

Dividend per share = Dividend for the financial period
Adjusted number of shares at end of period

Dividend/earnings ratio = Dividend for the financial period 
Profit before extraordinary items - taxes
- minority interest in earnings

Dividend yield = Dividend per share 
Adjusted trading price at end of period

Price/earnings ratio = Adjusted trading price at end of period
Earnings per share (excluding extraordinary items)

Average trading price = EUR amount traded during the period (HEX)
Adjusted number of shares traded during the period

Market capitalisation at end of period = Number of shares at end of period  ˘  trading price at end of period (HEX)

Trading volume = Number of shares traded during the period (HEX), and in relation to
the weighted average number of shares during the period

˘ 100

˘ 100

˘ 100

˘ 100

˘ 100

˘ 100
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2. Geographical information

Net sales, operating profit and total assets by geographical area 1)

Finland Sweden UK Other North Other Inter- Group
EUR million Europe America countries area total

Net sales
2001 1 048 1 061 752 876 275 77 -1 238 2 851
2000 1 330 - - 88 - - -241 1 177

Operating profit
20012) 100 72 -29 0 -7 3 - 139
2000 241 - - 5 - - - 246

Total assets
2001 1 154 863 411 314 125 55 - 2 922
2000 1 048 - - 43 - - - 1 090

Net sales by country 3), EUR million 2001 % 2000 % 

EUROPE
Germany 460 16.1 222 18.9
Italy 303 10.6 110 9.3
UK 255 8.9 32 2.7
Sweden 214 7.5 57 4.8
Finland 160 5.6 116 9.8
France 147 5.2 64 5.4
Denmark 98 3.4 33 2.8
Netherlands 93 3.3 55 4.7
Spain 75 2.6 35 2.9
Norway 67 2.3 18 1.6
Austria 54 1.9 19 1.6
Switzerland 51 1.8 24 2.0
Belgium 39 1.4 24 2.0
Poland 33 1.2 28 2.4
Russia 31 1.1 20 1.7
Czech Republic 15 0.5 22 1.9
Portugal 15 0.5 8 0.7
Ireland 14 0.5 4 0.4
Hungary 9 0.3 0 0.0
Other European countries 49 1.7 8 0.7

2 182 76.6 899 76.4

NORTH AND SOUTH AMERICA
USA 274 9.6 25 2.1
Canada 44 1.5 30 2.5
Brazil 7 0.2 3 0.2
Mexico 5 0.2 5 0.4
Chile 2 0.1 5 0.4
Other countries in North 
and South America 10 0.3 19 1.6

342 12.0 87 7.4

ASIA
China 58 2.0 25 2.1
Taiwan 55 1.9 1 0.1
Hong Kong 42 1.5 50 4.2
Turkey 23 0.8 29 2.5
Japan 17 0.6 19 1.6
Rep. of Korea 15 0.5 7 0.6
Malaysia 11 0.4 13 1.1
Other Asian countries 61 2.1 34 2.8

282 9.9 178 15.1
Australia 23 0.8 6 0.5
South Africa 9 0.3 1 0.1
Other countries 3 0.4 6 0.5

Group total 2 851 100.0 1 177 100.0

1) Net sales, operating profit and total assets are presented by the location of the Group or associated companies.

2) Finland includes amortisation of negative goodwill EUR 45 million

3) Net sales are presented by destination.
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Personnel by country at 31 December 2001 2000

EUROPE
Sweden 3 286 -
Finland 2 635 2 295
UK 1 697 -
Germany 205 42
Netherlands 162 101
France 86 -
Italy 85 -
Belgium 76 -
Estonia 69 -
Austria 54 -
Denmark 32 -
Spain 23 -
Czech Republic 23 -
Poland 19 -
Norway 14 -
Hungary 13 -
Other countries 25 -

8 504 2 438

NORTH AND SOUTH AMERICA
USA 361 -
Canada 35 -
Mexico 28 -

424 -

ASIA
Indonesia 20 -
Other countries 27 -

47 -

Australia 25 -
South Africa 4 -

Group total 9 004 2 438

3. Cost of sales

EUR million 2001 2000

Raw materials and merchandise 1 317 550
Fuels and supplies 173 86
Wages and salaries 241 71
Other personnel expenses 71 24
Rents and leases 7 2
Energy expenses 110 74
Depreciation and amortisation 110 57
Production for own use -11 -5
Change in inventories 85 -69
Other cost of sales 436 87

2 539 877

4. Personnel expenses

Fees and salaries paid to the Board of Directors and Managing Directors 1) 5 1
Other wages and salaries 319 84
Pension contributions 36 11
Other personnel expenses 2) 61 17
Personnel expenses in the income statement 421 113

1) Includes bonuses of EUR 2 million (2000: EUR 0 million).
2) Includes EUR - million (2000: EUR 7 million) of profit-sharing bonuses based on the Finnish

Personnel Funds Act.

Average number of personnel 8 855 2 500
Personnel at 31 December 9 004 2 438
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EUR million 2001 2000

5. Unusual items

Restructuring provisions related to the combination
Degerfors Stainless -23 -
Others -6 -

Additional amortisation of negative goodwill 29 -
- -

6. Other operating income and expenses

Other operating income
Gains on sales of fixed assets 1 0
Other income items 14 1

15 1
Other operating expenses

Losses on disposals of fixed assets and scrapping -4 -2
Other expense items -4 -0

-8 -2

Other operating income and expenses, total 7 -1

7. Provisions for restructuring measures

Provisions at 1 January - -
Combination 6 -
Restructuring costs charged against provisions -8 -
New provisions recorded and changes in earlier provisions 28 -
Provisions at 31 December 26 -

8. Financial income and expenses

Dividends received 3 0
Interest income on long-term financial assets 1 -
Other interest income 7 3
Other financial income 2 0
Interest expenses -22 -8
Other financial expenses -1 -0
Exchange gains (losses) 0 0

-10 -5

Interest capitalised on investment projects during the year was EUR 4 million (2000: EUR 0 million). Total interest capitalised on fixed assets
at 31 December 2001 was EUR 49 million (31 December 2000: EUR 11 million).

The interest component of derivative financial instruments consists of EUR 0 million (2000: EUR 1 million) in other interest income, and 
EUR 0 million (2000: EUR 0 million) in interest expenses.

Exchange gains and losses in the income statement
In net sales -12 -5
In purchases and other expenses 12 12
In financial income and expenses 0 0

At the balance sheet date, EUR 2 million of unrealised net exchange gains on financial instruments were not accrued for (2000: EUR 2 million). 

9. Extraordinary items

Extraordinary income
Group contributions to the Outokumpu Group - -113
Change in the accounting principle (inventory valuation) - 15

Of which deferred taxes - -4
Total extraordinary items - -102
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EUR million 2001 2000

10. Income taxes

Current taxes
Accrued taxes for the year

Finnish Group companies -23 -43
Group companies outside Finland -25 -1

Tax adjustments for prior years
Finnish Group companies 0 -0
Group companies outside Finland 1 -

-47 -44
Deferred taxes

Deferred taxes in Group companies
Finnish Group companies 1 -2
Group companies outside Finland 31 -0

Deferred taxes on untaxed reserves
Finnish Group companies 6 5
Group companies outside Finland -3 -

Deferred taxes on consolidation
Finnish Group companies -1 3
Group companies outside Finland -3 -

31 6

Total income taxes -16 -38

The difference between income taxes computed at the statutory tax rate in Finland (29%) and 
income taxes reported in the consolidated income statement is reconciled as follows:

Hypothetical income taxes at Finnish tax rate -37 -40
Effect of different tax rates outside Finland 3 -0
Non-deductible expenses and tax exempt income 0 -0
Losses incurred by Group companies outside Finland
for which no deferred tax benefit is recognised -7 -
Elimination entries without tax effect 18 0
Changes in carrying amounts of deferred tax assets at 1 January 3 -
Taxes from prior years 1 -0
Income taxes related to extraordinary items - 4
Other items 3 -2
Income taxes in the consolidated income statement -16 -38

Deferred taxes in the balance sheet consist of the following tax consequences from temporary 
differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their amounts in financial reporting:

Deferred tax assets
Tax losses carried forward 22 -
Effect of consolidation 6 3
Provisions for future expenses 5 -
Other items 6 -

39 3
Deferred tax liabilities

Depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets -188 -96
Capitalised interest -14 -
Untaxed reserves -11 -
Valuation of inventories -7 -8
Effect of consolidation -4 -
Other items -8 -4

-232 -108

Net deferred tax liability -193 -105

Deferred taxes in the balance sheet:
Long-term assets 14 -
Long-term liabilities -207 -99
Current liabilities - -6

-193 -105

Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been reported as a net balance for Group companies who file a consolidated tax return, or may
otherwise be consolidated for tax purposes. 
At 31 December 2001 AvestaPolarit had deferred tax assets of EUR 43 million (2000: -), the utilisation of which was not probable and
which were not recognised in the balance sheet. At 31 December 2001 AvestaPolarit also had tax loss carry-forwards of EUR 60 million,
which did not create deferred tax asset in the balance sheet. Of these tax loss carry-forwards EUR 1 million expire in the following 3-5 years 
(2000: -) and the rest earliest in the year 2007.



11. Fixed assets

Accumulated Carrying
Historical cost Translation Other depreciation value at

EUR million at 1 Jan 2001 difference Combination additions Disposals 31 Dec 2001 31 Dec 2001

Intangible assets
Intangible rights 5 0 0 1 -0 -5 1
Goodwill - - 2 - 1 -3 0
Goodwill on consolidation - - - 4 - -0 3
Other long-term expenses 13 - 1 15 -0 -12 17
Goodwill netting 1) - - - -4 - 0 -3

18 0 3 16 1 -20 18
Property, plant and equipment

Land 1 -0 32 2 -0 -4 31
Mine properties 1 - - - 1 -1 1
Buildings 221 -1 223 7 3 -255 198
Machinery and equipment 806 -16 1 188 59 -2 -1 169 866
Other fixed assets 25 -1 34 14 34 -61 45
Advances paid for fixed assets 
and construction in progress 61 -1 60 317 -73 - 364

1 115 -19 1 537 399 -37 -1 490 1 505

Long-term financial assets
Investments in associated companies 2) - -0 20 1 -2 - 19
Other long-term equity investments 15 -0 9 1 -16 - 9
Long-term loans receivable - 0 8 1 -6 - 3
Deferred tax asset - -0 1 12 1 - 14
Other financial assets - -1 15 1 -2 - 13

15 -1 53 16 -25 - 58

Total fixed assets 1 148 -20 1 593 431 -61 -1 510 1 581

1) Goodwill netted with negative goodwill in balance sheet, see note 16.
2) Associated companies at 31 December 2001 are listed on page 75.

Depreciation
Accumulated Accumulated Accumulated
depreciation depreciation Depreciation depreciation

EUR million at 1 Jan 2001 Combination of disposals during period 31 Dec 2001

Intangible assets

Intangible rights 4 0 - 0 1 5
Goodwill - 2 1 0 3
Other long-term expenses 10 0 0 2 12

14 2 1 3 20
Property, plant and equipment

Land - 4 -0 0 4
Mine properties 1 - - 0 1
Buildings 93 147 -1 16 255
Machinery and equipment 423 694 -44 96 1 169
Other fixed assets 8 19 29 5 61

525 864 -16 117 1 490

Total fixed assets 539 866 -15 120 1 510
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EUR million 2001 2000

Depreciation and amortisation by group of expenses

Cost of sales 110 57
Selling and marketing expenses 3 0
Administrative expenses 6 2
Research and development expenses 1 1
Total 120 60

Amortisation on positive goodwill on consolidation 0 -
Amortisation of negative goodwill on consolidation -75 -
Total -75 -

Depreciation and amortisation total 45 60

12.Associated companies

Investments in associated companies
Historical cost at 1 January - -
Additions 7 -
Historical cost at 31 December 7 -

Equity adjustment to investments in associated companies
1 January - -
Change in translation difference 0 -
Additions 16 -
Disposals and other changes -4 -
Equity earnings in associated companies -0 -
31 December 12 -

Carrying value of investments in associated companies 19 -

Receivables from and liabilities to associated companies
Long-term receivables

Loans receivable 0 -
Current  receivables

Accounts receivable 3 -
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 3 -

The Group's result does not include interest income on 
loans receivable from associated companies (2000: EUR - million).

13. Inventories

Raw materials 95 28
Fuels and supplies 23 13
Work in progress 277 76
Finished goods and merchandise 269 122

664 239
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EUR million 2001 2000

14. Receivables

Receivables in the balance sheet

Accounts receivable 484 136
Loans receivable 4 -
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 48 22
Other receivables 36 8

572 166

Prepaid expenses and accrued income
Value added taxes receivable 22 15
Accrued exchange gains 1 4
Prepaid interest expenses and accrued interest income 2 -
Other items 23 3

48 22

At 31 December 2001 the Group companies had EUR 0 million current loans to the Parent Company's or subsidiaries' management (2000:-).
Receivables include non-current receivables of EUR 0 million in 2001 (2000:-). 
Long-term and short term receivables include interest-bearing assets of EUR 7 million at 31 December 2001 (2000:-).

15. Shareholders' equity

Share capital 
Share capital at 1 January 104 102
Bonus issue - 2
Targeted issue 84 -
Share capital at 31 December 188 104

Premium fund 
Premium fund at 1 January 212 180
Bonus issue - -2
Targeted issue 1) 390 -
Other changes - 34
Premium fund at 31 December 602 212

Retained earnings
Retained earnings at 1 January 259 284
Prior year's profit 101 -25
Dividends paid -52 0
Change in translation difference -4 -
Retained earnings at 31 December 304 259

Profit for the financial year 112 101

Total shareholders' equity at 31 December 1 206 676

Distributable funds
Retained earnings 304 259
Profit for the financial year 112 101
Less untaxed reserves in shareholders' equity -220 -237
Other undistributable equity 0 -

Distributable funds at 31 December 196 123

Untaxed reserves in equity
Untaxed reserves at 31 December 309 333
Deferred tax liability on untaxed reserves -89 96

Untaxed reserves in equity at 31 December 220 237

1) The difference between the increase in premium fund in consolidated accounts (EUR 390 million) and that in the Parent Company (EUR 528 million) results from the fact 
that the statutory amount for the share issues and the respective increase in premium fund for the Parent Company had to be fixed before the completion of the 
combination, while the consolidated figures are based on the final valuation at combination. The valuation for the Parent Company statutory purposes was based on 
Avesta Sheffield’s weighted average share price of SEK 33.39 per share during the three months before the announcement of the combination in September 2000. 
The final valuation was based on Avesta Sheffield’s closing share price of SEK 27.00 per share at completion of the combination on 22 January 2001.
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EUR million 2001 2000

16. Negative goodwill

Negative goodwill at 1 January - -
Additions 479 -
Amortisation of negative goodwill

Amortisation -46 -
Additional amortisation -29 -

Negative goodwill in the balance sheet (gross) 31 December 404 -
Goodwill in the balance sheet (gross) 31 December -3 -
Negative goodwill in the balance sheet (net) 31 December 401 -

17.Liabilities

Liabilities in the balance sheet

Long-term liabilities
Interest-bearing

Bonds and debentures 2 -
Loans from financial institutions 157 1
Pension loans 38 4
Other long-term loans 6 60

203 65
Non interest-bearing

Deferred tax liablitity 207 99
Other long-term liabilities 78 0

285 99
Current liabilites
Interest-bearing

Bonds and debentures 2 -
Loans from financial institutions 123 3
Pension loans 3 0
Bills payable 1 -
Other current loans 262 61

391 64
Non interest-bearing

Advances received 1 0
Accounts payable 248 92
Accrued expenses and prepaid income 137 73
Other current liabilities 42 11

428 176

Total liabilities 1 307 404

Repayment schedule of long-term debt at 31 December 2001

EUR million Repayments

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007- Total

Bonds and debentures USD 2 2 - - - - 4 
Loans from financial institutions EUR 0 0 0 0 0 35 35 

USD - 2 - - - - 2 
SEK - 1 1 112 1 4 119

Pension loans EUR 3 6 4 4 5 18 40
SEK - 0 0 0 0 2 2

Other long-term loans EUR 0 0 0 - - - 0
SEK 1 1 0 1 0 4 7

Total 6 12 5 117 6 63 209

Average maturity for long-term debt was 6 years and 3 months, and the average interest rate was 4.06 %.

Bonds and debentures Interest rate 2001 2000
Debenture 2001-2003 8.00% 4 -

Accrued expenses and prepaid income
Accrued employee related expenses 55 27
Income taxes payable 27 42
Accrued interest expenses and prepaid interest income 9 1
Other 46 3

137 73
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18. Management of financial risks

Internal financial control and risk management

The Board of Directors is responsible for determining

the long-term strategy of the Group, the product sectors

and markets in which the Group operates and the level

of risk acceptable in each area of its business.

Responsibility for the management and control of busi-

ness risk is delegated to the President & CEO. 

AvestaPolarit operates a system of internal control

aimed at ensuring that the assets of the Group are safe-

guarded, business transactions authorised and recorded

properly and any material errors and irregularities

either prevented or detected within a timely period.

However, no system of internal control can provide

absolute assurance against material misstatement or

loss. The internal audit function undertakes a programme

of work focused on the areas of greatest perceived busi-

ness risk, including corporate and business unit activities.

This work is aimed at highlighting control weaknesses

to which the Group could be exposed so that corrective

action can be taken.

The Group considers security of its operational per-

formance as a high priority and uses structured and

systematic risk management in this area. To reduce its

exposure to catastrophe losses, AvestaPolarit uses

insurance, most of which is arranged through a wholly

owned subsidiary, which reinsures catastrophe risks

with the external insurance market.

The Group's business operations involve many

market price, credit and liquidity risks. The business

units are responsible for the identification of their risks,

which are mainly hedged through intra-group transac-

tions. The finance controllers in business units monitor

the risk management practices in their units.

AvestaPolarit seeks to manage and monitor its

external and internal funding requirements and treasury

risks in support of Group objectives. Treasury activities

are governed by policies and procedures approved by

the Board of Directors. The Group's treasury function

(Corporate Treasury) operates as an internal bank and

manages foreign exchange and interest rate risks

aiming to hedge a significant part of the identified

exposures and provides financial advice to operating

businesses and subsidiaries. Corporate Treasury is also

responsible for management of the Group's liquidity

risk and credit risks related to finance. Corporate

Treasury manages, in a non-speculative manner, any

financial risks related to funding, interest rate and

foreign currency. Counterparty credit risk is also con-

trolled by Corporate Treasury, with specific limits

applied to counterparties and to transactions.

Details of the operations of the Board of Directors

and the Audit Committee are summarised in the sec-

tion Corporate Governance on pages 87 to 88.

Market price risks

Exchange rate risks

The Group's foreign exchange policy with regard to

transaction exposure is to fully hedge receivables,

payables and other contractual commercial items,

combined with some hedging of forecast cash flows.

The hedge level for anticipated currency flows varies

between business units. Foreign currency contracts do

not generally extend beyond twelve months.

The Group, in common with the steel industry

generally, does not hedge its economic exposure for

long-term foreign exchange risks. Equity hedging of

currency exposures in the form of investments in

foreign subsidiaries is not undertaken as the Group's

balance sheet is regarded as strong and able to absorb

fluctuations in value arising from such exchange move-

ments in underlying assets. 

The effects of fluctuations in the relationship between

the Swedish krona, sterling, the US dollar, and the euro

(which tends to be the dominating currency for

European steel selling prices) are complex. Variations in a

specific direction will not always have a consistent effect

on Group profitability, which can be affected by other

related economic factors. At 31 December 2001 AvestaPolarit

had outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts for

the amount of EUR 201 million (EUR 190 million). 

At 31 December 2001 the average maturity for

currency forwards was 3.5 months.

Interest rate risks

In order to effectively manage interest rate risks, the

Group's loans and investments are dispersed in fixed

and floating rate instruments. In the management of

interest rate risks the most important currencies are the

euro and Swedish krona. The Group's net interest-bearing

debt is mostly in euro. 

During 2001, much of the Group's borrowings have

been through a Finnish Domestic Commercial Paper

Programme, using short tenors. This has benefited the

Group's net interest costs because of the reduction in

interest rates throughout the year. At 31 December 2001,

the weighted average term of Group utilisation of both

committed and uncommitted funding was 26 months. 

During 2001 the Group introduced a cash pool in several

European countries for euro transactions. This has improved

the efficiency of cash management for those countries. 
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Metal price risks

Nickel is the most significant raw material cost associated

with the manufacture of stainless steel. Selling prices

for the majority of the Group's sales include an alloy

surcharge (Alloy Adjustment Factor), which is an auto-

matic hedge against price fluctuations in nickel,

chromium and molybdenum. There is a forward and

futures market for nickel, which can be used to secure

the price of nickel.  In those instances where the Group

sells at fixed prices, which constitute a relatively small

proportion of the Group's business, it seeks to reduce

its exposure to the potential volatility of nickel prices

by using the forward price fixing mechanisms offered

by the London Metal Exchange. At 31 December 2001,

the Group held forward price contracts for the purchase

of nickel totalling the equivalent of EUR 20 million

(market value EUR 19 million).

The profitability of the Kemi mining operation is

directly dependent on the market price of ferrochrome.

There is no forward or futures market, which can be

used to secure the price of ferrochrome. 

At 31 December 2001 the Group had metal derivative

contracts (nickel forwards) of 3 126 tonnes (612 tonnes). 

Electricity risks

The Executive Committee has approved a Power Policy

for the Group. Changes in electricity prices in both the

UK and the Nordic region represent a price risk for the

Group's production plants. The Group's electricity pur-

chasing in the UK and the Nordic region is coordinated

by the Group's Power Committee, which is also respon-

sible for managing the electricity risk. Electricity pur-

chases for other locations are carried out locally.

The portfolio of electricity supplies includes derivative

contracts and agreements with physical delivery.

Derivative contracts are made on the Nord Pool electri-

city exchange and with approved counter-parties. At 31

December 2001 the Group had electricity forwards of

43 GWh (- GWh). 

Credit risks

The Group seeks to minimise the credit risks related to

financial instruments by limiting the counter-parties to

major banks, other financial institutions and brokers

and suppliers of electrical power, whose credit rating is

good.  Money market investments are made in liquid

instruments with low credit risk. Credit risks did not

produce bad debts during 2001.

The Group's accounts receivable are generated by a

large number of customers in various industries

around the world. Credit risks on these commercial

flows are managed by business units, with overall risk

monitored by the Chief Financial Officer.

Liquidity risk

The Group seeks to minimise liquidity and refinancing

risks through a balanced maturity profile of loans, as well

as by ensuring that adequate committed and uncom-

mitted credit lines are available. This objective calls for

efficient cash and liquidity management. The current

main funding programmes and credit facilities include:

a) Two committed multi-currency 364-day bilateral credit

facilities to AvestaPolarit Oyj Abp, each for EUR 150

million, available from February 2002 and expiring 

in February 2003. These facilities replaced a commit-

ted 364-day credit facility for EUR 250 million, 

which expired in February 2002.

b) A committed credit facility to AvestaPolarit Oyj Abp

from the Nordic Investment Bank of EUR 35 million,

which is available until November 2009.

c) A committed multi-currency revolving credit facility

to AvestaPolarit AB of EUR 300 million from a con-

sortium of 14 banks, expiring in May 2005. This 

facility is available for the total Group.

d) A committed credit facility for EUR 35 million for 10

years to AvestaPolarit Oyj Abp.

e) A Finnish Domestic Commercial Paper Programme 

totalling EUR 350 million, of which EUR 229 million

was utilised at 31 December 2001.

f) An operational lease facility for EUR 61 million to 

partly finance the purchase of the new rolling, anne-

aling and pickling line being installed at Tornio.

The Group also has uncommitted credit lines with

domestic and overseas banks which are used to finan-

ce working capital requirements. 

At 31 December 2001, unutilised credit facilities

totalled EUR 570 million for the Group and EUR 281

million for the Parent Company.

During 2001, the Group repaid all outstanding

intra-group loans between Outokumpu Steel and

Outokumpu Group. 

Fair value of investments and receivables, debt and

derivatives

The carrying values and fair values of the Group's

investments and receivables, debt and derivatives at 31

December 2001 are presented in the following table.

Fair values were estimated based on market prices,

where available, or dealer quotes. 
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2001 2000
EUR million Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value

Investments and receivables
Investments in associated companies 19 19 - -
Other long-term equity investments 9 10 15 15
Long-term loans receivable 3 3 - -
Current loans receivable 4 4 - -
Cash and marketable securities 105 105 76 76

Debt
Long-term debt 203 203 65 65
Current debt 391 391 65 65

Financial derivatives 1)

Forward foreign exchange contracts -1 1 4 3

Metal derivatives 1)

Forward nickel contracts -1 -1 - 0

Electricity derivatives 1)

Forward contracts - 0 - -

1) The derivative transactions have been made for hedging purposes. The fair value of derivatives indicates the result of those transactions if the deals were closed at the 

balance sheet date. 

19. Commitments and contingent liabilities

EUR million 2001 2000

Pledges at 31 December
Mortgages to secure own borrowings 43 6
Mortgages to secure together with Outokumpu Oyj - 152

43 158

Guarantees at 31 December (on behalf of other parties)
For financing 73 3
For other commitments 11 4

84 7

Minimum future lease payments on operating leases at 31 December
In 2002 7 2
Thereafter 97 3

104 5

The mortgages are given to secure loans of EUR 39 million, mostly being pension loans. 
Management expects that the pledges and guarantees given on behalf of the Group's own commitments and on behalf of other parties

will not have a material adverse impact on the Group's result or financial position. 

Pension liabilities
The Group companies have various pension schemes in accordance with the local conditions and practices in the countries where they operate.
The schemes are generally funded through payments to insurance companies or to trustee-administered funds as determined by periodic
actuarial calculations.

In relation to the United Kingdom (UK), AvestaPolarit’s UK subsidiaries are members of the British Steel Pension Scheme (1990) as regards
their employees at the date of combination. There is a special agreement as part of the Combination Agreement, according to which the current
employees in the UK will remain in the British Steel Pension Scheme. If the UK Inland Revenue in the future gives notice requiring the cessa-
tion of participation of AvestaPolarit in the British Steel Pension Scheme, AvestaPolarit will be required to establish a similar pension scheme.
Corus Group will, for a period up to 31 March 2008, compensate AvestaPolarit based on the difference between the contributions needed to
set up a separate AvestaPolarit Pension Scheme, and those contributions it would have paid whilst remaining in the British Steel Pension
Scheme. Such compensation is limited to a maximum payment of GBP 18 million. Regarding new employees in the UK employed after the
combination, AvestaPolarit has set up a new separate scheme.



21. Subsidiaries by country at 31 December 2001

Country Nature Group
of holding,

activity %

AvestaPolarit Pty Ltd 1) Australia ● 100
AvestaPolarit Ges.m.b.H 1) Austria ● 100
AvestaPolarit N.V. 1) Belgium ● 100
Hertecant N.V. Belgium ▲ 100
2843617 Canada Inc. Canada ◗ 100
AvestaPolarit s.r.o. 1) Czech Republic ● 100
AvestaPolarit A/S 1) Denmark ● 100
AS Avesta Polarit Ratas Oü 1) Estonia ▲ 92
AvestaPolarit Baltic Oü 1) Estonia ● 100
AvestaPolarit Chrome Oy *) 1, 2) Finland ❖▲ 100
AvestaPolarit Finland Oy 1) Finland ● 100
AvestaPolarit Stainless Oy *) 1, 2) Finland ▲ 100
Finnbend Oy Finland ▲ 100
Finnpipe Oy Finland ▲ 75
Kandelinin Seuraajat Oy 2) Finland ◗ 100
Oy JA-RO Ab *) 2) Finland ▲ 100
SH-Trade Oy Finland ● 100
AvestaPolarit ABE SARL 1) France ● 100
AvestaPolarit SA 1) France ● 100
E.L.F.E. SA France ● 100
AvestaPolarit GmbH 1) Germany ● 100
AvestaPolarit Holding GmbH 1) Germany ❂ 100
AvestaPolarit Plate Service Centre Germany 1) Germany ▲ 100
AvestaPolarit Service Center Bönen GmbH 1) Germany ●▲ 100
AvestaPolarit Stainless Oy & Co. KG 1) Germany ◗ 100
AvestaPolarit Asia Pacific Ltd *) 1) Hong Kong ● 100
AvestaPolarit Kft 1) Hungary ● 100
PT AvestaPolarit Welding Products 1) Indonesia ▲   100
AvestaPolarit Ireland Ltd 1) Ireland ● 100
AvestaPolarit S.p.A. 1) Italy ●▲ 100
AvestaPolarit Japan K.K. 3) Japan ● 100
AvestaPolarit UAB 1) Lithuania ● 100
AvestaPolarit ABE, S.A. de C.V. 1) Mexico ▲ 100
AvestaPolarit B.V. 1) Netherlands ● 100
AvestaPolarit Finance B.V. 1) Netherlands ◗ 100
AvestaPolarit Gebouwen B.V. 1) Netherlands ◗ 100
AvestaPolarit Holding B.V. 1) Netherlands ❂ 100
AvestaPolarit Plate Service Centre Benelux B.V. 1) Netherlands ▲ 100
AvestaPolarit Processing B.V. 1, 2) Netherlands ▲ 100
Avesta Sandvik Tube B.V. Netherlands ▲ 75
AvestaPolarit AS 1) Norway ●▲ 100
AvestaPolarit Sp z o.o. 1) Poland ● 100
ZAO AvestaPolarit 1) Russia ● 100
AvestaPolarit (SEA) Pte Ltd 1) Singapore ● 100
AvestaPolarit (Pty) Ltd 1) South Africa ● 100
AvestaPolarit S.A. 1) Spain ● 100
AB Örnsköldsviks Mekaniska Verkstad (ÖMV) Sweden ▲ 100
Avesta Sandvik Tube AB Sweden ▲ 75
AvestaPolarit AB (publ) **) 1) Sweden ▲ 98,6
AvestaPolarit ABE AB 1) Sweden ▲ 100
AvestaPolarit Information Systems AB 1) Sweden ◗ 100
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20. Disputes and litigations

In June 1998, the US Authorities initiated an investigation

into claims of dumping of cold rolled sheet and strip

(including foil) in coil against the UK. A preliminary

deposit rate of 13.45% was determined, which applied

to shipments landed in the USA between 17 December

1998 and 27 July 1999. A final deposit rate of 14.48%

was issued in July 1999, which has applied to shipments

from the UK landed in the USA from 27 July 1999.

The status of the steel import relief proceeding by

the United States International Trade Commission is

described in the Directors' report on page 44.

In addition to the above, some Group companies

are involved in disputes related to their business.

Management believes that the outcome of such disputes

will not have a material impact on the Group's financial

position.
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Country Nature Group
of holding,

activity %

AvestaPolarit Nordic AB 1) Sweden ● 100
AvestaPolarit Plate Service Centre Nordic AB 1) Sweden ▲ 100
AvestaPolarit Prefab AB 1) Sweden ▲ 100
AvestaPolarit Press Plate AB 1) Sweden ▲ 100
AvestaPolarit Welding AB 1) Sweden ▲ 100
Billing Metal Trading AB Sweden ▲ 100
Calamo Nords AB Sweden ▲ 100
Husqvarna Elektrolytpolering AB Sweden ▲ 100
Visent Invest AB Sweden ◗ 100
Visenta Försäkrings AB Sweden ◗ 100
AvestaPolarit Holdings Ltd 1) United Kingdom ❂ 100
AvestaPolarit Ltd 1) United Kingdom ▲ 100
AvestaPolarit Pension Trustees Ltd 3) United Kingdom ◗ 100
AvestaPolarit Bar Company 1) USA ▲ 100
AvestaPolarit Coil, Inc. 1) USA ● 100
AvestaPolarit East, Inc. 1) USA ▲ 100
AvestaPolarit, Inc. 1) USA ❂ 100
AvestaPolarit Pipe, Inc. 1) USA ▲ 100
AvestaPolarit Plate, Inc. 1) USA ▲ 100
AvestaPolarit Welding, Inc. 1) USA ● 100

Foreign branches
AvestaPolarit S.A., Branch Office, Portugal
AvestaPolarit Asia Pacific Ltd, Branch Office, Republic of Korea
AvestaPolarit Asia Pacific Ltd, Representative Offices, China and Taiwan
AvestaPolarit Baltic Oü, Branch Office, Latvia

This list does not include dormant companies. However, all companies owned by the Parent Company are included. The Group holding cor-
responds to the Group's share of voting rights.

1)     Name change
2)     AvestaPolarit Oyj Abp's subsidiaries at 31 December 2000. All other companies acquired during the year 2001.
3)     Founded

*) Shares and ownership interests held by the Parent Company.
**) Parent Company's ownership 98.6%.

Legend
❂ Management or holding
❖ Mining
▲ Production
● Sales and marketing
❑ Research and development
◗ Service

22. Associated companies and other shares and stock at 31 December 2001

Country Nature Group
of holding,

activity %

Shares and ownership interests in associated companies
ABB Industriunderhåll AB Sweden ◗ 49
Avesta Valbruna AB Sweden ▲ 50
Djäknehytterotarnas Skifteslag Sweden ◗ 50
Fagersta Stainless AB Sweden ▲ 50
IT Barents Region AS Norway ❂ 40
Jan Sahlin Gjutteknik AB Sweden ▲ 20
Prokopto AB Sweden ◗ 25
Rekuperator Svenska AB Sweden ❑ 40
Ståltransporter i Avesta AB Sweden ◗ 49
Svältbackens Kraft AB Sweden ▲ 33

Other shares and stock
The market value of the shares in publicly listed companies included in other 
shares and ownership interests exceeds the balance sheet value of EUR 9 million 
by EUR 1 million.
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23. Changes in Group structure in 2001

The exchange offer for the combination of Avesta

Sheffield AB and Outokumpu Steel Oyj stated that the

legal ownership of two German companies, Outokumpu

Service Centre GmbH and Outokumpu Holding

GmbH & Co. Grundstucks KG, would be transferred

from the Outokumpu Group to AvestaPolarit at or

around the beginning of 2001. The transfers were to be

carried out at net asset value. The purchase price was

to be based on the net asset value at 31 December 2000.

The actual purchase price, assessed by external experts,

was EUR 6 million, including goodwill of EUR 3 million.

This goodwill is subject to depreciation over a 10-year

period.

In August, AvestaPolarit purchased the 50% share it

did not already own in AvestaPolarit Asia Pacific Ltd

(BVI) from Corus Asia Limited, whose ultimate parent

company is Corus Group plc. The agreed purchase price

was EUR 4 million, including goodwill of EUR 1 million.

This goodwill is subject to depreciation over a 5-year

period. This company was subsequently sold.

All other additions to the legal Group structure

took place in the combination on 22 January 2001.

Companies merged and dissolved 

Avesta Chemicals AB

Avesta Lining AB

Avesta Sheffield Precision Strip AB

Billing Edelstahl GmbH

Handlesmj Roestvrij B.V.

Visenta AB

Visenta Holding AB

Visenta Trading AB

Visentfrakt AB

Companies sold

AvestaPolarit Asia Pacific Ltd (BVI)

The effect of sales of business operations on the conso-

lidated net sales is EUR 0 million (2000: -)

24. Production of main products
Actual

1,000 tonnes 2001 2000

Coil Products
Slabs 1 404.8 636.3
Cold rolling mill production
- cold rolled material 746.3 421.7
- white hot strip 323.8 135.0

Special Products
Ferrochrome 236.0 260.7
Tubes and tube fittings 50.8 32.1
Quarto plate 60.9 -
Long products 197.1 -
Precision strip 23.1 -

North America
Quarto plate, bar and tubes 71.1 -



EUR million 2001 2000

Net sales 32 6

Sales and marketing expenses -7 -
Administrative expenses -31 -7
Research and development expenses -1 -0
Other operating income and expenses [3] -0 -0

Operating loss [1-3] -7 -1

Financial income and expenses [4] -2 -0

Loss before extraordinary items -9 -1

Extraordinary items [5] 81 146

Profit before appropriations and taxes 72 145

Appropriations 0 0

Income taxes [6] -21 -42

Profit for the financial year 50 103

According to Finnish regulations, the separate financial statements of the Parent Company must also be presented. The items included in the Parent Company financial 
statements may not directly reflect their nature or significance from the Group's point of view. The net sales of the Parent Company are mainly internal within the Group. 

Figures in brackets refer to notes to the Parent Company financial statements on pages 80-82.
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Parent company financial statements

Income statement
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Balance sheet

EUR million 2001 2000

ASSETS
Fixed assets and other long-term investments [7]

Intangible assets 1 0

Property and equipment 0 0

Long-term financial assets 936 318

Total fixed assets and other long-term investments 937 318

Current assets

Receivables [9] 500 149

Cash and bank 1 -

Total current assets 501 149

TOTAL ASSETS 1 438 467

EUR million 2001 2000

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ equity [8]
Share capital 188 104
Premium fund 740 212
Retained earnings 52 1
Profit for the financial year 50 103

Total shareholders' equity 1 030 420

Untaxed reserves
Accumulated depreciation difference 0 0

Liabilities

Long-term [9]
Interest-bearing 37 -
Non interest-bearing 1 -

38 -

Current [9]
Interest-bearing 366 -
Non interest-bearing 4 47

370 47

Total liabilities 408 47

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1 438 467



Statement of cash flows
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EUR million 2001 2000

Operating activities
Result for the financial year 50 103
Depreciation and amortisation 0 0
Change in depreciation difference -0 -0
Income financing 50 103
Change in working capital 

(Increase) in current non interest-bearing receivables -3 -0
(Decrease) increase in current non interest-bearing liabilities -42 42

-45 42
Other adjustments  *) -39 -146

Cash provided by operating activities -34 -1

Investing activities
Capital expenditures on purchase of fixed assets -1 -0
Investments in Group companies and other equity investments -7 -38
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets 0 1
Increase (decrease) in long-term financial assets -307 4

Cash used in investing activities -315 -33

Cash flow before financing activities -349 -34

Financing activities
Borrowings of long-term debt 36 -
Increase in current debt 366 -
Dividends paid -52 -
Share issue - 34
Other financial items - -0

Cash used in financing activities 350 34

Increase (decrease) in cash and marketable
securities in the balance sheet 1 -0

*) Includes gains and losses on sales of fixed assets, exchange gains and losses, and group contributions.
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Notes to the Parent Company financial statements

EUR million 2001 2000

1. Personnel expenses

Fees and salaries paid to the Board of Directors and President 1 0
Other salaries 2 0
Pension contributions 1 0
Other personnel expenses 0 0
Personnel expenses in the income statement 4 0

Average number of personnel 17 5
Personnel at 31 December 20 4

2. Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation by group of assets
Intangible assets 0 0
Other long-term expenses 0 0
Buildings - 0
Machinery and equipment 0 0

0 0
Depreciation and amortisation
by group of expenses

Administrative expenses 0 0
0 0

3. Other operating income and expenses

Other operating income
Gains on sales of fixed assets 0 0

Other operating expenses
Losses on disposal of fixed assets and sales of shares -0 -0

Other operating income and expenses, total -0 -0

4. Financial income and expenses

Interest income on current assets 8 0
Interest expenses -9 -0
Other financial expenses -1 -0

-2 -0
Financial income from and expenses to subsidiaries

Interest income on
Long-term financial assets 0 -
Current assets 7 0

Interest expenses
Long-term loans -0 -
Other interest expenses -1 -0

Other financial expenses -0 -
6 0

5. Extraordinary items

Group contributions 81 146

6. Income taxes

Income taxes
Accrued taxes for the year -21 -42
Tax adjustments for prior years - -0

-21 -42

Deferred taxes in the balance sheet 
Deferred tax liabilities - 0
Deferred tax assets 0 -

Net deferred tax asset 0 0
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7. Fixed assets

Accumulated Accumulated Accumulated Carrying
Historical cost depreciation depreciation Depreciation depreciation value at

EUR million at 1 Jan 2001 Additions Disposals 1 Jan 2001 of disposals during period 31 Dec 2001 31 Dec 2001

Intangible assets 0 1 -0 -0 0 -0 -0 1

Property and 
equipment

Machinery and
equipment 0 0 -0 -0 0 -0 -0 0
Other fixed assets 0 0 -0 - - - - 0

0 0 -0 -0 0 -0 -0 0

Long-term financial assets
Shareholdings in 
subsidiaries 314 620 - - - - - 934
Other long-term 
equity investments 4 - -4 - - - - -
Long-term loans
receivable - 2 - - - - - 2

318 622 -4 - - - - 936

Total fixed assets 318 623 -4 -0 0 -0 -0 937

EUR million 2001 2000

8. Shareholders' equity

Share capital at 1 January 104 102
Bonus issue - 2
Targeted issue 84 -
Share capital at 31 December 188 104

Premium fund at 1 January 212 180
Bonus issue - -2
Targeted issue 528 34
Premium fund at 31 December 740 212

Retained earnings at 1 January 1 1
Prior year's profit 103 0
Dividends paid -52 -
Retained earnings at 31 December 52 1

Profit for the financial year 50 103

Total shareholders' equity at 31 December 1 030 420

Distributable funds
Retained earnings at 31 December 52 1
Profit for the financial year 50 103
Distributable funds at 31 December 102 104
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9. Receivables and liabilities

EUR million 2001 2000

Receivables
Accounts receivable 0 0
Loans receivable 310 3
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 4 1
Other receivables 186 145

500 149

Long-term liabilities
Interest-bearing

Loans from financial institutions 35 -
Other long-term loans 2 -

37 -
Non interest-bearing

Other long-term liabilities 1 -

Current liabilites
Interest-bearing

Loans from financial institutions 90 -
Other current loans 276 -

366 -
Non interest-bearing

Accounts payable 0 3
Accrued expenses and prepaid income 2 44
Other current liabilities 2 -

4 47

Total liabilities 408 47

Receivables from and liabilities to subsidiaries
Long-term receivables

Loans receivable 2 -

Current receivables
Loans receivable 310 3
Accounts receivable 0 0
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 3 0
Other receivables 186 145

499 148

Long-term liabilities
Long-term loans 2 -

Current liabilities
Current loans 49 -
Accounts payable 0 3
Accrued expenses and prepaid income 0 1

49 4

Prepaid expenses and accrued income
Prepaid interest expenses and accrued interest income 4 -
Other 0 1

4 1

Accrued expenses and prepaid income
Accrued employee related expenses 1 0
Accrued interest expenses and prepaid interest income 1 -
Other 0 44

2 44

10. Commitments and contingent liabilities

Guarantees at 31 December
On behalf of subsidiaries

For financing 70 -
For other commitments 2 -

72 -

The pensions of employees have been arranged by pension insurance. Additional pensions have also been arranged
through life insurance companies and the pension liabilities are sufficiently funded.
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AvestaPolarit Oyj Abp's shares and shareholders 

Shares and share capital
AvestaPolarit Oyj Abp has issued a total of 348 942 296

shares. The accounting par value of each share is EUR

0.54. Each of the company's shares entitles shareholders

to one vote at general meetings of shareholders.

AvestaPolarit Oyj Abp's minimum authorised share

capital is EUR 100 000 000 and the maximum authorised

share capital is EUR 400 000 000. The issued share capital

may be increased or decreased within these limits

without amending the Articles of Association. The

company's issued and fully paid share capital registered

with the Finnish Trade Register at 31 December 2001

was EUR 188 428 839.84.

The company's shares are incorporated in the

Finnish book-entry securities system.

Listing of shares
AvestaPolarit Oyj Abp's shares are listed on the stock

exchanges in Stockholm (Stockholmsbörsen) and

Helsinki (Helsinki Securities and Derivatives Exchange,

Clearing House Ltd). The shares are quoted in Swedish

krona in Stockholm and in euro in Helsinki.

Shareholders' Agreement
In connection with the formation of the AvestaPolarit

Group, Outokumpu Oyj and Corus Group plc entered

into a Shareholders' Agreement regarding the sharehol-

ding in AvestaPolarit Oyj Abp of Outokumpu Oyj and

members of the Corus Group. The Shareholders'

Agreement remains in force until the first of the follo-

wing dates: (i) the date on which the Outokumpu

Group's shareholding in the company falls below 20%;

(ii) the date on which the Corus Group's shareholding

in the company falls below 10%; (iii) the date on which

the aggregate shareholdings of Outokumpu and Corus

in the company fall below 50%; and (iv) the date two

years after Outokumpu's shareholding in the company

has fallen below 40%. 

The agreement sets out the parties' agreement on,

among other things, the following:

Outokumpu has agreed to decrease its shareholding

in AvestaPolarit Oyj Abp to no more than 40% by 31

March 2004. However, this period may be extended

until 31 December 2005 in the case of materially adverse

capital market conditions. 

Outokumpu and Corus have agreed to vote con-

gruently when electing the Board of Directors.

Certain decisions of the Board of Directors are agreed

to require the support of all of the Board members

nominated by both Outokumpu and Corus. These

decisions include i.a. proposals to the shareholders'

meeting to amend the Articles of Association and to

increase the share capital, the appointment and dismissal

of the Chief Executive Officer, decisions on major busi-

ness acquisitions and divestments as well as decisions

on major capital expenditure schemes and major new

borrowings.

Redemption obligation
The Articles of Association contain a redemption clause

according to which a shareholder whose shareholding

or voting rights equals or exceeds 30% or 45%, respec-

tively, of all outstanding shares of the company or of

the voting rights, is obliged to redeem the shares of all

other shareholders who request such redemption, as

more precisely defined in the Articles of Association.

The Articles of Association provide for certain

exceptions to the redemption obligation and accordingly

the obligation does not apply to a shareholder whose

proportion of shares has reached or exceeded any of

the said thresholds prior to the registration of this

redemption obligation in the Articles of Association

with the Trade Register and the proportion continues to

exceed such a threshold. 

Authorisations
The Board of Directors of AvestaPolarit Oyj Abp is not

currently authorised to repurchase the company's own

shares, to increase the company's share capital or to

issue share options or convertible bonds.

The Board of Directors proposes to the Annual

General Meeting to be held on 9 April 2002 that it be

authorised to increase the share capital by issuing new

shares and by taking convertible loan. The total increase

may amount to a maximum of 37 685 767.86 euros or

69 788 459 shares and the authorisation is proposed to

be valid for one year from the Annual General Meeting.

Shares in AvestaPolarit AB (publ), former Avesta

Sheffield AB (publ)

As a result of the exchange offer to form the AvestaPolarit

Group, AvestaPolarit Oyj Abp became in February 2001

the owner of 98.63% of all the shares in AvestaPolarit

AB (publ). A compulsory acquisition process was then
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initiated in accordance with the laws of Sweden for the

acquisition of the remaining 1.37% of the shares. In

February 2002 AvestaPolarit Oyj Abp has obtained

advanced title to the remaining shares against a bank

guarantee of SEK 90 million as security for payment for

the shares. Payment shall be made once the price has

been determined by the Arbitration Board.

Avesta Sheffield AB (publ) launched in 1999 a plan

to incentivise the senior management of the former

Avesta Sheffield Group by using call options. To execute

the incentive scheme, call options in underlying Avesta

Sheffield AB (publ) shares were issued by British Steel

plc (later renamed Corus UK Limited following the for-

mation of the Corus Group). Currently only one indivi-

dual, a former employee of Avesta Sheffield AB (publ),

still holds 12 450 call options, now for AvestaPolarit Oyj

Abp shares. The exercise price is SEK 42.57 and the call

options have a maturity of three years, ending on 4

June 2002. 

Management shareholdings
At the end of 2001, the total shareholdings of

AvestaPolarit's Board of Directors and President

amounted to 29 000 shares, corresponding to 0.01% of

the company's total share capital. During 2001, the

company had no option programmes in place.

Share price development and trading volume
The trade with the AvestaPolarit share started on 30

January at a share price of EUR 3.31 in Helsinki and at

SEK 28.5 in Stockholm. Since its listing and until the

year-end, the AvestaPolarit share price rose by 28.4%

on the Helsinki Stock Exchange (HEX) and by 39.0% on

the Stockholm Stock Exchange (XSSE). By the year-end

the general HEX index had fallen by 19.6%, and the

general XSSE index by 19.8% over the same period.

During the first 12 months of trade (30 January 2001 -

30 January 2002) the share price rose at HEX by 43.2%

ending at EUR 4.74 and at XSSE by 53% ending at SEK

43.6. The number of shares traded during the period

was 55 178 316 shares in Helsinki, corresponding to

15.8% of the total number of shares and 56 622 089 in

Stockholm, corresponding to 16.2% of the total number

of shares. The main share-related key figures are pre-

sented on page 86.
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Principal shareholders at 31 December 2001 1)

Shareholder
Shares %

Outokumpu Oyj 193 111 111 55.3
Corus UK Limited 80 882 090 23.2
Pension Insurance Company Ilmarinen Ltd. 5 549 700 1.6
Odin Norden 4 346 200 1.2
Alecta Pension Insurance, Mutual 2 689 360 0.8
Varma-Sampo Mutual Pension Insurance Company 2 634 400 0.8
The Finnish Social Insurance Institution 1 380 400 0.4
OP-Delta Investment Funds 1 271 600 0.4
Life Insurance Company Skandia 1 254 543 0.4
Kunskaps- och Kompetensutveckling 1 000 000 0.3
Nominee accounts held by custodian banks 34 240 067 9.8
Other shareholders 20 582 825 5.9

Total number of shares 348 942 296 100.0

1) Statistics based on a consolidation of data from the Finnish Central Securities Depositary and the Swedish Värdepapperscentralen.

Shareholders by group at 31 December 2001 1)

Shareholder group
Shares %

Privately held companies 194 525 569 55.7
Publicly held companies 65 100 0.0
Financial and insurance institutions 135 888 940 38.9
Public sector and public organisations 14 985 150 4.3
Non-profit organisations 2 030 438 0.6
Private households 1 411 907 0.4
Private international shareholders 35 192 0.0

Total 348 942 296 100.0

1) Data supplied by the official shareholders register held by the Finnish Central Securities Depository. This data includes all interna-
tional nominee registered shareholdings grouped under financial and insurance institutions. Approximately 124 million (35.5%) of all 
shares were registered in the name of a nominee. 

Distribution of shareholdings at 31 December 2001 1)

Number of shares Number of % of Total number % of
shareholders shareholders of shares share capital

1-100 61 4.4 5 082 0.0
101-1 000 770 55.4 406 555 0.1
1 001-10 000 406 29.2 1 424 667 0.4
10 001-100 000 96 6.9 3 610 118 1.0
100 001-1 000 000 50 3.6 16 083 295 4.6
1 000 001- 6 0.4 327 412 579 93.8

Total 1 389  100.0 348 942 296 100.0

1) Data supplied by the Finnish Central Securities Depository, including nominee registrations.

By a combination of data provided by both the Finnish Central Securities Depository and the Swedish
Värdepapperscentralen AvestaPolarit had a total of 18 261 shareholders at the end of the year. 
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Share capital development 1997-2001

Year Transaction Increase in   Increase in share Total share Total number of 
number of shares capital (EUR) capital (EUR) shares

1997 New share issues 3 000 000 5 045 637.79 102 594 635.14 61 000 000
2000 Share split 1) 132 111 110 - 102 594 635.14 193 111 110
2000 Bonus issue 1) - 1 685 364.26 104 279 999.40 193 111 110
2000 Bonus issue 1) 1 0.54 104 279 999.94 193 111 111
2001 Targeted issue 2) 149 633 289 80 801 976.06 185 081 976.00 342 744 400
2001 Targeted issue 2) 6 197 896 3 346 863.84 188 428 839.84 348 942 296

1) The extraordinary general meeting of Outokumpu Steel held on 10 November 2000 resolved, firstly, to increase the number of shares in Outokumpu Steel from 
61 000 000 shares to 193 111 110 shares without increasing the share capital of Outokumpu Steel, whereby the accounting par value of the shares was decreased from 
approximately EUR 1.68 to approximately EUR 0.53. Secondly, the extraordinary general meeting resolved to increase the share capital of Outokumpu Steel by 
EUR 1 685 364.26 to EUR 104 279 999.40 by means of a bonus issue through increasing the accounting par value of the shares to exactly EUR 0.54. The share split and 
related bonus issue were effected in order to implement the exchange offer in accordance with the exchange ratio agreed in the Combination Agreement.

2) Targeted share issue to the Avesta Sheffield shareholders.

Share-related data Actual Pro forma
2001 2000 19993) 19983) 1997 2001 2000

Earnings per share (excluding
extraordinary items)
- excluding negative goodwill4) EUR 0.20 0.88 0.15 0.16 0.35 0.19 0.98
- including negative goodwill EUR 0.33 0.88 0.15 0.16 0.35 0.32 0.98

Earnings per share
- excluding negative goodwill4) EUR 0.20 0.52 -0.09 0.03 0.29 0.19 0.98
- including negative goodwill EUR 0.33 0.52 -0.09 0.03 0.29 0.32 0.98

Cash flow per share EUR 0.66 1.13 0.38 0.64 0.67 0.61 1.04

Shareholders' equity per share EUR 3.46 3.50 2.85 2.94 2.91 3.46 3.36

Dividend per share EUR 0.081) 0.15 - - - 0.081) 0.15
Dividend/earnings ratio % 0.251) 0.04 - - - 0.251) 0.15
Dividend yield % 0.021) - - - - 0.021) -

Market capitalisation
at end of period2) EUR million 1 483 - - - - 1 483 -

Price/earnings ratio 21.3 - - - - 21.3 -

Average number of shares5) 1 000 shares 338 312 193 111 193 111 193 111 185 997 348 942 348 942
Number of shares
at end of period5) 1 000 shares 348 942 193 111 193 111 193 111 193 111 348 942 348 942

1) The Board of Directors' proposal to the Annual General Meeting.
2) On the Helsinki Stock Exchange.
3) The figures for 1998-99 have been restated to reflect the change in inventory valuation principle. For more specific information. see note 1

Principles applied in the financial statements.
4) Amortisation of negative goodwill deducted from profit.
5) Adjusted number of shares outstanding.

Definitions of key financial indicators are presented on page 62.

Development of share price and trading volume 2001

Helsinki Stockholm
EUR SEK

Development of share price
Price on the first day of trading at 30 Jan 3.31 28.50
Average trading price 3.76 34.30
Lowest trading price 2.76 25.60
Highest trading price 4.58 43.10
Trading price at end of period 4.25 39.60

Development in trading volume
Trading volume 1 000 shares 55 178 56 622
In relation to weighted
average number of shares % 16.3 16.7
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Corporate governance

The parent company of the AvestaPolarit Group is

AvestaPolarit Oyj Abp, a company registered and

domiciled in Finland. The control and management of

AvestaPolarit Oyj Abp is hence governed by the laws of

Finland, the company's Articles of Association and the

Corporate Governance Principles adopted by the Board

of Directors. The company also complies with the rules

and instructions of the stock exchanges in Stockholm

and Helsinki.

The General Meeting of Shareholders is the supreme

decision-making body of the Company, and normally

convenes once a year. The Finnish Companies Act pro-

vides that certain important decisions, such as amend-

ments to the Articles of Association, approval of the

financial statements, decisions on dividends, and election

of the Board of Directors and the auditors, are the

exclusive domain of the General Meeting of

Shareholders. The ultimate responsibility for the mana-

gement and operations of the AvestaPolarit Group lies

with the governing bodies – the Board of Directors and

the Chief Executive Officer – of the parent company

AvestaPolarit Oyj Abp. 

The Board of Directors
The company's Board of Directors (the Board) acts within

the powers and responsibilities provided under the

Finnish Companies Act and other applicable legislation.

The Board has general authority to decide and act in all

matters not reserved by law or under the provisions of

the Articles of Association to other corporate governing

bodies. The Board is responsible for organizing and

supervising the management of the company and its

operations. The Board has the duty at all times to act in

the best interests of the company. 

The Board consists of six to twelve members.

Members are elected by the General Meeting of

Shareholders and the term of office expires at the end of

the Annual General Meeting following election. The

Articles of Association contain provisions for certain

special rights for a 10% minority in the election procedure.

The Board elects the Chairman and the Vice Chairman

from any of its members, other than the Chief Executive

Officer. The Chairman presides over the Board and, in

the event of a split vote, has the casting vote.

The Board has approved The Board of Directors'

Rules of Procedure for the organisation of its activities.

According to these Rules of Procedure it is the general

duty of the Board to secure a significant and sustained

increase in value for the AvestaPolarit shareholders. In

more detail, the Board has determined that it shall take

the decisions on the basic strategies for the Group and

monitor their implementation. Also, the Board shall

take the decisions on major investments, business

acquisitions and divestments. The Board nominates

and dismisses the Chief Executive Officer and the

Deputy Chief Executive Officer and decides on their

terms of employment and benefits. The Board also

nominates the members to the Executive Committee.

The Board convenes as necessary but at least five times

every year. In 2001, the Board met 13 times.

The Board has appointed an Audit Committee,

consisting of three members of the Board, and assigned

it the task of reviewing the auditing work, internal controls,

the scope of internal and external audits, the Group's

financial policies, and other procedures for managing

the Group's risks. In 2001, the Audit Committee met

twice.

A more in-depth presentation of the internal finan-

cial control and risk management procedures is given

in the Note 18 to the Consolidated Financial Statements

on pages 71 to 73.

Chief Executive Officer and Executive
Committee
The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is responsible for

managing and controlling the company's business and

for ensuring that the day-to-day operations of the

Group are in compliance with existing laws and regu-

lations, the operating principles of the Company and

decisions made by the Board. 

The role of the Executive Committee is to support

the CEO in his responsibilities. The Executive

Committee consists of the CEO and the Group's

Executive Vice Presidents. 

Auditors
According to the Articles of Association, the company

shall have no less than one and no more than two audi-

tors. One of the auditors shall be an entity of certified

public accountants or an individual approved by the

Finnish Central Chamber of Commerce. The auditors

are appointed by the General Meeting of Shareholders

for a term of office expiring at the close of the Annual

General Meeting following appointment.
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AvestaPolarit and its majority shareholder shall

have different audit partners even if the same audit

firm may be employed by both AvestaPolarit and the

majority shareholder.

AvestaPolarit Oyj Abp is audited by SVH

PricewaterhouseCoopers Oy, the audit partner being

Mr. Markku Marjomaa, APA, who is also responsible

for overseeing and coordinating the audit of all Group

companies.

Insider rules
The Board of Directors has approved Insider Rules for

the Group. The Insider Rules are based on and comply

with the applicable guidelines of the Helsinki Stock

Exchange. According to the Insider Rules the members

of the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer

and his deputy, the auditors, the members of the

Executive Committee, the secretaries to the Chairman

of the Board, to the Vice Chairman of the Board and to

the members of the Executive Committee, members of

the Employee Committee and other individuals named

by the Executive Committee are permanent insiders of

AvestaPolarit.

Project to develop AvestaPolarit's 
organisation model
A new project to review and develop AvestaPolarit's

organisational model has recently been launched by the

Executive Committee. The overall objective is to develop

an organisational model, which effectively supports

AvestaPolarit's business objectives. The project entails a

thorough review of the organisational structure and

leadership processes with the goal to design a more

effective organisational model, ready for implementa-

tion by early April 2002.  

Remuneration and benefits for Directors, the
CEO and the members of Executive Committee
The fees, salaries and employee benefits paid to the

members of the Board of Directors and the Executive

Committee in 2001 were as follows:

No fees are paid to Board members other than those

decided by the Annual General Meeting and the salaries

and bonuses paid to the CEO and Deputy CEO. The

current performance-related bonus scheme applying to

the CEO and members of the Executive Committee in

addition to their salary and employee benefits is calculated

on the basis of the company's financial performance

and achievement of non-financial targets. The maximum

bonus payable is 40% of the annual base salary.

No separate remuneration is paid to the CEO or to

members of the Executive Committee for membership

of the Committee or a Board of Directors of a business

unit.

The pension benefits of the CEO and the other

Finnish members of the Executive Committee are based

on the Finnish Employees' Pensions Act (TEL). The

CEO and the Finnish Executive Committee members

are entitled to retire from the age of 60. In certain cases

the CEO may retire already before the age of 60.

Executive Committee members employed under

Swedish conditions can, according to a pension plan,

retire at the age of 60. Pension rights to retire at age 60

are accrued after the age of 40, over a period of 10 years

of pensionable service in an eligible position. The pension

level between age 60 and 65 is 70% of the pensionable

earnings up to a maximum of earnings equivalent to 50

Swedish base amounts. Pension from age 65 is accrued

according to the ITP Plan, with an additional pension

payable of 32.5% of pensionable earnings between 20

and 50 Swedish base amounts at full pensionable service.

Executive Committee members entitled to a UK pension

from the British Steel Pension Scheme (1990) can retire

with immediate pension from the age of 60 with the

consent of the company, or from the age of 55 at the

request of the company. 

EUR Salaries and fees with Performance-related Total
employee benefits bonuses

Directors* 327 355 0 327 355
CEO 310 477 0 310 477
Other Executive Committee members 1 518 618 103 901 1 622 519

* Excluding CEO´s and Deputy CEO´s salary and bonuses
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Board of Directors

Jyrki Juusela, Chairman, Born 1943, D.Sc. (Tech.)
President and CEO of Outokumpu Oyj. Board member of
Outokumpu Oyj.
Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Sampo plc. Member of
the Supervisory Board of Varma-Sampo Mutual Pension Insurance
Company. Member of the Board of Directors of the Confederation
of Finnish Industry and Employers and the Federation of Finnish
Metal, Engineering and Electrotechnical Industries. 
Shares: 10 000.

Tony P. Pedder, Vice Chairman, Born 1949, M.Sc. 
Chief Executive and Board member of Corus Group plc.
Member of the Board of Directors of Delta plc.  Vice President of
the UK Steel Association.
Shares: -

David M. Lloyd *) , Born 1963, BA (Hons), ACMA 
Executive Director, Finance and Board member of Corus Group plc.
Deputy member of the Board of Directors of Caparo Merchant Bar plc.
Shares: -

Bernt Magnusson, Born 1941, MA (Pol)
Chairman of the Board of Directors of Swedish Match AB and Dyno
Nobel ASA. Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Net Insight
AB. Member of the Board of Directors of Volvo Car Corporation,
Höganäs AB, Nordea Plc and Pharmadule AB. Advisor to the
European Bank for Reconstruction and Development.
Shares: 2 000.

Jacob Palmstierna, Born 1934, Dr. of Economics h.c.
Chairman of the Board of Directors of Bilia AB, Siemens AB and
Stockholm School of Economics Executive Education AB. Member
of the Board of Directors of Nordstjernan AB and Höganäs AB.
Senior Advisor of Credit Suisse First Boston.
Shares: 5 000.

Timo Peltola, Born 1946, Dr. of Economics h.c.
CEO and Board member of Huhtamäki Oyj.
Member of the Board of Directors of Nordea Plc and
Instrumentarium Corp. Chairman of the Supervisory Board of
Ilmarinen Mutual Pension Insurance Company. Member of the

Supervisory Board of the Finnish Cultural Foundation and the
Finnish Fair Corporation.
Shares: - 

Stuart I. Pettifor, Born 1945, B.Sc. (Hons) Metallurgy
Executive Director and Board member of Corus Group plc.
Chairman of the Board of Governors of Ashorne Hill Management
College.
Shares: 10 000.

Juha Rantanen *), Born 1952, M.Sc. (Econ.), MBA
President & CEO of Ahlstrom Corporation.
Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Finnish Forest Industries
Federation. Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Confederation of Finnish Industry and Employers. Member of the
Board of Directors of KCI Konecranes International Plc and Paroc
Group Oy Ab.
Shares: -

Risto Virrankoski *), Born 1946, B.Sc. (Econ.)
Deputy President & Deputy CEO of Outokumpu Oyj.
Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Partek Oyj Abp.
Member of the Board of Directors of VR Limited (Finnish Railways).
Shares: -

Ossi Virolainen, Born 1944, B.Sc. (Econ.), LL.M.
President and CEO of AvestaPolarit Oyj Abp.
Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Elisa Communications
Corporation. Member of the Board of Directors of the Federation
of Finnish Metal, Engineering and Electrotechnical Industries and
the Association of Finnish Steel and Metal Producers.
Shares: 2 000.

All the above members of the Board have been in their current positions since the
formation of AvestaPolarit on 22 January 2001, except for David M. Lloyd, who joi-
ned the Board on 23 April 2001.
Other members of the Board during 2001 were Antti Närhi, until 22 January 2001,
and John L. Rennocks, from 22 January until 31 January 2001.

*) Member of the Audit Committee

Details of shareholdings relate to holdings on 13 February 2002.

From the left: Jacob Palmstierna, Ossi Virolainen, Bernt Magnusson, Jyrki Juusela, Risto Virrankoski, Juha Rantanen, 
Tony P. Pedder and Timo Peltola. Missing: David M. Lloyd and Stuart I. Pettifor.
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Executive Committee

Ossi Virolainen
Born 1944
President and CEO 
(see previous page).

Pekka Erkkilä
Born 1958
M.Sc. (Eng.)
President - Coil Products. 
Shares: 1 000.

Antti Närhi
Born 1944
M.Sc. (Eng.)
President - Special Products.
Shares: -

Ian L. Cooper
Born 1947
B.Sc. (Hons) Metallurgy, M.Sc., FCMA, MCT
Chief Financial Officer (CFO).
Areas of responsibility: Financial planning, control and reporting,
treasury, taxation, credit and risk management.
Shares: 6 000.

Leif Helgman
Born 1961
Military Education - Swedish Army Officer
Executive Vice President - Human Resources.
Areas of responsibility: Human resources, health and safety, indus-
trial relations.
Shares: -

Karri Kaitue
Born 1964
LL.M., LL.Lic.
Executive Vice President - M&A and Legal Affairs. 
Areas of responsibility: Legal affairs, mergers and acquisitions, ener-
gy issues, Corporate Secretary. 
Shares: -

John Newborn 
Born 1944
B.Tech, C.Eng, M.I.E.E.
Executive Vice President - Business Development and Integration. 
Areas of responsibility: Business development and integration, inclu-
ding research and development, environment, general purchasing
and logistics.
Shares: -

All the above members of the Executive Committee have been in their current posi-
tions since the formation of AvestaPolarit on 22 January 2001, except for John
Newborn, who joined the Executive Committee on 1 September 2001. 

Stuart I. Pettifor held the position of Deputy CEO, and was also President - Coil
Products and a member of the Executive Committee until 31 August 2001 (see pre-
vious page).

Barrie Cheetham was Executive Vice President - Sales & Marketing and a member of
the Executive Committee until his retirement on 31 May 2001.

Details of shareholdings relate to holdings on 13 February 2002.

From the left: John Newborn, Karri Kaitue, Ossi Virolainen, Leif Helgman, Antti Närhi, Pekka Erkkilä and Ian Cooper.
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Business unit managers and corporate staff

Business unit managers

Coil Products
Niilo Suutala, Tornio Integrated MiII
Sean Lyons, Primary Products
Olof Faxander, Coil Products Sheffield
Ulf Öhnfeldt, Avesta KBR
Lars-Göran Jöbo, Nyby/Kloster Cold Rolled

Special Products
Harri Natunen, Ferrochrome
Leif Rosén, Hot Rolled Plate
Peter Holes, Long Products
Christer Bäck, Tubes
Bengt Blomberg, Fittings
Andrew Black, Precision Strip

North America
Mike Rinker

Corporate executive staff

Jouni Grönroos, Deputy CFO
Jukka Jokinen, Sales and marketing - Coil Products
Jorma Kemppainen, Research & Development
Sjaak Klap, Logistics
Jorma Kovalainen, General purchases
Leif Lindbergh, Treasury
Katarina Lybeck, Communications
Claes Wallnér, Information technology
Christer Wallstén, Raw materials

Contact information

AvestaPolarit Oyj Abp
Corporate Management

Linnoitustie 4 A
PO Box 270
FIN-02601 ESPOO
Finland
Tel: +358 (0)9 5764 5511
Fax: +358 (0)9 5764 5555

Vasagatan 8-10
PO Box 16377
SE-103 27 Stockholm
Sweden
Tel:  +46 (0)8 613 36 00
Fax: +46 (0)8 613 36 69

Registered office: Espoo. Business Identity Code: 0823312-4.

Other addresses
Up-to-date contact information about all 
AvestaPolarit subsidiaries and sites is available 
on the Group´s Internet home page www.avestapolarit.com. 
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Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of shareholders
of AvestaPolarit Oyj Abp will be held at the
Dipoli Congress Centre, at Otakaari 24, FIN-
02150 Espoo, Finland at 2.00 p.m. on Tuesday,
9 April 2002. Registration for attendance and
distribution of voting slips will begin at 1.00 p.m.

Items on the agenda of the Meeting
In addition to the ordinary items specified in Section 14
of the Articles of Association the agenda for the
Meeting will include proposals by the Board of
Directors as follows:
– The proposal by the Board of Directors to issue     

warrants to the key personnel of the AvestaPolarit 
Group, as well as to a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
AvestaPolarit Oyj Abp. 

– The proposal by the Board of Directors to authorise 
the Board of Directors to increase the share capital by
issuing new shares and by taking out convertible 
loans, in one or more instances. 

Further material and copies available
Copies of the 2001 Annual Accounts and the proposals
by the Board of Directors will, from 28 March 2002 until
the date of the Meeting, be available for inspection
by shareholders on the Company's website at
www.avestapolarit.com as well as at the Corporate
Management offices at Linnoitustie 4 A, FIN-02600 Espoo,
Finland and Vasagatan 8 - 10, SE-10327 Stockholm,
Sweden. Copies of these documents will be sent to share-
holders upon request.

Right to attend the Annual General Meeting
In order to attend the Annual General Meeting, share-
holders must be registered in the Shareholders'
Register of the Company, maintained by the Finnish
Central Securities Depository. (Suomen Arvopaperikeskus Oy)
(the "APK"), on 27 March 2002. Shareholders who own
their shares through a nominee shareholder must contact
their bank or broker to be temporarily recorded in the
Shareholders' Register in their own name. Accordingly,
also those shareholders whose shareholdings are regis-
tered with the Swedish Central Securities Depository
and Clearing Organisation (VPC AB) (the "VPC") should
request temporary registration with the APK by delive-
ring a specific VPC form to the VPC. The form is available
at the Company's Corporate Management offices both
at Linnoitustie 4 A, FIN-02600 Espoo, Finland and
Vasagatan 8 - 10, SE-10327 Stockholm, Sweden. These
forms will also be sent to shareholders upon request. To
allow sufficient time for the temporary registration
the VPC form must be delivered to the VPC by 3.00

p.m. Swedish time on 22 March 2002, at the latest.
In order to attend the Annual General Meeting,

shareholders must also notify the Company of their
intention to do so by telephone to +358-9-57645546, by
fax to +358-9-57645553, by letter addressed to Avesta-
Polarit Oyj Abp, P.O Box 270 (Linnoitustie 4 A), FIN-
02601 Espoo, Finland, by e-mail to agm@avestapolarit.com
or at AvestaPolarit's website at www.avestapolarit.com.
The notification must be received by the Company by
4.00 p.m. Finnish time on 2 April 2002, at the latest. 

Shareholders who wish to be represented by proxy
at the General Meeting, must deliver the proxy
document (copy or original) to the Company by fax to
+358-9-57645553 or otherwise to the Company's office
at Linnoitustie 4 A, FIN-02600 Espoo, Finland, by 4.00 p.m.
Finnish time on 2 April 2002, at the latest. Shareholders
are reminded that the original proxy document must be
submitted to the Company latest at the General
Meeting.

Dividends
The Board of Directors is proposing a dividend of EUR
0.08 per share. The dividend will be paid to the share-
holders who are registered in the Shareholders'
Register of the Company maintained by the APK or
who are registered with the VPC on the record date
12 April 2002. The dividend is proposed to be paid in
euros to those shareholders registered with the APK
and in Swedish krona to those registered with the VPC.
Payment of the dividend is proposed to be effected as
of 24 April 2002. 

Information meeting for shareholders in

Stockholm on 10 April 2002
Shareholders who will not be in a position to attend the

Annual General Meeting in Espoo, Finland, will have an

opportunity to take part in an information meeting in

Stockholm, Sweden, which will be attended by senior

Company management. The information meeting will

include a briefing on the Annual General Meeting agenda

issues and resolutions and a presentation by the Chief

Executive Officer.

The information meeting will be held at

Konferenshallen Polstjärnan, Sveavägen 77, SE-10432

Stockholm on 10 April 2002 beginning at 5.00 p.m.

Swedish time. Shareholders who wish to attend this

meeting are requested to confirm their participation no

later than on 2 April 2002 by telephone to    

+46-8-6133648, by fax to +46-8-6134401 or by e-mail

to inger.waern@avestapolarit.com.



Analysts following AvestaPolarit

Stefan Lundewall
Alfred Berg Fondkommission AB
Tel: +46 (0)8 723 5924
stefan.lundewall@alfredberg.se 

Roger Ganpatsingh
Cazenove
Tel: +44 (0)20 7825 9911
roger.ganpatsingh@cazenove.com

Johan Sjöberg
D. Carnegie AB
Tel: +46 (0)8 676 8755
johsjo@carnegie.se

Christofer Sjögren
Danske Securities
Tel: +46 (0)8 5688 1550
christofer.sjogren@danskesecurities.com

Klaus Soer
Deutsche Bank AG
Tel: +49 69 9 10-3 19 17
klaus.soer@db.com

Johan Lindh
Enskilda Securities AB
Tel: +358 (0)9 616 28 728
johan.lindh@enskilda.se

Pekka Spolander
Evli Bank Plc
Tel: +358 (0)9 4766 9201
pekka.spolander@evli.com

Duncan MacLean
Goldman Sachs International
Tel: +44 (0)20 7774 2447
duncan.MacLean@gs.com

Gustav Lucander
Handelsbanken Securities
Tel: +358 (0)10 444 2409
gulu05@handelsbanken.se

Julien Onillon
HSBC CCF Securities (France) SA
Tel: +33 (0)1 4070 2519
jonillon@ccf.fr

Jeffrey Roberts
Impivaara Securities Ltd.
Tel: +44 (0)20 7284 3937
impivaara@pomor.com

Eeva Mäkelä
Mandatum Pankkiiriliike Oy
Tel: +358 (0)10 236 4851
eeva.makela@mandatum.fi

Mark Burridge
Merrill Lynch Pierce, Fenner & Smith Ltd
Tel: +44 (0)20 7996 4343
mark_burridge@ml.com

Financial reporting schedule 

The Board of Directors for AvestaPolarit Oyj Abp has confirmed the
company’s reporting schedule for 2002:

26 April 2002 Interim report for the first quarter of 2002
25 July 2002 Interim report for the second quarter of 2002
24 October 2002 Interim report for the third quarter of 2002

For further information please contact:
Hannele Öbrink, Manager – Investor Relations
Tel: + 46 (0)8 613 4419 or +46 (0)70 652 10 32

Cover: A detail from a sculpture called
”Rinnakkain”, made by Prof. Eero
Hiironen.
Photo by: Kaius Hedenström
Production: Edelman Public Relations
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AvestaPolarit's mission is to make the world stainless.

Stainless steel is the fastest growing metal - a durable and

virtually maintenance-free material with low life cycle

costs. It is hygienic, lightweight and ductile, and it has

green credentials as a fully recyclable product. 

STAINLESSwww.avestapolarit.com

A
V

ESTA
PO

LA
R

IT A
N

N
U

A
L R

EPO
R

T 2001


	Cover
	AvestaPolarit in brief
	Organisation
	Contents
	Operational Review 2001
	A word from the CEO
	Mission, vision and strategies
	Logotype

	Financial summary
	Key figures (table)
	Net sales - pro forma (graph)
	Operating profit - pro forma (graph)
	Capital expenditure - pro forma (graph)
	Ownership (graph)
	Key share-related data (table)
	Share price and trading volume, Helsinki (graph)
	Share price and trading volume, Stockholm (graph)

	Market review
	Stainless steel consumption 2001 (graph)
	Stainless steel prices (graph)
	Nickel price (graph)
	Ferrochrome price (graph)
	Average annual metal market prices (table)
	Stainless steel the fastest growing metal (graph)

	Coil Products
	Share of Group net sales (graph)
	Key figures (table)
	Production (table)
	Net sales by business unit (table)
	Employees by business unit 2001 (graph)

	Special Products
	Share of Group net sales (graph)
	Key figures (table)
	Production (table)
	Net sales by business unit (table)
	Employees by business unit 2001 (graph)
	Kemi mine production (table)
	Ore reserves and mineral resources (table)

	North America
	Share of Group net sales (graph)
	Key figures (table)

	Sales and distribution
	Sales by market area 2001 (graph)
	Other operations... (table)

	Human resources
	Employees by business area 2001 (graph)
	Total number of employees... (table)

	Environment
	Average metal content of effluent from the Sheffield treatment plant (graph)
	Dust emissions at Avesta melting shop (graph)
	Total dust emissions at Tornio site (graph)
	Stainless steel and sustainable development (graph)

	Research and development
	The new Tornio RAP 5 line

	Information technology
	Risk management

	Annual Accounts 2001
	Colour code
	Directors’ report
	Sales by market area 2001 (graph)
	Net sales - pro forma (table)
	Operating profit - pro forma (table)
	Key financial indicators - pro forma (table)
	Operating profit – pro forma (graph)
	Earnings per share – pro forma (graph)
	Return on capital employed – pro forma (graph)
	Cash provided by operating activities – pro forma (graph)
	Capital expenditure - pro forma (table)
	Net interest-bearing debt – pro forma (graph)
	Equity-to-assets ratio – pro forma (graph)
	Debt-to-equity ratio – pro forma (graph)
	Capital expenditure – pro forma (graph)
	Personnel (table)

	Auditor’s report
	Consolidated income statement
	Consolidated balance sheet
	Consolidated statement of cash flows
	Key financial indicators
	Key financial indicators by business area
	Financial development by quarter (table)
	Net sales – pro forma (graph)
	Operating profit – pro forma (graph)
	Profit before extraordinary items – pro forma (graph)

	Notes to the consolidated financial statements
	1. Principles applied in the financial statements
	Definitions of key financial indicators
	2. Geographical information
	3. Cost of sales
	4. Personnel expenses
	5. Unusual items
	6. Other operating income and expenses
	7. Provisions for restructuring measures
	8. Financial income and expenses
	9. Extraordinary items
	10. Income taxes
	11. Fixed assets
	12.Associated companies
	13. Inventories
	14. Receivables
	15. Shareholders' equity
	16. Negative goodwill
	17.Liabilities
	18. Management of financial risks
	19. Commitments and contingent liabilities
	20. Disputes and litigations
	21. Subsidiaries by country at 31 December 2001
	22. Associated companies and other shares and stock at 31 December 2001
	23. Changes in Group structure in 2001
	24. Production of main products

	Parent Company financial statements
	Notes to the Parent Company financial statements
	1. Personnel expenses
	2. Depreciation and amortisation
	3. Other operating income and expenses
	4. Financial income and expenses
	5. Extraordinary items
	6. Income taxes
	7. Fixed assets
	8. Shareholders' equity
	9. Receivables and liabilities
	10. Commitments and contingent liabilities

	Shares and shareholders
	Helsinki (graph)
	Stockholm (graph)
	Principal shareholders at 31 December 2001 (table)
	Shareholders by group at 31 December 2001 (table)
	Distribution of shareholdings at 31 December 2001 (table)
	Share capital development 1997-2001 (table)
	Share-related data (table)
	Development of share price and trading volume 2001 (table)

	Corporate governance
	Remuneration and benefits... (table)

	Board of Directors
	Executive Committee
	Business unit managers and corporate staff
	Contact information

	Annual General Meeting
	Analysts following AvestaPolarit
	Financial reporting schedule
	Back cover

